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THE LAW SOCIETY
OF SINGAPORE

OUR MISSION

To serve our members and the community by
sustaining a competent and independent Bar
which upholds the rule of law and ensures
access to justice.
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OUR PEOPLE

THE COUNCIL

(Standing L to R)
Tan Beng Hwee Paul, Lim Seng Siew, Chia Boon Teck, Koh Choon

Guan Daniel, Ng Huan Yong, Ng Lip Chih, Anand Nalachandran,
Md Noor E Adnaan, Foo Guo Zheng Benjamin, Adrian Chan Pengee

(Seated L to R)

Low Ying Li, Christine, Lisa Sam Hui Min, Tan Gim Hai Adrian (Vice-
President), Gregory Vijayendran, SC (President), Tito Shane Isaac
(Treasurer), Simran Kaur Toor, Michael S Chia

Not in main picture:

M Rajaram Seah Zhen Wei Paul Tan May Lian Felicia Chan Tai-Hui Jason
(Vice-President) (Zeng Taihui)
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OUR PEOPLE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

(LtoR)

Koh Choon Guan Daniel, Tan Beng Hwee Paul, Tan Gim Hai Adrian,
Low Ying Li, Christine, Gregory Vijayendran, SC, Michael S Chia,
Tito Shane Isaac

Not in main picture:

)
.

M Rajaram Tan May Lian Felicia
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OUR PEOPLE

COUNCIL REPORT

Outgoing Council Members for 2018 The following members of Council for
2019 are Statutory Members appointed
The term of the following Council member by the Minister of Law to serve on the
ended on 31 December 2018: Council:
Sui Yi Siong (Xu Yixiong) M Rajaram
Ng Lip Chih

Seah Zhen Wei Paul

Council Members for the Period

1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019  the following members of Council for

2019 are Statutory Members appointed

by Council to serve on the Council:
(NOT LESS THAN 15 YEARS’ STANDING)

Gregory Vijayendran, SC (President) Lim .Seng Siew
Tan Gim Hai Adrian (Vice-President) Adrian Chan Pengee
M Rajaram (Vice-President) Anand Nalachandran

Tito Shane Isaac (Treasurer)
Lim Seng Siew

Adrian Chan Pengee

Koh Choon Guan Daniel
Chia Boon Teck

Ng Lip Chih

Lisa Sam Hui Min

Michael S Chia

Anand Nalachandran

(5 TO 15 YEARS’ STANDING)

Seah Zhen Wei Paul

Tan May Lian Felicia

Tan Beng Hwee Paul

Chan Tai-Hui Jason (Zeng Taihui)
Simran Kaur Toor

(LESS THAN 5 YEARS’ STANDING)

Low Ying Li, Christine

Md Noor E Adnaan

Ng Huan Yong

Foo Guo Zheng Benjamin
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COUNCIL REPORT

There were 4 ordinary meetings of the Council
from September 2018 to December 2018. The

attendance of members was as follows:

OUR PEOPLE

There were 8 ordinary meetings from January
2019 to August 2019. The attendance of
members was as follows:

Member Present | Absent Member Present | Absent
(Gla:teagicég‘t\)/i]qyendran, SC 4 0 ﬁi:zg&z&{iiayendran, SC 8 0
Tan Gim Hai Adrian 2 2 Tan Gim Hai Adrian 6 2
(Vice-President) (Vice-President)
M Rajaram (Vice-President) 3 1 M Rajaram (Vice-President) 3 5
Tito Shane Isaac (Treasurer) 4 0 Tito Shane Isaac (Treasurer) 7 1
Lim Seng Siew 4 0 Lim Seng Siew 8 0
Adrian Chan Pengee 4 0 Adrian Chan Pengee 7 1
Koh Choon Guan Daniel 3 1 Koh Choon Guan Daniel 6 2
Chia Boon Teck 4 0 Chia Boon Teck 6 2
Ng Lip Chih 2 2 Ng Lip Chih 4 4
Lisa Sam Hui Min 2 2 Lisa Sam Hui Min 4 4
Michael S Chia 3 1 Michael S Chia 6 2
Anand Nalachandran 3 1 Anand Nalachandran 4 4
Seah Zhen Wei Paul 4 0 Seah Zhen Wei Paul 5 3
Tan May Lian Felicia 4 0 Tan May Lian Felicia 7 1
Tan Beng Hwee Paul 1 3 Tan Beng Hwee Paul 4 4
Chan Tai-Hui Jason 2 9 Chan Tai-Hui Jason 3 5
(Zeng Taihui) (Zeng Taihui)
Simran Kaur Toor 4 0] Simran Kaur Toor 2 6
Low Ying Li, Christine 1 Low Ying Li, Christine 6 2
Sui Yi Siong (Xu Yixiong) 1 3 Md Noor E Adnaan 5 3
Ng Huan Yong 3 1 Ng Huan Yong 6 2
Foo Guo Zheng Benjamin 0 Foo Guo Zheng Benjamin 8 0
Annual Report 2019 //5



OUR PEOPLE

THE SECRETARIAT

(Standing L to R)

Rejini Raman, Assistant Manager & Department Head (Anti-Money
Laundering, and Compliance); Anamika Bagchi, Assistant Director
(Conduct); Sharmaine Lau, Director & Department Head (Partnership &
Sponsorship, and Publications); Genie Sugene Gan, Director & Department
Head (Representation & Law Reform); Pearlyn Quek, Director & Department
Head (Finance); Rajvant Kaur, Assistant Director (Conduct); Stefanie Lim,
Assistant Director & Department Head (Legal Productivity & Innovation); Jean
Wong, Director & Department Head (Continuing Professional Development)

(Seated L to R)

Clifford Hang, Director & Department Head (Unclaimed Money Fund);
Alvin Chen, Director & Department Head (Legal Research & Development);
Delphine Loo Tan (Chief Executive Officer); K Gopalan, Director &
Department Head (Conduct); Shawn Toh, Director & Department Head
(Membership, Communications & International Relations)
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OUR PEOPLE

PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

Introduction

This has undoubtedly been the most
challenging year in all my years of service on
Council and during my term as Presidency. We
exercised our statutory powers of intervention
in the law practice of JLC Advisors in a high
profiled imbroglio involving a sum of $$33
million placed in an escrow account with the
firm. In terms of our self-regulation duties,

we have had to prosecute a few matters,
consistent with our duties in the public interest,
that courted media publicity. A profession-wide
challenge that we have been sensitised too is
the economic pressures faced by some of our
small and medium sized firms. | shall return to
that later in this message.

The salient facts and figures of what the
Society has done in the year under review

has been neatly and nicely captured in CEO,
Delphine Loo Tan's succinct report which | shall
be referencing in this message.

| shall touch on some of the broad themes of
the year and how the Council has stewarded
the leadership of the Society.

1. Promoting Diversity and Inclusiveness

We have been promoting the diversity and
inclusiveness initiative. | had stated that we
will embrace the same in my Opening of Legal
Year speech this year. The Women in Practice
idea turned Taskforce turned Committee has
taken strides. This despite the relatively short
time of its birth. The WIP Committee has
organised a number of impactful initiatives
[see 2(a) of CEO’s report] including a novel
diagnostic. That survey cum study will lead in
the future to what | am sure will be a valuable
report containing practical recommendations
for retention and advancement of our

female lawyers in practice. | reiterate that
fundamentally, this initiative is not about
affirmative action. It is instead a talent

Annual Report 2019

management issue for the profession.

For young lawyers, we (the senior lawyers)
remain committed to “parent” them. We

have institutionalised the Annual Forum.

One of the meaningful ways in which we
have tried to move the dial this year is our
Career Path initiative. (see 2(c) of CEO's
report). We will feature the unsung heroines
and hero providing such invaluable career
guidance to members. As a measure of the
demand involved, almost immediately after
we announced this new pastoral scheme in
May 2019, there were more than 50 sign ups.
The intangible takeaway in Career Path is
greater self-awareness by the career counselee
including discerning his or her own gifts and
talents as well as strengths and weaknesses.
This will enable him or her to have a more
accurate compass on the way ahead as well
as stress management coping mechanisms.

2. Pastoral Care

Pastoral care is not just for young lawyers.
Members need appropriate welfare schemes
too. While we solve an important threshold tax
issue for our envisaged Practice Resilience Fund,
we have done the following this past year:

(a) provide cover gratis to all ordinary
members of the Society effective
November last year for a global 24
hours’ group insurance personal
accident policy. Everyone of you
reading this is automatically insured for
up to $$50,000 in situations involving
Total Permanent Disability, Accidental
Causes and in the unlikely event of
demise [see 2(c) of CEO’s report];

(b) to provide for contingencies such
as a member passing away, prolonged
hospitalization or an unexpected
medical emergency during pregnancy,
we launched a Practice Pal Scheme. To

/17



summarise 2(d) of CEO's report, this service
serves as an interim, stop gap, caretaking
facility to ensure no practice interruption or at
the very least, minimising adverse impact on
clients’ matters. Fundamentally flowing from
compassion, Practice Pal seeks to encourage
sole proprietors (for whom this scheme is
especially targeted) to have best buddies. A
friend in time of need.

3. Protecting and Assisting the Public

We have a statutory objective (in fact, an
enshrined privilege) to protect and assist the
public in Singapore in all matters touching or
ancillary or incidental to the law: see section
38(1)(f) Legal Profession Act. To select 3
examples of how we fulfilled that goal this year:

(a) the Vulnerable Witness Best

Practice Toolkit [see 3(a) of CEO'’s
report] on cross-examination of
vulnerable witnesses (including tips

on cross-examination of child witnesses,
complainants of sexual offences, the
mentally incapacitated and the elderly).
This was soft-launched in late August at

a joint training session conducted with
AWARE for the Criminal Defence Bar;

(b) the Legal Fact Check facility to
address the danger of legal fake news
[see 7(b) of CEO’s report]. The aim,
as shared during my OLY Speech this
year, is to provide the public with
reliable and accurate answers to legal
questions arising out of current news
reports (online or print) via a law fact
check service. A special note of
commendation goes out to Alvin Chen,
Director of Legal Research and
Development Department for running
with this idea and launching this service
to benefit the public; and

(c) having discerned an alarming
trend of scamming involving
conveyancing transactions, apart from
an advisory to our members [see 3(e)
of CEO’s report], we called an

Annual Report 2019
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unprecedented media conference where Vice-
President Rajaram and | alerted the public
and shared best practices and tips for their
protection from online fraud seeking to siphon
away payments to conveyancing law firms.

4. Best Practices Guide

The best practices guide was not just in the
context of cross-examination of vulnerable
witnesses. Among the valuable guides

released this year to meaningfully share expert
and experienced counsel include:

(a) Art of Family Lawyering;
(b) Professional Ethics Digest;
(c) Personal Injury and Property

Damage Claims involving Foreign Workers.
[See 3(c)-(e) of CEO's report]

Plans are afoot to launch the much awaited
Cybersecurity Guide later this year for our
members. Council has reviewed a semi-
finalised version.

5. Continuing Professional Development

The data and details are in (10) of CEO's
report. There continues to be a huge demand
for CPD activities. The CPD team (Committee
and our Directorate headed by Jean Wong)
strives to reform and refine our offerings to
ensure relevance to our members. Among the

marquee conferences this year touched on in
[10(b) to (d) of CEO’s report] are:

(a) the 4th Criminal Law Conference
2019. This was an excellent
collaboration between the AGC,
Singapore Academy of Law,
Association of Criminal Lawyers of
Singapore and Law Society. More
needs to be, and will be, done in the
training space for our criminal lawyers;

(b) the Litigation Conference 2019.

It is a sign of the stature of this
conference when the Senior Minister of
State for Law and Health, Edwin Tong
chose to use his keynote address here
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to make major policy announcements.
These touched on civil litigation reforms
and details about the new intermediate
appellate court in the Supreme Court;
and

(c) the Family Conference 2019. A
special shout out goes to our Family

Law Practice Committee, Probate

Practice and Succession Planning
Committee and Muslim Law Practice
Committee. They joined hands to
collaborate on this 2-day workshop
providing a multifaceted view of Family
Practice and expanding on the theme

of “Supporting, Healing, Reconstructing”.

While landmark conferences make for
headlines, we did not, and will never, forget
that we need to cross-subsidise a number of
our offerings to ensure that training continues
to be affordable to our practitioners who
need to secure the mandatory CPD points.

In this regard, our CPD Day continues to be
a hit. Kudos to our practitioners who pay it
back to the profession by imparting wisdom,
knowledge and skills in this and many other
settings. The profession’s standards and
quality will only be maintained if our distinctive
ethos of sharing know-how and knowledge is
sustained for the long haul.

6. Technology

| have said many things about technology

in different speeches. | shall not reiterate
them here. It is a source of immense pride

for me to see what the Legal Productivity and
Innovation Department headed by Stefanie
Lim with the operational drive of our CEO,
Delphine Loo Tan, has achieved despite being
a fledgling department [see (11) of CEO’s
Report]. The 4-pronged strategy adopted by
the department - needs analysis, capability
development, cost management and marketing
advantage - continues to yield dividends in
retooling and (new) tooling our profession.
Critical top line findings of a sector wide
technology study of law firms and in-house
counsel surveyed in 2018 (supported by

Annual Report 2019
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Ministry of Law and Singapore Academy of
Law) have been shared with the profession
via an effective infographic. We still have our
work cut out for us in terms of tech adoption
(baseline and advanced including Al) by the
profession. Through our ongoing Tech-celerate
for Law (a public-private partnership between
Ministry of Law, Enterprise Singapore, IMDA
and Law Soc), we continue to be strategic and
intentional to prepare our law firms for tech
disruptions, catalyse law firms and lawyers’
technology journeys from baseline technology
adoption to more advanced technology
offerings (including electronic discovery and
due diligence). The endgame is to empower
our Singapore law practices to focus on
delivering enhanced legal services. This
future-readying to surmount digital disruption
will only serve to increase our lawyers’
competitiveness not just locally but also
regionally and globally.

One of the standout features this year is the
launch of SmartLaw Guild on 15 May 2019.
This is a privileged “club membership” for
SmartLaw certified law firms and successful
applicants of past and present tech support
schemes. Through SmartLaw Guild, we

have taken important steps to create a
community of like-minded practitioners. These
are forerunners who will showcase their
experiences and innovative offerings for other
members. SmartLaw Guild is also a platform
to share strategies, best practices, trends and
resources and also enjoy discounts for relevant
seminars. Encouragingly, more than 200 law
firms have adopted progressive technologies.
These are the digitally ready and SMART
lawyers among our midst. May many others
of you who have yet to start the tech journey
jump in on the bandwagon.

Working complementarily with our invaluable
partners, SAL, the Judiciary and Ministry of
Law, we will continue to do our level best to
stimulate innovation and nurture technology
adoption in the profession.

/19



7. Consultations

We continued as in previous years to actively
engage in consultations with the Government
on draft legislation and the administration
and practice of law in Singapore. At times,
this was via public consultations and, at other
times, private consultations with the Law
Ministry. Specific details of the consultations
are found in (4) of CEO’s report. A massive
exercise involved the civil justice reforms [see
(4) of CEO's report]. The Bar responded
splendidly. Substantial, substantive feedback
was received in the form of survey responses
and townhalls. These were combined with
data-driven analytics, Singapore jurisprudence
research, comparative law studies and

a multidisciplinary approach of law and
economics. The end result: a magnum opus
(the “mother of all submissions”) submitted to
Ministry of Law. A sequel piece on the same
theme involving costs has a longer tail. Even
as | pen this, a further submission will be
made to the Government later this year. We
have a vision sketched for the policymakers
to consider; we have mooted a proposed
Costs Commission. But we are also aiming
for low hanging fruit. The first order of things
is to redress historical inequities and ensure
costs better reflect present market conditions,
inflationary pressures and the costs of

doing business. That way, P&P costs can be
commercially realistic for civil litigators.

8. Mission

We continue to grow from strength to strength
in our Lawyers Go Global Mission trips. For
the reporting period, it has been Sri Lanka,
Beijing (China), Japan and Jakarta (Indonesia)
[see 9(a) of CEO’s report]. There has been
positive response from practitioners seeking

to regionalise their practices in a strategic
fashion. Law Soc’s aim is to open doors for
our members (especially our smaller and
medium-sized practices yet to venture to these
countries) to expand and grow their practices.
We promote our practitioners during these
trips according to their specialist expertise.
Our objective is to position for cross-border

Annual Report 2019
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deals or disputes (whether inbound or
outbound work) by collaborating intelligently
with professionals from these destination
countries. The feedback has been positive and
we effectively “hunt as a pack”. A special

note of commendation goes out to Shawn Toh,
Director of International Relations and his team.
They have become more and more experienced
and professional with every trip organised.

Our strategy with MOUs [see (9¢) of CEO's
report] is to operationalise strongly for the
bilateral benefit of both our Bar and our MOU
partners. So, it is also a means to an end and
not just for diplomatic ties or international
relations. We are intentional to grow economic
ties for our practices and professionals.

An exemplar is the Exchange Programme

with Guangdong Lawyers Association. | am
grateful to Exco Member Daniel Koh for his
excellent work in spearheading the beachhead
reciprocal exchange programme.

9. Move to Maxwell Chambers Suites

The second last part of my report focusses

on the first part of CEQO’s report. Candidate
for the greatest move of the year is not an
overseas mission but our move, Law Soc’s
move to Maxwell Chambers Suites (MCS)

on 2 August 2019. As | wrote in my Law Soc
Gazette message on this, we are moving

our Service Centre location to serve you,

the members, better. Details of MCS are set
out in (1) of CEQ’s report. Members will be
invited to our launch in the last quarter. We
will showcase its features and functions for
members to use and enjoy on that occasion.

| shall not say more now but leave you to
have a visual appreciation when the time
comes for us to host you during your visit.
Council and Secretariat are optimistic that the
new premises will catapult and catalyse our
fulfilment of our mission and vision. MCS must
become a cosy, conducive, casual and caring
place for members that will foster collegiality
and camaraderie. Home is where the heart
is. We remain quietly confident that as our
membership grows over time, MCS will grow
on our members.
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We are grateful to the Law Ministry for
procuring a reduced rental and subvention

to make this MCS move possible. We
acknowledge that a pivotal consideration
underlying our move was the strong support by
the Law Ministry. | am also appreciative to Vice-
President Rajaram and Treasurer Tito for their
starring roles in teaming with me to liaise with
the Law Ministry to realise this societal dream.

10. Economic Review

As shared in CEO’s Report [see 2(e)], we have
been taking steps first to conceptualise, and
then to organise ourselves into 7 focus groups.
In the light of an important “Conversations”
dialogue with Chief Justice Sundaresh Menon,
after the year under review, Council has
agreed to restructure the Economic Review
Committee into a single Economic Council.
That will focus on rolling out immediate action
steps (with Council’s endorsement) and a
holistic set of streamlined recommendations. Of
course, the higher hanging fruit will be thought
leadership and a considered review report.

It goes without saying that economic reforms,
given the prioritization of economic health of
our law firms will be a major agenda for the
Society, in the next lap, with appropriate (and
immediate, where necessary) action steps to
be effected where feasible.

Conclusion

Last but not least, | record my sincere
appreciation to my Exco and Council
colleagues in 2019. The team is experienced
and have niche, expert views on a variety

of practice areas. They bring a diversity of
perspectives to the table but are united with

a singular focus. Collaborating with other
stakeholders of the administration of justice,
we aspire to make the legal profession a better
place for every lawyer.

| am also grateful to CEO Delphine Loo Tan
and all our staff for their unstinting dedication
and diligence to sharpen and strengthen
services for our members and the public. They
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operationalise the vision and execute the
decisions of Council so that Law Soc continues
to be efficient and effective.

We continue to welcome all feedback and
input from members on how we can improve
programmes, practice and the profession even
as we remain ready and resilient to overcome
present and future challenges.

Considering what we have weathered in the
past decades of our history, | am confident
that our society, this Society, of smart lawyers
will remain alert, nimble, responsive and retool
to be good, better and best in class to serve
our clients and the public.

Gregory Vijayendran, SC
President
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OUR PEOPLE

CEO'S REPORT

The key activities and initiatives of the Law
Society of Singapore during the period

1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019

are outlined as follows.

1. New Premises

We moved to our new office at Maxwell
Chamber Suites on 2 August 2019 from

39 South Bridge Road, the place we have
called home since 1996. The former Red

Dot building, Maxwell Chamber Suites is a
conserved heritage building and part of the
expanded Maxwell Chambers, the leading
Alternate Dispute Resolution (ADR) complex
in the region. Our new premises span some
9,700 square feet and include 5 small meeting
rooms and a members’ lounge on the first floor
as well as a seminar room on the second floor
that can accommodate up to 100 participants.

Our new office address is 28 Maxwell Road,
#01-03 Maxwell Chambers Suite, Singapore
069120. Our main telephone number (+65
6538 2500), fax number (+65 6533 5700),
and DID numbers of our staff remain unchanged.
The Secretariat’s operating hours remain at 9am
to 5.45pm on Mondays to Fridays.

We are confident that the new premises will
enable us to meet our objectives to equip the
legal profession to meet present and future
challenges and provide a conducive setting to
foster camaraderie among our members. We
continue to own the shophouse at 39 South
Bridge Road which we have rented out to
cover the rental of our new office.

2. Membership and Member Care

As of 31 August 2019, the Society has 5,920
Practitioner Members, 56 Associate Members,
187 Non-Practitioner Members, and 13
Honorary Members. 529 lawyers were called
during Mass Call this year and we expect our
membership to increase to close to, or even

Annual Report 2019

exceed, 6,000 members by the end of 2019.
(a) Women in Practice

Building on the success of the taskforce set

up in March 2018 to examine issues faced by
women lawyers, a formal Standing Committee
of the Law Society named the “Women in
Practice Committee” was instituted at the start
of 2019. The Committee continues to expand
on the taskforce’s work to:

(i) Represent, encourage and provide
for the entry, retention and
advancement of women lawyers in
legal practice in Singapore;

(ii) Protect the interests of women
lawyers in legal practice in Singapore;

(iii) 1dentify, highlight and assist in
eradicating gender-based harassment
or discrimination in legal practice;

(iv) Raise awareness about issues faced
by women lawyers in legal practice;

(v) Create and enhance awareness
of contribution to the legal practice
and the development of the law by
women lawyers;

(vi) Provide mentoring and support
opportunities for women lawyers in
legal practice;

(vii) Promote welfare and wellness to
women lawyers in legal practice; and

(viii) Provide a forum to promote the
exchange of information and ideas on
the above matters amongst all members
of the Law Society of Singapore, both
male and female.
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To better understand the needs of women
lawyers and the issues that they face and
following from a month-long “Women in
Practice Survey” in September 2018, 5
roundtables were conducted from May to
July 2019 with various groups from the legal
fraternity to gather their views on women in
practice. The results of the survey, coupled
with feedback gleaned from the roundtables,
will enable the Women in Practice Committee
to publish a report in the coming months
containing recommendations for retaining and
advancing women in private practice.

The Women in Practice Committee also
organises regular events to not only

help inspire and motivate fellow female
practitioners, but to also encourage them

to develop skills that would be useful in the
progression of their careers. The “Change

and Impact” event in January 2019 touched
on the themes of “Women in Leadership” and
“Women in Technology”. April 2019’s “Inspire
and Aspire” was a networking event that saw
members interacting with The Honourable
Justice Judith Prakash and other senior female
practitioners of the Bar. “Pushing Base, Brand
and Boundaries” in July 2019 had Minister
Indranee Rajah, SC, join 3 other female
lawyers on a panel to share strategies on what
lawyers can do to identify their unique brand
and advise on other unique skills necessary for
keeping relevant and abreast of a changing
marketplace.

(b) Young Lawyers

We continue to support young lawyers’
attendance at overseas conferences. We
updated the terms of our sponsorship so that in
2019, we have given or will be giving partial
sponsorship to 2 young lawyers to attend the
Inter-Pacific Bar Association (IPBA) Annual
Conference (held in April 2019) and another 2
young lawyers to attend the LAWASIA Annual
Conference (to be held in November 2019),
as well as fully sponsoring one lawyer to the
International Bar Association (IBA) Annual
Conference (to be held in September 2019).
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(c) Members’ Support Schemes

As part of our efforts to enhance support for
members, we launched “Career Path”, a new
pastoral scheme, on 6 May 2019. Through
this scheme, members can consult with career
guidance or counselling volunteers on career
and work related issues. There are currently
3 counsellors under this scheme. Career Path
seeks to help members better understand
their strengths and weaknesses, in order to
chart his or her own career path, as well as
to address work related issues. This scheme is
not, however, intended to assist members with
job placement or career transition.

In addition, we procured a global 24 hours’
insurance group personal accident policy

for all members of the Society effective

1 November 2018. The Law Society of
Singapore is the Master Policy Holder and
each of our members is automatically covered
with an assured sum of $$50,000. The policy
provides coverage in situations of Accidental
Death and Total Permanent Disability and
Accidental Causes.

(d) Practice Pal Scheme

To ensure continuance of members’ practice,
the Practice Pal Scheme was launched in
February 2019. This Scheme serves as an
interim stop gap measure to facilitate the
smooth running of a Singapore law practice if
there are unforeseen events which impede the
practitioner’s ability to continue administering
his or her firm.

Under the Scheme, members, especially sole
practitioners, are encouraged to appoint in
advance a fellow practitioner who is ready,
willing and able to act as a Practice Pal who
can step in to attend hearings, meet court
deadlines and temporarily manage clients’
ongoing files on behalf of a member who is
temporarily indisposed. The aim is to overcome
or reduce any difficulties or inconvenience
for members’ clients and the practice. This
Scheme will be particularly beneficial for sole
proprietors and small firm practitioners.
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In the unfortunate situation where the member
passes away, the Practice Pal is permitted only
to help in administering the law firm practice
and taking care of matters unrelated to the
estate. At all times, the Practice Pal is expected
to liaise with the deceased member’s legal
personal representative on matters relating to
the practice until such time that the nominated
solicitor assumes his/her role. We hope that
the Scheme can also provide assistance to a
member’s personal representative or other
persons concerned.

(e) Economic Review Committee

Arising from members’ feedback received

at the Economic Dialogue in June 2018 on

the issues and challenges faced by members
regarding the economic health of their law
practices, a Special Executive Council Meeting
was convened in October 2018 which resolved
that an Economic Review Committee (ERC) be
established. The ERC (co-chaired by President
Gregory Vijayendran, SC and Immediate

Past President Thio Shen Yi, SC) has been
sub-divided into the following 7 focus groups:

(i) Law Firm Management in the
21st Century

(ii) Alternative Business Structure and
Regulatory Sandbox

(iii) Blue Ocean Legal Services and
Economic Opportunities

(iv) Technology and Law

(v) Survival of Small Firms in the
21st Century

(vi) Training Needs and Retooling
of Lawyers

(vii) Publicity
Each of the Focus Groups has been tasked to
look into their assigned areas and to submit

their reports with recommended follow-up
action plans.
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3. Advisory and Guidances
(a) Vulnerable Witness Best Practices Toolkit

We first issued the “Vulnerable Witness Best
Practices Toolkit 1” last August on the cross-
examination of vulnerable witnesses, outlining
what legal practitioners may wish to bear in
mind when handling the cross-examination

of child witnesses and complaints of sexual
offences. An updated “Best Practices Toolkit”
was launched in August 2019 to ensure
alignment with the recommendations made
by the Penal Code Review Committee and to
include tips on the cross-examination of two
other sets of vulnerable witnesses - witnesses
with a mental disorder, as well as the elderly.

Since every child, victim of a sexual offence, or
elderly person, or each type of mental disorder
will somehow differ from the next, the toolkit
provides general tips to advocates and are

not meant to be prescriptive nor exhaustive

on how to approach the cross-examination of
vulnerable witnesses, which should ultimately be
left to the discretion of an experienced counsel.

(b) Review of 137 Practice Directions and

Guidance Notes in light of the Professional
Conduct Rules 2015

The Law Society’s Practice Directions and
Guidance Notes have been fully updated and
aligned with the Legal Profession (Professional
Conduct) Rules 2015 (S 706/2015). In
addition, the update aims to standardise the
nomenclature used and align the content with
current practices. The design of our Ethics
Portal has also been refreshed to make it more
user friendly.

(c) Art of Family Lawyering

Subsequent to the addition of rules 15A and
15B to the Legal Profession (Professional
Conduct) Rules 2015 (S 706/2015), the Family
Law Practice Committee spearheaded the
development of a best practices guide, “The Art
of Family Lawyering (2019 Special Edition)”,
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which was published on 9 January 2019.

The publication contains 52 best practice

tips and numerous practical pointers on how
to buttress constructive problem solving,
conciliation and the prevention of conflict of
interest. This is to aid family law practitioners
in the adoption of a constructive and
conciliatory approach to the resolution of
family proceedings while having regard to
and focuses on taking a child-centric approach
towards resolving issues that involve or

relate to children. Members may access the
publication from the Members’ Library online.

(d) Professional Ethics Digest 2019

The Professional Ethics Digest 2019 was
published in July 2019, with a complimentary
copy given to every Singapore law practice.
The Digest comprises 26 illustrations based

on past guidances given by the Advisory
Committee of the Professional Conduct Council
to legal practitioners on the application of the
Legal Profession (Professional Conduct) Rules
2015. Key topics covered in the Digest include
conflicts of interest, referral fees and executive
appointments.

(e) Ad hoc Advisories

The Personal Injury and Property Damage
(PIPD) Committee issued a best practices note
(on 10 April 2019) to provide helpful tips for
lawyers who intend to and/or are acting for
foreign workers in their PIPD claims.

We also issued an advisory on 22 May 2019
to bring to members’ attention a worrying
trend of scammers and criminals targeting
firms which do conveyancing work.

4. Feedback to Consultations and
Law Reform

We have maximised the opportunities given
to us to provide constructive feedback on
behalf of the legal profession to the Judiciary,
the Ministry of Law, the Attorney-General’s
Chambers and other Government bodies

Annual Report 2019

OUR PEOPLE

and stakeholders, through consultations open
to the public as well as during closed door
consultations. Some examples are as follows:

(i) Ministry of Law’s Consultation
on Intellectual Property Dispute
Resolution Reforms from 26 October

2018 to 10 December 2018;

(ii) Ministry of Law’s Consultation on
Proposed Reforms to the Civil Justice
System from 26 October 2018 to

31 January 2019;

(iii) Ministry of Law’s Consultation on
Draft Intellectual Property Dispute
Resolution Bill from 11 March 2019 to
5 April 2019;

(iv) Ministry of Law’s Consultation
on Proposed Amendments to the
Reciprocal Enforcement of Foreign
Judgments Act from 15 April 2019 to
24 May 2019;

(v) Ministry of Law’s Consultation on
the Protection from Online Falsehoods
and Manipulation Bill in April 2019;

(vi) Ministry of Law’s Consultation on
International Arbitration Act from

26 June 2019 to 21 August 2019;

(vii) Urban Redevelopment Authority’s
Consultation on Digitalising Qualified
Person’s Certificate for Notice of Payment
and Electronic Payment for Progress
Payments in July and August 2019;

(viii) InNfocomm Media Development
Authority’s Consultation on the Review
of the Electronic Transactions Act from

27 June 2019 to 27 August 2019;

(ix) Ministry of Law’s Consultation on

Draft Singapore Convention on
Mediation Bill (August 2019).

There were also other occasions where
we were privately consulted on proposed

/115



amendments or initiatives by the Judiciary
and the Ministry of Law, which included
proposed amendments to the Supreme Court
of Judicature Act to introduce a new court
division which will sit as an appellate court.

The Ministry of Law engaged our Criminal
Practice Committee on 6 September 2018 to
present the Penal Code Review Committee
Report to our criminal practitioners.

Our committee as well as other criminal
practitioners offered valuable feedback in

a subsequent session on 1 November 2018
which was well-received by the Ministry of
Law. On 14 June 2019, the Criminal Practice
Committee met officers from the Ministry of
Home Affairs and the Attorney-General’s

Chambers on proposed amendments to the
Road Traffic Act.

5. Law Society Alternative Dispute
Resolution Schemes (Schemes)

The ADR Committee, with the assistance of the
Representation and Law Reform department,
has undertaken a branding exercise to market
the Schemes to our members, businesses and
the wider public. The branding exercise is
focused on producing a variety of physical and
digital collaterals that raise awareness of the
Schemes through online and offline platforms.
Details of other initiatives with respect to the
Schemes can be found in the ADR Committee
Report below.

6. Amendment of the Legal
Profession Act

The Legal Profession (Amendment) Bill 2018
was passed in Parliament in March 2018.
Amongst the amendments were as follows:

(a) Unclaimed Client Monies

Law practices, after exhausting all reasonable
efforts to return the unclaimed money to

the client, will soon be able to transfer such
money to the Law Society upon satisfying the
application requirements. The amendments
aim to make it administratively easier for the
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lawyers or the law practice involved to transfer
the money to the Law Society and close the
client account if necessary. Under the new
framework, a lawyer who pays unclaimed
client monies to the Law Society will be subject
to record-keeping requirements even after the
money is transferred. We envisaged that the
unclaimed client monies will be utilised for pro
bono matters. The Unclaimed Client Monies
fund is expected to be operational in the last
quarter of 2019.

(b) “Softer” Disciplinary Powers

The amendments to introduce additional
remedial measures such as counselling and
training to the disciplinary framework of
lawyers are expected to come into effect by
the end of this year. These measures will allow
for greater flexibility and nuances in dealing
with root causes of less serious disciplinary
cases involving minor ethical transgressions,
for example, errors and lapses arising from
genuine ignorance or inexperience that are
not suggestive of a serious want of probity

on the part of the errant lawyer. The rules
defining remedial measures are in the process
of being drawn up.

7. Legal Research and Development
Department

From the start of 2019, the Legal Research

and Development (LRD) department has
expanded its scope of work to provide
Secretariat support to the Cybersecurity and
Data Protection Committee and the Information
Technology Committee. From late July 2019,
LRD has also taken over the Secretariat
support for the Advisory Committee of the
Professional Conduct Council, which gives
guidance to legal practitioners in Singapore on
ethical issues.

The primary work of LRD continues to be to
promote thought leadership on professional
and practice issues, through the publication of
regular articles in the Singapore Law Gazette
and other publications. At the same time, LRD
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provides thought leadership to the Council on
a wide range of issues, through the drafting of
decision papers and preparation of legal data
trends reports.

In addition, LRD was involved in the following
maijor initiatives in 2019:

(a) Feedback on Civil Justice Reforms

Between November 2018 and January 2019,
LRD assisted Council to research and draft a
detailed response to the Ministry of Law on
the public consultation on the proposed civil
justice reforms. The response was based

on a multifaceted approach of data-driven
analytics, comparative law analysis, law and
economics as well as Singapore jurisprudence.
Our response was submitted to the Ministry of
Law at end January 2019.

Subsequently, we conducted an online survey
of the Bar on party-and-party costs (P&P costs)
in the Supreme Court and State Courts, which
culminated in our detailed representations to
the Ministry of Law in end March 2019. These
representations emphasised the Bar’s views
that P&P costs should be revised upwards as:
(i) it is in the public interest for a winning party
not to be disproportionately out-of-pocket

in litigation; and (ii) P&P costs need to be
commercially realistic for disputes practitioners,
accounting for market conditions, inflationary
pressures and costs of living.

Based on a considerable amount of views
received, our representations also mooted the
establishment of a Costs Commission to study
and focus on the issue of costs afresh from

a long-term perspective, and on a regular
and permanent basis with more rigorous and
holistic analysis. Council is in the process of
finalising its views on the proposed Costs
Commission.

(b) Legal Fact Check Facility
In June 2019, LRD launched the Law Society’s

Legal Fact Check Service (the Service), the
first of its kind in Singapore, to address the
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danger of legal fake news. The Service is part
of our efforts, as a responsible civil society
organisation, to provide members of the
public with reliable and accurate responses to
general legal questions arising out of current
news reports. Topics covered by the Service
to date include compensation orders and the

Vulnerable Adults Act.

8. Electronic Communication

In addition to the weekly Tuesday e-bulletin

Jus News, we introduced in November 2018
another e-bulletin each Thursday, called Weekly
Pulse. Weekly Pulse carries important Law
Society news that we wish to bring to members’
attention. Weekly Pulse differs from Jus News

in that the latter also carries third party practice
news, such as those issued by the courts and
government agencies whereas Weekly Pulse
focuses only on Law Society news.

In addition to these two weekly e-bulletins,

we also disseminate almost on a daily

basis, eblasts (EDMs) which carry specific
announcements on the Society’s initiatives and
programmes, including CPD programmes.

We continue to publish the Singapore Law
Gazette in digital form on its own portal at
www.lawgazette.com.sg.

We aim to revamp our website by the end of
this year and will launch a brand new look for
the website, with easier navigation and a user
friendly interface.

9. Globalisation and International
Relations

(a) Lawyers Go Global

Following the successful Lawyers Go Global
(LG2) missions to Guangzhou and Sydney in
the previous reporting period, we organised
4 other LG2 trips in this reporting period:

Colombo, Sri Lanka from 10 to 14 September
2018; Beijing, China from 22 January 2019
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to 26 January 2019; Tokyo, Japan from 11 to
14 March 2019; and Jakarta, Indonesia at the
end of August 2019.

Over the next 2 years, we plan to organise at
least 5 more trips to countries of interest to its
members.

(b) Exchange Programme with Guangdong
Lawyers Association

The Law Society and Guangdong Lawyers
Association (GLA) jointly organised an
exchange programme for lawyers in the
Guangdong region to be attached to
Singapore law firms for a 2-week period from
11 March 2019 to 24 March 2019. 21 lawyers
from GLA participated in this inaugural
exchange programme. In addition to the
attachment, we also organised various visits
over the 2-week period for the participants to
visit other legal institutions in Singapore such
as Ministry of Law, State Courts, Singapore
International Arbitration Centre and Singapore
International Commercial Court.

In August 2019, 11 Singapore lawyers went
to Guangzhou/Shenzhen to be attached to
China’s law firms as part of the reciprocal
exchange programme.

(c) Signing of MOUs with Foreign
Lawyers Associations

The Law Society entered into MOUs with
the following foreign lawyers’ associations
during the reporting period:

Date l/‘lf‘r’nvs g‘f, Eig:y Association
30 September 2018 Zl::l I;;‘:/\;vljsociety of England
7 January 2019 Daini Tokyo Bar Association
26 January 2019 Tianjin Lawyers Association
26 April 2019 Korean Bar Association
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(d) Committee-Initiated Mission Trips

(i) Intellectual Property Practice Committee’s
Mission Trip to Hong Kong

The Intellectual Property Practice Committee
(IP Committee) went on a mission trip to

Hong Kong from 4 to 7 December 2018. The
objectives of the trip were to explore business
opportunities, networking and to build on
existing linkages with the Law Society of Hong
Kong. The trip coincided with the Business of
IP Asia Forum (Forum), co-organised by the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council which
was held from 6 to 7 December 2018. The

IP Committee attended the Forum and was
provided with opportunities to network with
various service providers.

(ii) Court Practice Chairpersons’ Committee’s
Mission Trip to Beijing and Guangzhou

The Court Practice Chairpersons Committee
(CPCC), formerly known as “State Courts

and Family Justice Courts Committee”, went
on a mission trip to Beijing and Guangzhou
from 25 November to 1 December 2018.

The objectives of the trip were to learn

about the latest legal and technological
developments in the said regions, networking
and to explore the increasing relevance of
alternative dispute resolution in resolving
disputes (including those arising from the Belt
and Road Initiative and the Greater Bay Area
Initiative. Our delegation for this mission trip
comprised 26 Council members, Chairpersons
and representatives from various practice
committees, other members of the Law Society
and Secretariat staff.

(iii) Court Practice Chairpersons’ Committee’s
Mission Trip to Wellington, New Zealand

The CPCC will be going on another mission
trip to Wellington, New Zealand from 1 to
5 September 2019. Our delegation for the
mission trip will comprise about 20 Council
members, Chairpersons and representatives
from various practice committees, and
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Secretariat. The delegation will meet with
representatives of the New Zealand Law
Society, New Zealand Bar Association, New
Zealand Law Commission, and the New
Zealand Supreme Court, among others,

to discuss current issues in New Zealand
and Singapore legal practice and explore
opportunities for collaboration.

10. Continuing Professional
Development (CPD)

(a) Overview

The CPD Committee, together with the CPD
Department of Secretariat and several other
committees, has organised many conferences
and seminars to help members upskill and
stay on top of legal developments. We also
engage closely with the Singapore Institute of
Legal Education (SILE) to ensure that courses
with contents which are relevant for the legal
practice of our members are duly accredited
with CPD points.

We have actively managed the operating costs
of providing such conferences and seminars and
pursued sponsorships to ensure that programme
fees are kept affordable for members. Seminar
fees have remained unchanged since 2012

and the average fee for a 2-day conference is
53485 (inclusive of GST) - well below similar
conferences organised by other legal training
providers. The following summary of the CPD
activities we have organised from 2015 to 2018
shows the growth in the number of participants
each year, a testament to the relevance of our
programmes.

Year | Total no. of No. of Total no. of
CPD activities conferences | participants
organised organised | (both
(inclusive of members
advocacy & non-
related members)
programmes
and e-learning
programmes)

2015 |67 6 5,476

2016 |90 3 6,281

2017 |100 5 7,738

2018 |95 3 7,526
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(b) 4th Criminal Law Conference 2019
(6-7 March 2019)

Jointly organised with AGC, SAL and

ACLS, the theme for the 4th Criminal Law
Conference 2019 was “Seeing Justice Done:
Enhancing the Integrity of the Criminal

Justice Process”. Criminal justice is multi-
faceted and encompasses many dimensions.
While substantive criminal law represents an
important part of the equation, as a criminal
justice system matures, due process safeguards
will be an increasingly significant part of the
criminal legal landscape. This Conference
discussed the many facets of the criminal
justice process, including recent legislative
amendments and developments in technology,
from the perspectives of the various
stakeholders to understand how they serve to
further the ends of justice and to deliberate on
the way forward. 220 participants attended
the Conference.

(c) Litigation Conference 2019
(22-23 April 2019)

Organised by our Civil Practice Committee,
the focus of the 2-day Conference was the
Civil Justice Reforms. International, regional
and Singapore speakers from common law
and civil law jurisdictions took part in panel
discussions exchanging experiences and
shared with conference delegates their views
on the significant change in the landscape of
Singapore civil litigation and what litigation
lawyers of all ages may expect in the future.
The Conference was also a collaboration with
the Supreme Court and State Courts, who
contributed panellists with whom participants
engaged on how the proposed reforms are
expected to be implemented. 341 participants
signed up for the Conference.

(d) Family Conference 2019 - “Supporting,
Healing, Reconstructing” (3-4 July 2019)

Organised by our Family Law Practice
Committee, Probate Practice and Succession
Planning Committee and the Muslim Law
Practice Committee, this 2-day Conference
encompassed both specialized panel sessions
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as well as smaller workshops, which discussed
the various issues pertaining to Family Law

to practitioners of all levels of seniority
providing a holistic and multi-faceted view on
the Family Practice. Expanding on the theme
of “Supporting, Healing, Reconstructing”,
experts and professional spoke on a range of
diverse and important issues including safety
in relationships, parental alienation, estate
planning, mental capacity issues, mental health
issues in practice, comparative review on
jurisdictional issues in the Family Justice Court
and Syariah Court and practical knowledge
like improving court craft skills. Delegates also
had an opportunity to network with fellow
practitioners, distinguished panellists and
speakers to exchange insights and knowledge
which will be useful for their practice.
Additional special bonus sessions were also
included for both days of the Conference.
253 participants were at the Conference.

(e) The College of Law (Australia)

Following the Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) which we had signed with the College
of Law (Australia) (COL) on 19 March 2018,
COL is providing a suite of online CPD
programmes for any of our members who
signs up for Law Society’s Unlimited e-Learning
programme 2019. This expanded list of
e-learning programmes will assist members in
fulfilling their CPD requirements.

Further, in partnership with COL, the
programme for the 21st run of the Legal
Practice Management Course which took
place from 26 to 27 February 2019 was also
expanded. COL supplemented the previous
curriculum with 2 online modules - Business
Planning and Management of Self. These 2
modules provided participants guidance on
how to prepare and implement a business plan
to set goals and delineate the future direction
of the practice, and examined the underlying
causes of unproductive behaviours, and
focuses on how to override these behaviours
and adopts “habit of excellence” respectively.
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11. Boosting Tech Adoption

Our Legal Productivity and Innovation (LPI)
Department continues to adopt a 4-pronged
approach to boost tech adoption by
Singapore law practices - needs analysis,
capability development, cost management and
marketing advantage. LPI has launched a new
microsite (https://www.lawsociety.org.sg/lpi/)
as a one-stop portal for our members to easily
access information on our latest news, events
and initiatives.

(a) Needs Analysis:

Legal Industry Technology Study & In-House
Counsel Survey

Following our sector-wide technology study

of law firms and in-house counsel survey in
2018 which were supported by the Ministry

of Law and the Singapore Academy of Law
respectively, we collated the responses and
released the topline results in the form of an
infographic and a summary report to members
on 4 January 2019.

The key findings from both the Legal Industry
Technology Study and In-House Counsel
Survey are as follows:

* Technology is changing the way that
legal services are being delivered.
Singapore law practices are still in the
early stages of responding to this
disruptive force.

* Nevertheless, decision makers in
Singapore law firms recognise the
value of legal technology. 88% agreed
that technology boosts the delivery

of legal services, while 82% agreed
that technology adoption is crucial to
stay competitive.

* While technology adopters agreed
that legal technology helps to
increase productivity, saves time and
reduces administrative workload, it is
not yet seen as a business “game
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changer” (only 52% of decision
makers in Singapore law firms see its
potential as a value proposition for the
firm in terms of elevating practice

or enabling business). On the other
hand, in-house counsel are facing cost
pressures and will look to legal
technology to deal with document
volumes and alleviate cost pressures.

* Key challenges for law firms to adopt
technology include: (a) high cost of
adoption and maintenance; (b) know-
how to decide which solution to adopt;
and (c) how much to invest.

* Data security remains a key area
of concern, in addition to unproven
returns on investment (ROI) and costs
for small and medium-sized law firms.

* The adoption of legal technology
looks set to rise. 75% of decision
makers believe that they need to
increase the level of technology
adoption; more than 40% added that
they would invest more in legal
technology in the next two years.

(b) Capability Development
i. Events & Workshops

A series of SmartLaw events and product
training sessions were organised in
collaboration with legal technology vendors
to create more awareness and educate
members on technology. Following the launch
of the Tech-celerate for Law programme, we
also organised a 1-day conference on 15
May 2019 which featured talks and panel
discussions exploring issues relating to legal
technology strategies, implications of Al and
the digital era on the future legal workforce
and the innovation experience of other sectors.

During the Reporting Period, 10 events and

workshops were organised with more than
480 participants.
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SmartLaw Tech-celerate

Events for Law Events Others

4 events 3 events 3 events

82 participants | 375 participants | 27 participants

ii. Smartlaw Guild

The SmartLaw Guild, a new initiative launched
by the Law Society on 15 May 2019, creates
a platform to share strategies, best practices,
trends and resources to gear our law practices
for the future. By bringing together like-
minded practitioners under the SmartLaw
Guild, we aim to tailor our initiatives for these
forerunners and showcase their experiences
for other members of the profession.

The SmartLaw Guild membership comprises
Smartlaw certified law firms as well as
successful applicants of our past and present
technology support schemes. We are
heartened to note that to date, over 200 of
such law firms have adopted progressive
technologies to keep themselves at the
forefront of productivity and innovation.

(c) Cost Management
Tech-celerate for Law

Tech-celerate for Law is a joint initiative by

the Law Society of Singapore, the Ministry

of Law, Enterprise Singapore, and the Info-
communications Media Development Authority
(IMDA\). Building on the success of the Tech
Start for Law programme, Tech-celerate

for Law prepares Singapore Law Practices
(SLPs) for future disruptions beyond baseline
technology adoption, empowering SLPs to
focus on delivering enhanced legal services,
strengthening their capabilities and increasing
their competitiveness in the global landscape.
Under Tech-celerate for Law, qualified

SLPs are able to choose and adopt legal
technology solutions from 7 pre-scoped solution
categories from baseline to advanced, with

up to 70% funding support in the first year of
implementation. This programme was launched
on 2 May 2019 and ends on 1 May 2020.
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(d) Marketing Advantage
Smartlaw Certification

We aim to provide law firms who have
adopted technology to improve productivity
and increase their business capabilities with

a marketing advantage under the Smartlaw
certification scheme. The certification aims

to give recognition to law practices which
have: (1) adopted a practice management or
accounting software; (2) an online knowledge
database; and (3) an online presence (whether
through a marketing portal or their own
dedicated website) by allowing them to display
a “Smartlaw” logo on their websites and
marketing collaterals. As of 31 August 2019,
52 law firms have been SmartLaw certified.

Delphine Loo Tan
Chief Executive Officer
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TREASURER’'S REPORT

The financial year ended 31 March 2019 has
been a busy year for the Law Society.

The Finance Committee is a standing
committee of the Council of the Law Society of
Singapore. Our principal functions include:

* Working with the Secretariat to
prepare the Society’s overall budget
for Council’s approval;

* Working with the respective
Committees to prepare detailed
annual work plan budgets for
Council’s approval;

* Developing the financial and
investment policies and guidelines for
the Society;

* Reviewing the Society’s financial
investments and appointment of
bankers;

* Reviewing financial protocols and
internal controls of the Society;

* Ensuring financial accountability to
Council, the Society and its members;
and

* Generally aligning the Society’s
financial resources and procedures
with the overall objectives and goals
of the Society.

The Finance Committee comprises the Treasurer
and 7 other members. The members are Vice-
President M Rajaram, Adrian Tan, Adrian
Chan, Michael S Chia, Gary Pryke, Kuah Boon
Theng, SC and Dinesh Dhillon. We are assisted
in the discharge of our work by the Chief
Executive Officer Delphine Loo Tan and Finance
Department of the Secretariat. The Finance
Committee meets at least once a month.
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We acknowledge the fine work of Dinesh
Dhillon, who had carried on in his role as
Treasurer of the Law Society Pro Bono Services
for the second year running and his team.

This report covers the main highlights of the
financial performance of the Society during the

financial year ended 31 March 2019 (Current
Financial Year).

A. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE -
GENERAL FUND

The General Fund reported a before-tax
surplus of $396K for the Current Financial
Year (cf a before-tax surplus of $1.12 million
for the financial year ended 31 March 2018
(Previous Financial Year)). Total income in the
Current Financial Year decreased slightly by
0.4% from $7.52 million to $7.49 million whilst
total expenditure increased by $690K from
$6.4 million to $7.09 million.

1. Income

Our main income - subscriptions received
from members - maintained its 4% increase
as compared to the previous year from $5.25
million to $5.49 million. Number of practising
members who applied for/renewed their
practising certificates increased from 5,827
members to 6,087.

Net surplus (before overheads allocation) from
Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
programmes and Conferences decreased
slightly by $56K or 5% from $1.15 million to
$1.10 million.

Investment income and income from fixed
deposits increased by about 11%. Our revenue
from advertisements in the Society’s directory,

classifieds and online Law Gazette increased
by $49K or about 21% from $233K to $282K.
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2. Expenditure

Overall expenditure increased by 11% or
$690K from $6.40 million to $7.09 million due
to the following:

a. Increase in the Society’s mandatory
contribution to the SILE, from $544K in
the Previous Financial Year, to $566K,
in line with the increase in ordinary
members.

b. Increase in personnel expenditure
from $4.49 million to $4.82 million,
representing an increase of $328K
or 7%.

c. Increase in administrative expenses
from $0.86 million to $0.93 million or
about 8%, largely due to expenditure
related to the rental, depreciation &
maintenance of 37 South Bridge Road.

d. Expenditure for Council’s activities
(including meetings and special
projects) increased from $298K in the
Previous Financial Year to $429K with
more outreach to our stakeholders and
global outreach.

e. Expenditure on regulatory matters
increased to $314K compared to
Previous Financial Year of $122K due
to accruals for work done amounting to
about $120K at financial year end.

B. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE -
COMPENSATION FUND

There was a decrease in surplus from $1.06
million in the Previous Financial Year to $891K
due to a higher transfer in unclaimed moneys
under the Legal Profession Act First Schedule
Part Il Section 11(3) in the Previous Financial
Year.

A transfer of $354K (prior year: $346K) was
made to the Compensation Fund - Library.
This amount represented the accretions of
capital arising from the Compensation Fund.
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The Compensation Fund - Library was set up
for the purposes of purchasing or maintaining
a library for the use of the members.

C. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE -
LAW SOCIETY PRO BONO SERVICES

Law Society Pro Bono Services (the
Subsidiary) was incorporated on 4 January
2017 to take over the operations of Pro Bono
Learning, and Support Services, a division of
The Law Society of Singapore (the Division) as
a going concern.

There was an overall surplus of $739K for the
Current Financial Year, compared to a surplus
of $159K in the Previous Financial Year.

Key highlights are as follows:

a. Increase in income of 12.1% or
$577K to $5.34 million due partially
to the following:

* Donations from lawyers - increase
of $946K due to waiver of honorarium
and disbursements accrued in prior years

* NCSS Care and Share grant -
increase of $585K

* This was partially offset by a
decrease in grant received from the
Ministry of Law amounting to $1 million

b. Slight decrease in expenditure

of 0.07% or $S3K to $4.6 million, partly
attributable to:

* Decrease in fund-raising expenses
of $57K

* Decrease in office rental $13K
This was partially offset by an increase
in Criminal Legal Aid Scheme (CLAS)

Honorarium and disbursements amounting
to $72K.
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D. OTHER FUNDS

a. Other Funds comprises the Sports
Meet Fund, Welfare Fund, Library
Fund, Jus Curio Fund, Pastoral Care
Fund and Practice Resilience Fund.
Our new Practice Resilience Fund was
established to assist members, who are
proprietors of their own legal practice
and facing temporary financial difficulty
in relation to their practice, to meet
shortterm needs that will help them to
stay in practice.

b. Overall, there was a deficit of $27K
for the Other Funds (cf a deficit of
$52K in the Previous Financial Year).
The reduction in the deficit was mainly
due to the Malaysia/Singapore Bench
and Bar Games being hosted by
Malaysia in the Current Financial Year.

E. BALANCE SHEET

The key highlights of the balance sheet of the
Society as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

a. General Fund reserves stood at
$20.41 million, a slight increase of
about 1%.

b. General Fund total assets amounted
to $23.14 million, including $10.99
million being held as fixed deposits,
bank and cash balances, and $5.47
million being held as bonds and equity
investments.

c. Compensation Fund total assets
amounted to $16.07 million, including
$9.04 million being held as fixed
deposits, cash at bank and in hand,

and $6.61 million being held as bonds
and equity investments.

d. General Fund total liabilities stood
at $2.73 million, largely in relation
to advance payment of application

fees for practicing certificates for
FY2019/2020, which were received
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prior to 31 March 2019.

e. The Society had no external
borrowings.

f. The Society continues to invest in
blue-chip securities and bonds which
provide a conservative yet steady
return to keep up with inflation. The net
income from investments was $422K
(cf $463K in the Previous Financial
Year). There was a surplus of $493K

in the fair value reserve of the Society’s
investments (representing the increase
in the market value as at 31 March
2019 over the historical transacted price.

Conclusion

The Society’s strong financial performance
despite the increased activities and costs
challenges during the Current Financial Year is
in no small part due to the vigilance, controls
and efforts of the Society’s Chief Executive
Officer, Delphine Loo Tan and its Finance
Department. | record my sincere appreciation
for their sustained hard work throughout an
extremely busy year.

| also wish to thank each member of my
Finance Committee - Kuah Boon Theng,

SC, Adrian Tan, Adrian Chan, Gary Pryke,
Michael S Chia, Vice-President M Rajaram and
Dinesh Dhillon for their unwavering support,
counsel, guidance and contributions. The
Finance Committee continues to be mindful of
the financial needs of the Society, and at the
same time, exercise prudent financial direction
and controls in overseeing the funds of the
Society.
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The coming year will be an even busier one,
with the projected increase in the activities of
the Council and the various sub-committees,
and the move from its South Bridge Road
premises to Maxwell Chambers Suites at
Tanjong Pagar. The Society will continue

its hard work to contain costs despite the
expansion of activities and Secretariat staff
with the aim of adding value for its members.
The new Financial Year will see a dedicated
Investment Committee formed to manage the
reserves of the Society.

Tito Shane Isaac
Treasurer
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT

The Audit Committee (AC) is established by
the Council and the Chairperson and members
are appointed directly by the Council. The

AC comprises Chairperson, Michael Hwang
SC and two other members, Patrick Ang and
Robson Lee.

The external auditors, Baker Tilly TFW LLP,
issued a clean Audit Opinion on the financial

statements of the Society for the year ended
31 March 2019.

During the reporting year, Secretariat
evaluated and made improvements to internal
controls in the following areas:

* Bank authorised person mandate
Bank approval authority matrix
Payment cycle

Petty cash

* Approval authority for unbudgeted
and budgeted expenditure

The Secretariat will continue with its ongoing
efforts to evaluate and improve internal
controls across all operational and financial
processes. Greater emphasis will continue to
be placed on raising awareness to improve
internal controls and financial protocols.

The Society will be engaging an outsourced
internal auditor to help further strengthen the
governance framework.
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YEAR IN REVIEW

4
Seminar - Anti-Money Laundering
and Terrorism Financing

"

5
Seminar - Demystifying Data Protection Law in
Singapore: Learning from PDPC’s Cases

5,12, 19 AND 26
Seminar - Introductory Course to Arbitration

6
Seminar - Buyer Beware: Blockchain and the
Legal Landscape

v

10-14
Mission to Sri Lanka

11

Seminar - Navigating Professional Burnout:
Practical Strategies for Stress Management
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YEAR IN REVIEW

SEPTEMBER 2018

| a_ AT r = | l. imie i B

3rd Small Law Firms and State Courts & . i i o s
Family Justice Courts Committees’ Luncheon : ! -

13 .l. Wikl il R TTID T

13
How Learned Are You ... My Learned Friend
(Pub Quiz Social Event)

S

17
The Law Society Neutral Evaluation
& Determination Forum

\"

18
Seminar - Conveyancing Highlights 2018 -
Day One

19

Annual Lawyer-Doctor
Networking Session 2018

20
Seminar - Claims Involving Companies
and Misdirected Funds/Opportunities
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YEAR IN REVIEW

24
Seminar - Lawyers’ Undertakings

-3

25
Westlaw Asia Training Session

S

25
Seminar - Sanctions, Risk and Cross-Border
Investigations

“

28

Seminar - Globalisation of the
Legal Profession - A Comparative
Discussion of Singapore and Japan

o

28
AG’s Cup
2 OCTOBER

Family Justice Practice Forum 2018

2
Seminar - Legal Drafting Skills: Calling a
Spade a Spade and Writing for Effectiveness
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YEAR IN REVIEW

5
LSeminar - Certificate in
Paralegal Skills (Module 3)

™

S
Inter-Professional Games 2018 Closing Dinner

S

6
Seminar - Handling Financial
Experts in Court (Part 1)

N

9
SMARTLAW Event - The New Path to Legal
Innovation: Law, Tech & Collaboration

S

9
Seminar - GDPR (General Data Protection
Regulation): Q&A with Practitioners

N

11 & 12
Seminar - Handling Financial Experts in Court
(Part 2)

12
L PN IS SN Annual General Meeting

4 ? MEETING 20N3
:__ 'n._- B 4 &

1.'- -I
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YEAR IN REVIEW

12
Seminar - Certificate in Paralegal Skills
(Module 4)

13

Seminar - Handling Financial Experts
in Court (Part 2)

o

16
Seminar - Personal Injury and Property Damage

N

17
Seminar - Time Limits in Challenging the
Arbitral Tribunal’s Jurisdiction

o

18
Seminar - Conveyancing Highlights 2018 -
Day Two

18

Hosting UAE Delegates

19
Hosting Lunch for SMS Edwin Tong, SC
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YEAR IN REVIEW

19
Visit by Daini Tokyo Bar Association

™

19
Seminar - Certificate in Paralegal Skills (Module 5)

e

Career Awareness Talk at Commonwealth
Secondary School

22-23
Seminar - Developing Personal Effectiveness
for Legal Practitioners (2nd Run)

e

23
Westlaw Training Session 3

N

24
Annual Elections of Council 2019

S

24
Women in Practice (#WIP): We Mean Business
- Business Development

™~

26
Seminar - Workshop on Strategic Languaging
in Conflict Resolution
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YEAR IN REVIEW

OCTOBER - NOVEMBER 2018

31 -1 NOVEMBER
Annual CPD Day/Contracts Masterclass 2018

WHTM%*M 2018

-r."j:ﬁ.‘l"',!':"m i 2 m

1
Networking Session between the Law Society
of Singapore and the Institution of Engineers,

Singapore

2
4th Lunchtime Sharing Session

S

SMARTLAW Special - A Lawpreneur in the
Making / Transform Your Legal Practice with
Cloud Document Management & Collaboration

i
| - d

|

tCniC]
e e

3

8

Deepavali Luncheon
8
Townhalls on Civil Justice Reforms
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YEAR IN REVIEW

9
Annual Dinner & Dance

<%

12
Special Townhall with Ministers on
Civil Justice Reforms

21
Junior Bar Townhall

™~

22

Further Townhall with Minister for Further
Feedback on Cost Proposals in the Civil Justice
Commission Report

o

7 DECEMBER
Visit by Korean Ministry of Justice

ay MR
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YEAR IN REVIEW

8
Annual Piala Pala Bowling Tournament 2018

13
Hosting of Delegates from Shaanxi Lawyers
Association

16 JANUARY 2019
Women in Practice (#WIP): Change and Impact

18
Thank You Dinner for Volunteers

22-26
Mission to Beijing, China
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YEAR IN REVIEW

23
Visit by the Shanghai Bar Association

24
SmartLaw Event: The Lawyer vs Big Data -
How Do We Make This Work

o

25
Law Fraternity Games Welcome Reception

A\

13 FEBRUARY
Lunar New Year Luncheon

e

20
Small Law Firms and State Courts & Family
Justice Courts Committees’ Luncheon

~N
—_ 20

g =" SMARTLAW Event - Beyond Keywords:
Making the Case for Visual Analytics in
eDiscovery
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YEAR IN REVIEW

22
Visit by Senior Delegation from Hainan
Province, People’s Republic of China

N

26-27
Seminar - Legal Practice Management Course
(21st Run)

Y

28
Seminar - Developing Personal Effectiveness
for Legal Practitioners (1st Run)

“

1 MARCH
Seminar - Developing Personal Effectiveness for
Legal Practitioners (1st Run)

6&7
4th Criminal Law Conference 2019

Seminar - PIPD 2019 Seminar
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YEAR IN REVIEW

114

Mission to Japan

12
Seminar - Business Simulation Workshop for
Legal Practitioners (1st Run)

o

25
Roundtable Discussion for Small Law Firms

N

3 APRIL
Visit by the Hainan Lawyers Association

/

8
Seminar - Recognition and Enforcement of
Foreign Judgments in Asia

N

10
Visit by the Liaoning Lawyers Association

/.

11
Seminar - Warranty and Indemnity Insurance
and its Strategic Uses in M&A Transactions
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YEAR IN REVIEW

12

2nd Small Law Firms Committee and
the State Courts & Family Justice Courts
Committees Luncheon

12
Seminar - Four Ways to Keep Young Lawyers
Engaged & Fulfilled at Work

/.

17
Council Luncheon

N

17
Seminar - How to Win Cases with Digital
Evidence

17
Women in Practice (#WIP): Inspire & Aspire
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YEAR IN REVIEW

17
Criminal Bar Townhall

"

22-23
Litigation Conference 2019

/

24
Seminar - Mergers and Acquisitions Practice
in the ASEAN +6 Region

25
Visit by the Seoul Bar Association

25
Seminar - New Variable Capital Companies Act

25 - 29

Golden Jubilee Malaysia/Singapore
J =~ Bench & Bar Games
L8
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YEAR IN REVIEW

26
Signing of Memorandum of Understanding

between the Law Society of Singapore and the
Korean Bar Association

"

6 MAY
Seminar - Basic Written Advocacy Workshops

2019 (Session 1)

o

9

Visit by the Vice Minister of Justice of the
People’s Republic of China

™

14
Seminar - Book-Keeping for Law
Practices Course

e

15
Tech-celerate for Law

15
Seminar - Business Simulation Workshop for
Legal Practitioners (2nd Run)
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YEAR IN REVIEW

15
Seminar - Basic Written Advocacy Workshop
(Session 2)

16
Whiskey Appreciation (Social Event)

22
Visit by the Bar Association of the
Kingdom of Cambodia

\ \

22
Seminar - Basic Written Advocacy Workshop
(Session 3)

e

24
Criminal Bar Get-Together

&

29
Seminar - Basic Written Advocacy Workshop
(Session 4)

S

30
Town Hall for PIPD Practitioners on the
Proposed Online Dispute Resolution System
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YEAR IN REVIEW

6
Seminar - Basic Written Advocacy Workshop
(Session 5)

™

11
Hari Raya cum Council Luncheon

/

20 - 21
Seminar - Facilitating Workplace Coaching
Conversations for Legal Practitioners (Part 1)

)

. 24
s Luncheon with Law Society’s Past Presidents

24 - 26
Seminar - The Law Society Trial Advocacy
Course 2019
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YEAR IN REVIEW

3&4
Family Conference 2019

11
Law Society-Singapore Institute of Surveyors
and Valuers Networking Event

/

25
Seminar - An Introduction to and
Workshop on Award Writing

N

25
Seminar - Workshop on Drafting Awards and
Procedural Orders
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YEAR IN REVIEW

25
Pub Quiz (Social Event)

31
Seminar - Minority Oppression - Strategising
and Litigating the Endgame

e

1-2 AUGUST
Workshop on How to Negotiate Effectively

3
Law Society Annual Cross Country Run 2019

LA SOWCIE Ty
WSS PO Ty

Visit by the Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration
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YEAR IN REVIEW

6
Certificate in Legal Secretarial Skills 2019
(Module 2)

%\

6
Visit by the China Council for the Promotion of
International Trade

.

13
Seminar - Recent Developments in the Law of
Restitution in the UK and Singapore

N

13
Council Luncheon

o

13
Certificate in Legal Secretarial Skills 2019
(Module 3)

19

/unch with Association of Muslim Lawyers

20
Certificate in Legal Secretarial Skills 2019
(Module 4)

21

Seminar - Balancing Accused’s Rights with
Complainant’s Rights in Sexual Assault Trials
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YEAR IN REVIEW

22 -23
Seminar - Developing Personal Effectiveness
for Legal Practitioners (2nd Run)

%\

« 23
Visit by the Sri Lanka - Singapore Business
Council Business Delegation

26
Certificate in Legal Secretarial Skills 2019
(Module 5)
27 - 28
Mass Call

[ S
- .
e
A
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YEAR IN REVIEW

27 - 30
Lawyers Go Global Mission to Jakarta,
Indonesia

28
Seminar on Challenging Clients, Challenged
Lawyers
29
Seminar - Privilege in International Arbitration
29

LegalComet: 7 Game Changing Insights to
Future-Proof Your Practice with eDiscovery
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STATISTICS

As at 31 August 2019

Comparison of Size of Law Practices in the Last Five Years

Year 1 to 5 lawyers 6 to 30 lawyers > 30 lawyers
2015 729 128 22
2016 715 127 21
2017 720 140 21
2018 751 151 20
2019 761 131 20
Profile of Practitioners
No. of Practitioners in Last Five Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
No. of Practitioners 4,834 4,885 5,191 5,336 5,920
Years in Practice Based on Date of Admission in 2019
Year < 5 years 5 to 15 years > 15 years
2019 2,897 1,065 1,958
Gender
Year Male Female
2019 3,364 2,556

Annual Report 2019
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ADVOCACY

ADVOCACY

SAMUEL CHACKO, CHAIRPERSON

The Advocacy
Committee of the Law
Society of Singapore
consists of 25
members, with a good
mix of junior, middle
and senior members
of the profession.

The main focus of

the Committee is to
provide advocacy
training for members
of the profession.

The Committee and
its pool of advocacy
trainers run the
Advocacy Workshops
for law graduates
undertaking the

Part B course
conducted by the
Singapore Institute
of Legal Education.
This year, the Part B
advocacy workshops
will be held on
Saturdays with each trainee lawyer attending
two half-day workshops. These workshops are
conducted from July to October. To effectively
conduct these workshops, the Advocacy
Committee maintains a pool of over 100
advocacy trainers who are either practising
lawyers or judicial officers with at least 5 years
of active advocacy experience. To ensure
consistency and quality in the teaching of
advocacy, the Committee conducted 2 advocacy
teacher training workshops where the trainers
were schooled in the NITA methodology of
teaching advocacy.

¢

As part of the Committee’s continuing
professional development efforts, the
Committee has developed a range of training
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At The Law Society Trial Advocacy Course 2019 - 24 to 26 June 2019

GROWING OUR PRACTICE

X

I fll*l

programmes specifically aimed at enhancing
both the oral and written advocacy skills

of practitioners. Since 2015, the Committee
has conducted the Basic Written Advocacy
Workshop as well as the Trial Advocacy
Course (intermediate) yearly.

The Trial Advocacy Course was conducted in
June 2019 with silks and practitioners who are
senior advocacy trainers from Australia, Hong
Kong, South Africa and Malaysia forming the
international teaching faculty, whilst our local
senior advocacy trainers formed the local
teaching faculty. The highlight of the workshop
was a mock trial where participants examined
and cross examined witnesses, as well as made
closing oral submissions. At the end of the mock
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trial, the presiding judge delivered an extempore
judgment and provided comments and feedback
on the participants’ performance.

The teaching expertise of our advocacy trainers
is well sought after by the overseas legal
community. Our senior trainers have been invited
to teach at advocacy courses conducted by the
Australian Bar Association, the General Council
of the Bar of South Africa, the Hong Kong Bar
Association and the Bar Council of Malaysia
since 2017.

In order to ensure that our trainers are kept up to
date on developments in teaching methodology,
a number of our senior trainers are sent each
year to attend the advanced advocacy courses
conducted in Australia.

The Committee wishes to thank all trainers, the
Judiciary and the Attorney-General’s Chambers
for their support of the advocacy programmes
run by the Committee and looks forward to their
continuing support in the year ahead.

Samuel Chacko Chairperson
Joseph Liow Wang Wu Vice-Chairperson
Koh Choon Guan Daniel Council Representative
Chelva Retnam Rajah, SC
Narayanan Sreenivasan, SC
Chenthil Kumar Kumarasingam
Goh Siong Pheck Francis

Anthony Yvette Loretta

Bhargavan Sujatha

Chia Ru Yun Megan Joan

Colin Ong Yee Cheng

Daniel Chia Hsiung Wen

Darrell Low Kim Boon

Harish Kumar s/o Champaklal
Johannes Hadi Hadi

Kim Shi Yin

Lakshanthi Kumari Fernando

Lam Kuet Keng Steven John

Lee Soong Yan Kevin (Li Chong’En)
Pang Hui Min

Quah Wei Sheng Danny

Raeza Khaled Salem Ibrahim

Tan Pang Leong Nicholas

Tan Yi Yin Amy

Rai Vijay Kumar

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE
Jean Wong
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ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE
RESOLUTION

CHONG YEE LEONG, CHAIRPERSON

The Alternative
Dispute Resolution
(ADR) Committee
comprises 4
Sub-Committees, each
focusing on different
areas: Arbitration,
International
Arbitration,
Mediation, and
Neutral Evaluation
and Determination.

For the reporting
period of

1 September

2018 to 31 August
2019 (“Reporting
Period”), the ADR
Committee has been
actively involved

in a variety of
activities. Information
regarding the ADR
Committee’s key activities and projects during
the Reporting Period is as follows:

1. Law Society Alternative Dispute
Resolution (Schemes)

Following the launch of the Law Society
Neutral Evaluation & Determination Scheme
(LSNEDS) at the Law Society Neutral
Evaluation & Determination Forum on 17
September 2018, the Law Society now
administers a full suite of alternative dispute
resolution options. The Schemes now consist
of the Law Society Arbitration Scheme (LSAS),
the Law Society Mediation Scheme (LSMS),
and the LSNEDS.

Since its inception on 10 March 2017, the
LSMS has seen a steady growth in take-up

Annual Report 2019
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with a high rate of settlement year-on-year. In
the past year the Mediation Sub-Committee
has taken the opportunity to revise the
Appointment Protocols for the appointment
of Senior and Associate Mediators to LSMS
matters. Looking forward, the Mediation
Sub-Committee is considering developing

a mediation course that will allow the Law
Society to partner with the Singapore
International Mediation Institute under their
Qualifying Assessment Program. This initiative
is being considered at a conceptual stage this
year and is likely to be included in the work
plan for 2020.

The Committee has undertaken a marketing
exercise to introduce the Schemes to the
members and the industries. The marketing
exercise was focused on producing a variety
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ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

of physical and digital collaterals that could
be used to raise awareness of the Schemes
through platforms such as the Law Society
website, e-newsletters, and brochure stands at
the courts. This is necessary as, while the LSMS
has enjoyed a steady stream of applications
since its launch, the Committee considers that
the LSAS is generally overshadowed by other
more well-known arbitration institutions such

as the Singapore International Arbitration
Centre and the International Chamber of
Commerce Arbitration. Even amidst these huge
and well-known arbitration institutions, the
ADR Committee considers that the Schemes
constitute a valuable addition to the Singapore
alternative dispute resolution landscape.

In addition, the Committee is now exploring
collaboration opportunities with a number

of industry organisations that are interested

in customising the LSNEDS for their specific
requirements. This exercise is expected to
continue into next year. The Committee is
optimistic that such collaboration would further
improve the profile of the Schemes among the
industry users and improve the take-up rate.

2. Courses and Seminars

As with previous years, the highly popular
“Introductory Course to Arbitration” returned in
September 2018 to provide beginners with an
overview on arbitration. This was followed by a
seminar on “Challenging Tribunals Decisions and

Arbitral Awards” by Professor Lawrence Boo and
Mr Chan Leng Sun SC on 17 October 2018.

The Mediation Sub-Committee organised

an Information-Sharing Session for LSMS
Mediators, which took place on 8 July 2019
and featured Mr George Lim SC, Assistant
Professor Dorcas Quek, Ms Neoh Sue Lynn,
and Mr Andre Arul as speakers.

The International Arbitration Sub-Committee
organised an Award Writing Workshop, which
took place on 25 July 2019, as well as a talk on
Privilege in International Arbitration on

29 August 2019.
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3. The Big Deal: Managing Disputes in Asia

To commemorate the signing of the Singapore
Convention on Mediation on 7 August

2019, the Committee collaborated with

the Singapore Academy of Law, the Asian
Business Law Institute, and the Singapore
Corporate Counsel Association to organise an
event titled The Big Deal: Managing Disputes
in Asia. The event took place on 5 August
2019 and consisted of 3 panel discussions
offering a holistic range of perspectives on
how businesses and legal industry stakeholders
can effectively manage and resolve disputes
while also preserving relationships, lowering
transaction costs, and creating new commercial
opportunities.

Channel News Asia produced a documentary
on The Big Deal event, which premiered at
prime time on 29 August 2019 with repeat
telecasts.

4. Consultation

The Committee attended a dialogue with the
State Courts on 19 November 2018 to provide
feedback on its Conciliation Initiative. The
dialogue touched on State Courts’ Conciliation
Scheme and Neutral Evaluation Scheme, the
latest modalities in the case management
strategy which was implemented on 1 October
2018. Under the Conciliation Scheme, a judge
would take a proactive role in suggesting and
proposing a settlement solution to parties,
essentially a cross between mediation and
neutral evaluation.
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Law Soaaby

MNeutral Evaluation and
Determination Scheme
Handbook

208

COMMITTEE MEMBE R S 15—
Chong Yee Leong Chairperson

Chia Chor Leong Co Vice-Chairperson
Andre Ravindran Saravanapavan Arul
Co Vice-Chairperson

Syahrul Bahiah Binti Jamaludin Co Vice-Chairperson
Ng Lip Chih Council Representative
Chui Lijun

Kimarie Cheang

Lee Hui Yi

Lim Si Cheng

Maheswari Krishna

Rengarajoo Balasamy

Camilla Godman

Cathryn Neo

Christine Low

Colin Ong QC

Farrah Isaac

Gerald Yee

Kevin Lee

Michelle Yong

Nicholas Tan

Os Agarwal

Paul Sandosham

Samuel Chacko

See Chern Yang

Shobna Chandran

Wilbur Lim

Law Society Neutral Evaluation and
Determination Scheme Handbook

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan

Annual Report 2019 // 56



CIVIL PRACTICE

GROWING OUR PRACTICE

CIVIL PRACTICE

IAN LIM WEI LOONG, CHAIRPERSON

The Civil Practice
Committee presents
its report for the
period 1 September
2018 to 31 August
2019 (Reporting
Period). In addition
to its regular
ongoing work, the
Committee’s key
activities and projects
during the Reporting
Period were as
follows:

1. Litigation
Conference 2019

The Litigation
Conference was held
this year on 22 and
23 April 2019 and
has been part of a
conference series
organised by the Civil Practice Committee
since 2013. The event alternates between
workshop and conference formats each year.

This year’s event, in conference format, was
organised in collaboration with the Supreme
Court and the State Courts of Singapore.
President of the Law Society, Gregory
Vijayendran SC, welcomed participants to the
conference, and Senior Minister of State for
Law and Health, Edwin Tong, SC delivered
the keynote address. In his address, the Senior
Minister of State announced ground breaking
news on changes to the proposed reforms of
the civil justice system and the introduction of a
new “mezzanine” appellate court.

Key topics covered during the two-day
conference included the following:
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a. Civil Justice Reform - Overview;

b. The Future of ADR in Singapore;

c. Pre-Trial I: Pleadings, CMC, Single
Interlocutory Application;

d. Pre-Trial Il: Discovery, Factual &
Expert Witness Statement;

e. The Trial;

f. New Rules, Same Pains: Challenges
Faced by the Young Lawyer (litigator);
and

g. Costs.

The conference consisted of 7 plenary sessions
where various issues relating to all stages

of the litigation process were discussed. The
panellists for the sessions comprised Supreme
Court and State Courts Judges, and Senior
Counsel and other senior members of the
Singapore Bar.
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Numerous concerns and concepts were raised
and discussed during the sessions. Practitioners
found the conference informative and useful,
in particular the insights shared by the Senior
Minister of State and the Judges. Overall, the
Conference was a resounding success with
more than 340 participants, a record breaking
number for the Litigation Conference.

2. Dialogues and Engagement with the Courts

The Committee continues its involvement with
the Supreme Court Registry and State Courts
in furthering the interests of the Civil Bar.

The Committee attended a dialogue with

the Supreme Court Registry on 8 November
2018 to discuss the Civil Justice Reforms. The
Committee also attended a dialogue with

the State Courts Civil Justice Division on 19
November 2018 over the pre-action protocol
for debt claims between businesses (the
introduction of which having now been put on
hold pending the introduction of the civil justice
reforms). The Committee also engaged in a
discussion on the report of the Committee for

the Professional Training of Lawyers which was
released in March 2018.

3. Feedback on Public Consultation on
Proposed Amendments to Legislation

The Committee also assisted the Law Society
in consolidating its preliminary feedback

on the public consultation on the proposed
reforms to the Civil Justice System, which ran
from 26 October 2018 to 31 January 2019

and touched on the following subjects:

a. Rules relating to the parties’ ability
to extend time by consent;

b. Courts’ power to order parties to
attend ADR;

c. Courts’ discretion to suggest possible
terms of settlement;

d. Limitation on the endorsement of
Originating Claims;
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e. Court’s power to direct parties to file
and serve AEICs after pleadings are filed;
f. Rules relating to parties’ ability to file
interlocutory application;

g. Rules relating to discover of
documents;

h. Rules relating to appointment of
expert witness;

i. Court’s power to call witnesses; and
i- Scale for party and party costs.

Following the town hall discussion with the
Ministry of Law, the Committee provided
further feedback on the party and party costs.
The Committee also provided feedback to

the Supreme Court Registry on the proposed
amendment to procedures for a request to
seek urgent hearing date before Judge.
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lan Lim Wei Loong Chairperson
Felicia Tan May Lian Co Vice-Chairperson and
Council Representative

Yeoh Kar Hoe Richard Co Vice-Chairperson
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Darrell Low Kim Boon

Davis Tan Yong Chuan
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Joanna Seetoh Wai Lin
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Kyle Gabriel Peters
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PROFESSION AL
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DEVELOPMENT

MOHAMAD RIZUAN BIN PATHIE, CO-CHAIRPERSON

RAEZA IBRAHIM, CO-CHAIRPERSON

The Law Society’s CPD
programmes continue
to perform well this
past year. Over 90
seminars, workshops,
conferences

and e-learning
programmes were
organised and
supported by the
Society from

1 September 2018

to 31 August 2019,
which attracted

more than 7,500
registrations from both
members and non-
members.

Participants at Annual CPD Day 2018 / Contracts Masterclass 2018 in October 2018

2019 marks the third

year of Mandatory CPD Scheme for lawyers
with up to 15 years of practice experience.

The CPD Committee, together with the various
practice committees continues to develop and
deliver a diverse range of programmes to cater
to the different categories of our membership.

With the Society moving to new premises, there
will be a dedicated training room for CPD
purposes. With this, more lunch time seminars will
be planned and rolled out from January 2020.

Some highlights of the CPD calendar this year
include:
* The Law Society Neutral Evaluation
& Determination Forum on 17 September
2018 (organised by Alternative Dispute
Resolution Committee)

* Globalization of the Legal Profession

Annual Report 2019

- A Comparative Discussion of Singapore
and Japan on 28 September 2018

¢ Seminar on GDPR (General Data
Protection Regulation): Q&A with
Practitioners on 9 October 2018
(organised by Cybersecurity & Data
Protection Committee)

* Annual CPD Day 2018/Contracts
Masterclass 2018 on 31 October and
1 November 2018

¢ Criminal Law Conference 2019 on
6 & 7 March 2019 (jointly organised
with AGC, SAL and ACLS)

* PIPD 2019 Seminar on 8 March 2019
(organised by Personal Injury/Property
Damage Committee)
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* Four Ways to Keep Young Lawyers
Engaged and Fulfilled at Work on
12 April 2019

* Business Simulation Workshop for
Legal Practitioners on 12 March 2019
& 15 May 2019

* Litigation Conference 2019 on 22
& 23 April 2019 (organised by Civil
Practice Committee)

* Seminar on Mergers and Acquisitions
Practice in the ASEAN+6 Region
(jointly organised with College of Law)

* Family Conference 2019 on 3 &
4 July 2019 (organised by Family
Practice Committee; Probate and
Succession Planning Committee; and
Muslim Law Practice Committee)

¢ Contracts Masterclass 2019 on
15 July 2019

* Workshop on How to Negotiate
Effectively on 1 & 2 August 2019

Networking Reception during Litigation Conference 2019
in April 2019

Moving forward, the Committee will continue
to develop and roll out programmes of
relevance to our members and at the same
time, work closely with practice committees

of the Law Society. The Committee will

also continue to work closely with SILE and

to strengthen our collaborations with our
partners, i.e. the Judiciary, Attorney-General’s
Chambers and Singapore Academy of Law.
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We will continue to focus on how we can
deliver more quality and cost effective
services to our members to meet the demands
of the mandatory CPD scheme over the next
few years.
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CONVEYANCING

PRACTICE

LEE LIAT YEANG, CHAIRPERSON

The Conveyancing
Practice Committee
presents its report
for the period 1
September 2018

to 31 August 2019
(Reporting Period).
Information regarding
the Committee’s key
activities and projects
during the Reporting
Period is set out as
follows:

1. Requests by
Members for the
Committee’s Ruling,
Direction or Guidance
on Conveyancing
Practice Issues

The Committee
continues fo assist
members by providing,
whenever possible, rulings, directions and
guidance on various conveyancing practice issues
encountered by practitioners which are not legal
disputes of a magnitude that ought to be brought
to the Court for a determination. Supreme Court
and State Courts Judges, and Senior Counsel
and other senior members of the Singapore Bar.

2. Conveyancing Highlights Seminar

As the annual “Day of Conveyancing Highlights”
series which has been running for the seventh
consecutive year continues to receive much
attention from the members of the Bar, the
Committee has considered the feedback
received and decided that the event be split

into 2 half-day sessions to accommodate the
attendance of practitioners with busy schedules.
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The “Conveyancing Highlights Seminar 2018”
(CHS 2018) was held on 18 September and
18 October 2018. Speakers at these seminars
included members from both public and
private sector entities such as the Singapore
Land Authority, Inland Revenue Authority of
Singapore, Lockion Companies (Singapore)
Pte Ltd, CBRE Asia Pacific, and Singapore
Management University.

A range of relevant topics for conveyancing
practitioners were presented at CHS 2018, with
speakers discussing topics such as “Restrictions on
Foreign Ownership of Properties in Singapore”,
“Common Pitfalls in Additional Buyer Stamp

Duty and Additional Conveyance Duties”,
“Digitising Conveyancing Process - Glimpse of
Changes Ahead” and “Collective Sales - Key
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Issues of Concern”. Practitioners were also given
an update on recent developments in land law
and the common pitfalls in conveyancing. The
CHS 2018 was well-attended, with a healthy
distribution of practitioners ranging from the
junior to the senior categories.

The Committee is now preparing for
Conveyancing Highlights Seminar 2019 which
is scheduled to take place in September and
October 2019.

3.Committee Meetings and Dialogue Sessions

The Committee held a total of 5 committee
meetings in the Reporting Period, and discussed
various issues via e-mail correspondence when
necessary.

In light of the recent scam alerts on Conveyancing
transactions, the Committee was consulted and
provided useful measures for the protection of
both the lawyer and the client.

The Committee also provided valuable feedback
to the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore
on two occasions to ensure that any proposed
enhancements will protect and help users make
informed decisions:

a. Feedback on Stamp Duty Changes
(September 2018); and

b. Review of the e-Notice of Property
Transfer System (June 2019).

Members of the Committee (Chuang Keng
Chiew, Lina Chua and Alice Tan) also provided
support and representation on the Digitalised
Property Transactions Workgroup to provide
feedback from a Conveyancing practitioner’s
perspective during the interviews and focus
group discussions conducted.
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Lee Liat Yeang Chairperson
Selina Chin Bau Tze Vice-Chairperson
Chan Pengee Adrian Council Representative
Ang Keng Lee

Chew Mei Choo

Chia Hsien Lin Jennifer

Chua Lei Kwan Lina Mary
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Jenny Lai Ying Ling
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Lee Pin Wen Karin
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Tan Ching Chern
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Teo Eng Thye Gary

Tow Chew Choy

Vivian Kuok Ming Koong
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Wong Mei Yoke Wendy Nee Leong
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CORPORATE PRACTICE

CHAN PENGEE ADRIAN, CHAIRPERSON

During the reporting
period of 1 September
2018 to 31 August
2019, the Corporate
Practice Committee’s
(the Committee)
activities included the
following:

1. Seminar on the
New Variable Capital
Companies (VCC) Act

The Committee
organised a well-
attended seminar

on the new VCC Act
on 25 April 2019.
The seminar aimed

to explore the VCC
framework from a
legal perspective by
identifying its key
features and benefits,
highlighting its potential as an alternative vehicle
for funds and the impact it will have on the fund
industry. Committee members Petrus Huang, Low
Kah Keong and Yeoh Lian Chuan were panelists
for the panel discussion.

2. Corporate Law Day 2019

The inaugural Corporate Law Day, scheduled
to be held on or about 17 September 2019,
will cover topics on the new Insolvency Bill,
the Goods and Service Tax, and a wide
ranging update on important issues relevant to
corporate practitioners. The Committee hopes
that this landmark CPD event for corporate law
practitioners can be a way to uplift and raise
corporate practice standards across the board
and one that corporate practitioners can look
forward to annually.
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3. Consultations

The Committee provided views on the Venture
Capital Starter Kit, an initiative by the Singapore
Academy of Law and the Singapore Venture
Capital and Private Equity Association which
was intended to enhance the venture capital
investment process. The Venture Capital
Investment Model Agreements initially named
the Venture Capital Starter Kit was launched to
help founders and investors reduce time and costs
incurred from preparing and negotiating each
investment from scratch.

4. Dialogues
The Committee has regular dialogue sessions

with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority (ACRA) to discuss issues encountered
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in the area of corporate law and to be
apprised of the new initiatives and policies
introduced by ACRA. The Committee also
actively supports ACRA on an ongoing basis
by providing feedback on corporate law and
policy changes.

5. Representative on the IRAS’s Committee -
Study of the Tax Ecosystem and Practices in
Singapore

Ong Ken Loon, as the Law Society’s
representative on the IRAS Committee to
participate in the study of the tax ecosystem
and practices in Singapore, has been engaged
in meetings and matters relating to this study.

Chan Pengee Adrian Chairperson
Low Kah Keong Vice-Chairperson
M Rajaram Council Representative
Abdul Jabbar Bin Karam Din

Chen Cuiying Janelene

Farhana Siddiqui

Huang Yen San Petrus

Kao Kwok Weng Jonathan

Liam Yang Ming Alex

Ong Ken Loon

Sarita Misir

Sharon Wee Hsu Oon

Sing Faith Joy

Sundareswara Sharma

Tan Chin Kwan, Jonathan

Tay Yew Choon

Tong Wei Min Raymond

Victor Looi Yi En (Lu Yi’En)

William John Jamieson

Yeoh Lian Chuan Nigel

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan
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CRIMINAL PRACTICE

WENDELL WONG, CO-CHAIRPERSON

RAMESH CHANDR TIWARY, CO-CHAIRPERSON

This report of for the period 1 September 2018 2. Meetings and Dialogues

to 31 August 2019.

It has been a fruitful and fulfilling year for the
Criminal Practice Committee (the Committee)
as members continued to be involved in
several projects and dialogue sessions. The
Committee sustained its engagement with
stakeholders from the courts and government
agencies, addressing matters of concern to
criminal practice and various issues affecting
criminal practitioners. Committee members
continued to organise and participate in

meetings, townhalls and several new initiatives.

1. Committee Meetings

On 21 November 2018 the Committee held its
year-end meeting for 2018, looking back on
an eventful year and preparing for an even
more exciting 2019. Topics discussed included
the Penal Code review, the Committee’s
position on the Certificate of Substantive
Assistance, the second run of the Pamphlet

of Rights and the economic health of criminal
practitioners.

The Committee held its kick-off meeting for
2019 on 23 January 2019 and prepared for
an ambitious schedule of programmes, events
and dialogues with stakeholders.

The mid-year meeting on 9 July 2019 was
well-attended and discussed the various
projects the Committee had embarked on as
well as the dialogues already concluded and
those coming up. The Committee also talked
about the new protocol for Community Case
Conferences in the State Courts, engagement
with the Singapore Management University
and the launch of the CrimLaw Digest.
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6 September 2018: SMS Edwin Tong and
officers from the Ministry of Law presented the
Penal Code Review Committee Report to over
50 criminal practitioners.

26 October 2018: The Committee attended a
briefing by SMS Edwin Tong on amendments
to the Misuse of Drugs Act. Some amendments
came into effect on 1 April 2019 and the rest
are scheduled to take effect in the second half
of this year.

1 November 2018: MHA and Ministry of Law
engaged our Committee members and Law
Society President, Gregory Vijayendran, SC
on the Penal Code reforms.

20 February 2019: Interns from the Criminal
Bar Internship Programme participated in a
meet and greet held at Drew and Napier LLC
with Justice See Kee Oon.

4 April 2019: The State Courts invited the
Committee to the regular dialogue session
between the Bar and the State Courts Bench.
ltems discussed included securing IMH reports,
uploading of documents on ICMS and video-
link facilities in the new State Courts building.

22 May 2019: The Committee held a dialogue
session with the AGC to present Chambers
with feedback and concerns from the Criminal
Bar. Several important issues were raised
including lack of clarity about Section 20
Criminal Procedure Code (Production Orders),
Rule 31 of the Professional Conduct Rules,
rising sentencing tariffs and a general increase
in tension between defence counsel and DPPs.

14 June 2019: The Committee met officers from
MHA and the AGC on proposed amendments
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to the Road Traffic Act. Our feedback was well
received.

18 July 2019: The Committee invited Prisons
for a meeting to engage them on issues
affecting criminal practitioners. Topics
discussed included delay in access to client,
home detention schemes and operational
matters such as interview booking and video-
links for interviews.

26 August 2019: Interns from the Criminal Bar
Internship Programme participated in a meet
and greet held at Drew & Napier LLC with
Justice Audrey Lim.

3. Townhalls

2 October 2018: A townhall was held at the
State Courts Bar Room where the Committee
Co-Chair discussed the Penal Code reforms
with the Criminal Bar. Members of the Bar
gave feedback to the Committee on the
proposed reforms.

17 April 2019: A townhall was held at the
State Courts Bar Room to update the Criminal
Bar on the Committee’s activities to date and
to discuss the findings of the CLAS review
report. The findings showed that a majority of
the Criminal Bar support enhanced CLAS but
want more rigorous means testing to prevent
any abuse.

4. New and Continuing Initiatives

4th Criminal Law Conference
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The 4th Criminal Law Conference was held
on 6 and 7 March 2019. The conference
was well-attended and received extremely
good feedback from attendees as well as
keynote speaker, Swiss Attorney-General
Michael Lauber.

The Committee successfully launched a new
module, the CrimLaw Digest, in April this

year. The module is a collaboration between
SAL and Law Society and carries case digests
and commentaries on criminal sentencing
jurisprudence. The digests are published on
LawNet. The second instalment of the CrimLaw
Digest was published in July this year. The
Committee is currently working on the third set
of digests.

The Committee
proceeded with

the print run of the
second edition of

the Law Society’s
Pamphlet of Rights. In
addition, we received
approval for a Poster
of Rights to be placed
in the lockups of the
police centres so a
suspect will have sight
of the poster during
questioning.

Know Your Rights pamphlet

The Committee met with the Community Justice
Centre to raise concerns about the Automated
Court Document Assembly programme,
especially the mitigation plea document and
how it might disadvantage the accused if there
was no lawyer present. These meetings took
place on 20 February 2019, 13 March 2019
and 17 June 2019.
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5. Social Events

4 September 2018: Appreciation dinner
for SMS Indranee Rajah, SC as she left her
position of Second Minister for Law.

26 September 2018: AG’s Cup at Jalan Besar
Stadium.

26 October 2018: Criminal Bar get together at
Octapas.

29 January 2019: Appreciation dinner for
Justice Kan Ting Chiu as he completed his term
as Senior Judge.

Wendell Wong Co-Chairperson

Ramesh Chandr Tiwary Co-Chairperson

Amolat Singh Co-Vice-Chairperson

26 April 2019: Tripartite lunch hosted by AGC.  Suresh Damodara Co-Vice-Chairperson

Chenthil Kumar Kumarasingam Co-Vice-Chairperson

o Simran Kaur Toor Council Representative

24 May 2019: Criminal Bar get together at Abdol Salim Ahened Ibrahim P

Stickies. Amardeep Singh s/o Gurcharan Singh

Amogh Nallan Chakravarti

Anil Narain Balchandani

Chia Boon Teck

Chia Ru Yun Megan Joan

Chin Li Wen Tania

Cheong Fook Hing Nicholas

Cho Kenwei Jonathan

Choh Thian Chee Irving

Chong Yi Mei

Chooi Jing Yen

Derek Kang Yu Hsien

Eoon Zizhen Benedict

Gloria James-Civetta

Gopinath Pillai

Johannes Hadi

Josephine lezu Costan

Lam Kuet Keng Steven John

Lim Tanguy

Lua Limian Jeremy

Lulla Ammar Khan

Luo Ling Ling

Malcolm Tan Ban Hoe

Navin Shanmugaraj Thevar

Ng Huiling Cheryl

Raphael Louis

Renuga Devi Sivaram

Siaw Kin Yeow

Siraj Shaik Aziz

Sui Yi Siong

Sunil Sudheesan

Tham Lijing

Thong Chee Kun

Vikram Rajan Ramasamy

Professor Walter Woon Cheong Ming
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CYBERSECURITY AND
DATA PROTECTION

LIM KIAN KIM, CHAIRPERSON

The reporting period
(1 September 2018
to 31 August 2019)
was an extremely
busy one for the
Comnmittee, in light of
the growing emphasis
on cybersecurity and
data protection within
the legal profession,
as well as ongoing
developments in

the cybersecurity

and data protection
landscape.

During this period,
the Committee
engaged in the
following key
activities:

1. Organised
a seminar
on the General Data Protection

Regulation (GDPR) in October 2018 for
almost 120 lawyers.

2. Participated in a focus group
discussion in October 2018 on
cybersecurity which was organised
by the Association of Information
Security Professionals (AISP).

3. Organised private briefings for
Committee and Council members
in March and April 2019 by
Checkpoint, Microsoft and Cloud
Security Alliance on cybersecurity

standards, Microsoft Office 365 and
cloud security respectively.
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General Data Protection Regulation Seminar

4. Provided written feedback on private
consultations by the Personal Data
Protection Commission (PDPC) in April

and May 2019 on various draft PDPC
guides relating to data protection, namely:

* Private consultation on voluntary
breach notification;

* Private consultation on enforcement
framework; and

* Private consultation on data
protection by design framework for ICT
systems.

5. Organised a closed-door session
with the PDPC in May 2019 on

its proposed Model Artificial
Intelligence Governance Framework,
which was launched for public
consultation in January 2019.
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6. Supported and participated in a
seminar in May 2019 on PDPC’s Data
Protection Regulatory Action framework
organised by the PDPC and the
Singapore Business Federation, and
supported by the Law Society.

7. Assisted the Council of the Law
Society to issue a data protection
advisory to members in July 2019.

8. Participated in the Personal Data
Protection Seminar in July 2019 by
facilitating a workshop on “Introduction
to Data Protection by Design”.

9. Arranged for the Law Society’s
participation in the Singapore Computer
Society’s Tech3 Forum in July 2019.

10. Worked on drafting a set of
cybersecurity guidelines for the legal
profession, which will be released

in the later part of 2019. These
guidelines are a follow-up to the Cyber-
Readiness and Response Advisory

issued by the Council to members in
August 2018.

11. Planned upcoming seminar on data
breaches, cybersecurity and business
email compromise, which will be held
for the legal profession in September 2019.

In 2019, to better streamline its work, the
Committee also formed sub-committees dealing
with the following aspects: technical advisory,
policy research and practice direction
advisory, publicity/submission of consultation
papers, government relations, PDPC/PDPC
Digest publication and training/Institutes of
Higher Education.

The Committee is grateful to the various
government agencies for their support and the
collaboration extended by the professional
technical experts. With the advice of the
Council and support of the Secretariat,

the Committee will continue to look for
opportunities to serve its members in 2020.
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Lim Kian Kim Chairperson
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Chiam Zhi Wen Nick

Chow Ci En Grace
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Ho Jun Yi (He Junyi)
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Jevon Louis
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Leow Jiamin

Lua Limian Jeremy (Lua Limian)
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FAMILY LAW PRACTICE

MICHELLE WOODWORTH, CO-CHAIRPERSON

RAYMOND YEO KHEE CHYE, CO-CHAIRPERSON

For the reporting
period of

1 September 2018
to 31 August 2019,
the Family Law
Practice Committee
(the Committee) has
been involved in the
following activities:

1. Sub-Committees

In the spirit of an
all-inclusive approach
to participation

in the work of the
Society, members
were assigned to sub-
committees to work
on various projects.
The sub-committees
are:

(i) Consultations, Legislation

and Law Reform Sub-Committee;

(ii) Publications, Research Papers and
Articles Sub-Committee;

(iii) Seminars, CPD Events and
Speaking Engagements Sub-Committee;
(iv) Bar Liaison, Accreditation and Town
Hall Sessions Sub-Committee;

(v) Child Representation and Parenting
Coordination Sub-Committee;

(vi) Social and Welfare Sub-Committee;
(vii) Ethics Workgroup Sub-Committee;
and

(viii) Family Justice Support Scheme
Sub-Committee.

2. Dialogues with the Family Justice Courts (FJC)

The Committee continues to engage in regular
dialogues with the FJC to receive updates and
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to provide feedback on matters pertaining to
practice, procedure and access to justice.

3. Art of Family Lawyering (AOFL) (2019
Special Edition)

Subsequent to the addition of rules 15A and 15B
to the Legal Profession (Professional Conduct)
Rules 2015 (S 706/2015), the Family Law Practice
Committee spearheaded the development of and
published a 2019 special edition of the Art of
Family Lawyering for members.

4. Consultations

The Committee provided feedback to
representatives from GovTech who were
working on a self-help application, MylLegacy,
for users to quickly create their own Wills.
The Committee also provided its input on the
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proposed CPF Board’s Checklist for Consent
Orders, and FJC’s proposed Joint Summary
and Case Conference Checklist. The Committee
circulated a questionnaire on the Family Justice
Support Scheme to collate feedback which
enabled the Committee to better identify the
target groups and appropriate mechanism (ie,
the Legal Clearing House) required for the
scheme.

5. Legal Clinics

Committee members continue to provide free
legal advice every Wednesday at the legal
clinics held at FJC.

6. Family Conference

Following from the successful inaugural
Family Conference in 2018, the Committee
spearheaded and co-organised the second
instalment of the Family Conference on 3 and
4 July 2019, collaborating with the Probate
Practice Committee and the Muslim Law
Practice Committee of the Law Society. The
Family Conference was supported by the
Ministry of Law, State Courts, Family Justice
Courts, Syariah Court, Ministry of Social and
Family Development, Association of Criminal
Lawyers of Singapore, National University
of Singapore (Faculty of Law), Singapore
Management University (School of Law),
and Singapore University of Social Sciences
(School of Law). It saw an increase of almost
20% in registrations, with 255 delegates
attending, up from 215 the previous year.
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INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

HO CHYE HOON (KELLY), CHAIRPERSON

This year, the Committee’s workplan focused
on three areas: (a) responding to public
consultations; (b) providing feedback on the
elitigation system; and (c) advising the Council
on IT-related issues.

1. Public Consultations

Earlier in the year, the Committee deliberated
on the proposed Model Artificial Intelligence
Governance Framework, which was released
for public consultation by the Personal Data
Protection Commission (PDPC) in January
2019. The Committee subsequently provided
feedback on the proposed Framework to the
PDPC in May 2019 at a closed-door session.

The Committee had also been invited to
respond to the public consultation on the
review of the Electronic Transactions Act,
which was released by the InfoComm Media
Development Authority (IMDA) in late June
2019.

2. elitigation System

While there have been no changes on this
front yet, the Commitiee had given feedback
to the Supreme Court on its new e-PD on the
OpenDoc platform.

3. IT-related Issues

The Committee has been engaged in studying
the feasibility of a protocol for law firms to
exchange legal correspondence by e-mail,
instead of faxes. A sub-committee was set up in
June 2019 to advise Council on this proposal.

4. Others

As a member of the Legal Technology Cluster
Committee of the Singapore Academy of Law,
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Chairperson submitted a report for a meeting
in May 2019 highlighting the significant legal
technology developments and initiatives
undertaken by the Law Society from 1 April
2018 to 31 March 2019.

Ho Chye Hoon (Kelly) Chairperson

Kao Kwok Weng Jonathan (Gao Guorong) Vice-Chairperson

Lim Seng Siew Council Representative
Allister Brendan Tan Yu Kuan

Chan Yu Meng

Chen Jianhao Kennedy

Foo Yu Kang, Wilson (Fu Yukang)

Gaw Ying Charn Benjamin

Heng Jun Meng

Khoo Yong Jie

Kronenburg Edmund Jerome

Leong Lu Yuan (Liang Luyuan)

Ng Huan Yong

Leow Jiamin

Norvin Chan Wee

Pang Haoyu Samuel

Pang Keep Ying Joey (Peng Jirong)
Prasad S/O Karunakarn

Ronald Wong Jian Jie (Huang Jianjie)

Tan Jing Han, Alvin

Vince Gui Chuan Chong (up till July 2019)

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE
Alvin Chen Yi Jing
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INSOLVENCY PRACTICE

SUSHIL SUKUMARAN NAIR, CHAIRPERSON

During the reporting period of 1 September
2018 to 31 August 2019, the Insolvency
Practice Committee (the Committee) actively
sought to advance the practice area of
insolvency law.

1. Involvement in INSOL Singapore

Chairperson Sushil Nair was one of the
organising members for INSOL Singapore,
which was part of the Annual Regional
Conference held on 2 to 4 April 2019. The
theme for this Conference, “Looking to the
future: what to expect and how to prepare”
aimed to bring out the importance of the
practice in insolvency whilst looking ahead
to anticipate and prepare for the challenges
of a rapidly evolving global economy. The
Conference also brought together international
participants from different disciplines and
acted as a platform for global networking.

2. Representative on IPAS

Chairperson Sushil Nair, as the Law Society
representative on the Insolvency Practitioners
Association of Singapore (IPAS) has been
actively engaged in meetings and matters
relating to IPAS.

3. The Insolvency Stakeholders’ Lunch

The Committee was involved in regular

lunch meetings with the Supreme Court and
representatives of IPAS to discuss the recent
insolvency/debt restructuring applications filed
in court, and updates relevant to insolvency
practitioners.
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Sushil Sukumaran Nair Chairperson

Chan Chee Yin Andrew Vice-Chairperson
Foo Guo Zheng Benjamin Council Representative
Seah Zhen Wei Paul Council Representative
Ajinderpal Singh

Ashok Kumar

Chan Ming Onn David

Emmanvel Duncan Chua

Ho Mingjie Kevin

Lim Hui Li Debby

Manoj Pillay Sandrasegara

Mohan Gopalan

Nair Suresh Sukumaran

Ng Ka Luon Eddee

Prakash Pillai

Sim Kwan Kiat

Smitha Rajan Menon

Tan Mei Yen

Tay Kang-Rui Darius

Tiong Yung Suh Edward

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

PRACTICE

JONATHAN FOONG YEW CHO, CHAIRPERSON

The Intellectual
Property Practice
Committee (the
Committee) focuses
on supporting
Intellectual Property
(IP) practitioners in
the different areas
of IP practice. The
Committee is divided
into 5 sub-committees
as follows:

(i) Trade
Marks;

(ii) Patents;

(iii) Enforcement;
(iv) Design
and

Copyright; and
(v) Emerging
Issues.

For the period of 1 September 2018 to
31 August 2019, the main activities engaged
by the Committee were as follows:

1. Feedback and Consultations

The Committee has, through the course of

the year, been active in participating in
Consultations by providing feedback on
various initiatives. The Committee has provided
feedback and comments to the Ministry

of Law’s (MinLaw) Public Consultation on
Intellectual Property Dispute Resolution
Reforms, Public Consultation on Proposed
Reforms to the Civil Justice System, and Public
Consultation on the Draft Intellectual Property
Dispute Resolution Bill.
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Intellectual Property Practice Committee 2019

The Committee has also, from time to

time, voluntarily furnished feedback to the
Intellectual Property Office of Singapore
(IPOS) on issues of concern to the practice for
response, further action and/or resolution. For
example, the Emerging Issues Sub-Committee
provided their feedback on the proposed draft
Geographical Indications Rules to IPOS.

2. Intellectual Property Mission Trip to
Hong Kong

From 4-7 December 2018, the Committee
organised a mission trip to Hong Kong to build
on existing links with the Law Society of Hong
Kong and to explore business opportunities for
the benefit of IP law practices in Singapore.
This trip also coincided with the Business of IP
Asia Forum, co-organised by the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council that was held from
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6-7 December 2018 in Hong Kong.
3. Dialogues

The Committee aims to contribute towards the
development of the legal regime and practice
of IP law in Singapore by engaging in regular
dialogues with the Courts, MinLaw, IPOS and
other stakeholders, either through informal
tea sessions or correspondence on hot-button
issues that affect practice in general.

For example, the Trade Marks Sub-Committee
organised a tea session with IPOS on 31
October 2018, and Committee members were
invited to a further dialogue session organised
by IPOS on 15 February 2019 with a private
meeting beforehand to discuss trade mark
related issues.

Additionally, the Enforcement Sub-Committee
met up with the Intellectual Property Rights
Branch (IPRB) at the end of 2018 to discuss
ex-officio actions in general, and is planning
a further meeting with IPRB in the third
quarter of 2019. COMMITTEE MEMBER'S 1
Jonathan Foong Yew Cho Chairperson
Boo Yee Swan Vice-Chairperson
Daniel Koh Choon Guan Council Representative
Elaine Lew Yee Wen
George Bonaventure Hwang
Jo-Ann See Siew Heok
Kang Poh Sing Jason
Kiranijit Kaur Dharsan
Lam Chung Nian
Lauw Yu An Nicholas Lynwood
Lee Su Yee Catherine
Lim Ren Jun
Lim Ying Sin Daniel
Moi Sok Ling
Murgiana Haq
Ng Chee Weng Max
Oh Pin-Ping
Pang Sze Ray, Melvin
Poon Shunjie, Shawn
Prithipal Singh s/o Seva Singh
Ravindran s/o Muthucumarasamy
Samuel Wee Choong Sian
Soh Kar Liang
Tan Kee Leng
Tasneem Rehena Haq
Teng Hin Weng Mark
Wang Zheng, Just

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan
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INTERNATIONAL
RELATIONS

THIO SHEN Y1, SC, CHAIRPERSON

During the period of 1 September 2018 to
31 August 2019, the Law Society hosted the
following visits:

Y7 il

¥

Delegation from Hainan Lawyer’s Association

3 April 2109 Hainan Lawyer’s Association

10 April 2019 Liaoning Bar Association
Visit by Judges from Dubai International Finance Centre .
Courts, UAE 25 April 2019

Seoul Bar Association

26 April 2019 Korean Bar Association

26 September 2018 | Competition Authority of Kenya
PRC Vice Minister of Justice

28 September 2018 | Dai-ichi Tokyo Bar Association 9 May 2019 Xiong Xuanguo
Judges from Dubai International Bar Association of the Kinad
18 October 2018 Finance Centre (DIFC) Courts UAE 22 May 2019 o?rca;:k?;:;;on ©f fhe Ringcom
19 October 2018 Daini Tokyo Bar Association
19 November 2018 | Shaanxi Lawyers Association 1. Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU)

Hong Kong & Macau Basic
28 November 2018 | Law Committee of the National
People’s Congress of China To promote and strengthen the cooperation

3 December 2018 Korean Ministry of Justice of Law Society of Singapore and overseas
bar associations and the exchanges between
Singapore lawyers and lawyers in overseas

Mr Zhao Liming, Chairman of
Shaanxi Help Reaching Law

Firm and Honorary President jurisdictions, the Law Society has entered into
13 December 2018 . . !
and Mr Duo Xingya, Vice several MOUs set out below.
President of Shaanxi Lawyers
Association 28 July 2018 Association of Lawyers of Russia
23 January 2019 Shanghai Bar Association ;
Y 9 30 September 2018 The Law Society of England and

. . . |
Hainan Delegation from Hainan Wales

Provincial Department of Justice 7 January 2019 Daini Tokyo Bar Association
22 February 2019 & Hainan Provincial People’s
Congress Standing Committee

Legal Affairs Committee 26 April 2019 Korean Bar Association

26 January 2019 Tianjin Lawyers Association
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2. Lawyers Go Global

Launched in April 2018, Lawyers Go Global
(LG2) is an initiative aimed at connecting
Singapore legal expertise with overseas
opportunities, through overseas missions,
training as well as branding and marketing.
The overseas mission will be partially funded
by Enterprise Singapore under its Local
Enterprise and Association Development
(LEAD) Programme. The Committee regularly
gives inputs to the LG2 team, and many
members of the Committee participated in the
overseas missions.

Members who are interested in participating
in the “Lawyers Go Global” programme
can contact the Law Society’s LG2 team at
goglobal@lawsoc.org.sg.

Overseas missions organised in 2019 are set
out below:

Date Name of Event
22 ) 2019 t ..
2 ngzgz 2019 ° Mission to Beijing

11 March 2019 to

15 March 2109 Mission to Japan

27 August 2019 to

31 August 2019 Mission to Indonesia

Lawyers Go Global’s Mission to Japan in March 2019
3. Opening of the Legal Year (OLY)

The committee assisted Council to plan and
coordinate the OLY programme, including
Presidents’ roundtable dialogue.
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Presidents from the various ASEAN Bar Associations

4. Exchange Programme with
Guangdong Lawyers Association

The Law Society of Singapore (LSS) has signed
a MOU with Guangdong Lawyers Association
(GLA) in 2017, with the aim of strengthening
ties, promoting exchange as well as
collaborating in mutually beneficial activities.
LSS and GLA organised an exchange
programme for 20 lawyers in Guangdong
region to be attached to Singapore law

firms for a 2-week period to understand
Singapore’s law practices, and Singapore’s
legal system from 11 March to 24 March
2019. The intention is to facilitate exchange

of knowledge and networking opportunities
between Singapore and Guangdong lawyers.
The exchange programme was a success, and
it is a new start for the exchange of knowledge
and educational journey for lawyers in
Singapore and China.

PN e g Y
ekl UERTT T

Participants from Guangdong Lawyers Association
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COMMITTEE MEMBER S 15—
o L Thio Shen Yi, SC Chairperson

Lawyers Go Global - Mission to Beijing in January 2019 Kronenburg Edmund Jerome Vice-Chairperson

Anand Nalachandran Council Representative

Abhinav Ratan Mohan

Anil Murkoth Changaroth

Anthony Yvette Loretta

Anuradha d/o Krishan Chand Sharma

Cai Tianjiao, Olive

Chew Gek Tee Sally

Daniel Chia Hsiung Wen

Debbie Ooi Yu Ting

Divyesh Menon

Emmanuel Duncan Chua

Glenda Lim Jia Qian

Gloria James-Civetta

Hannah Alysha Binte Mohamed Ashiq

Hyder Gulam

Justyn Adam Jagger

Kayshavani D/O Kuppusamy

Lakshanthi Kumari Fernando

Lee Teck Leng Robson

Lim Ern-Yang, Daniel

Lim Wei Zhen @ Jennifer Lim Wei Zhen

Lo Ying Xi, John

Mahesh Rai s/o Vedprakash Rai

Muk Chen Yeen Jonathan

Naomi Zhiwen Ho

Nguyen Vu Lan

Nur Hisyam Bin Azman

Prasad s/o Karunakarn

Quek Wen Jiang, Gerard

Raeza Khaled Salem Ibrahim

Rengarajoo s/o Rengasamy Balasamy

Sing Faith Joy

Sundareswara Sharma

Tan Spring

Tan Teik Yu Mark

Tay Li Yan

Teo Wei Jian

Tham Wei Chern

Vince Gui Chuan Cheng

Yee May Kuen Peggy Sarah

Yee Mun Howe Gerald

Yeoh Jun Wei, Derric (Yao Junwei)

Yoga Vyjayanthimala
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Shawn Toh
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MUSLIM LAW PRACTICE

AHMAD NIZAM BIN ABBAS, CHAIRPERSON

For the reporting
period of

1 September 2018

to 31 August 2019,
the Muslim Law
Practice Committee
(the Committee) was
active in the following
initiatives:

1. Family Conference

Together with the
Family Law Practice
Committee and the
Probate Practice
Committee, the
Committee co-
organised the second
Family Conference
on 3 and 4 July

2019. Chqirperson Muslim Law Practice Committee 2019

Ahmad Nizam and

Committee members Mohamed Fazal and Singapore: Issues of Jurisdiction and Practice”,
Norhakim were members in the Organising focussing on case studies in custody of children

Committee of the Conference. The Registrar of  and division of matrimonial assets.
the Syariah Court presented on jurisdictional

issues between the Syariah Court and Civil 3. Article in Singapore Law Gazette

Courts while District Judge shared on the

experiences of the Family Justice Court in The Committee, together with Professor Arif

dealing with enforcement of cases on Breaches Jamal and Professor Jaclyn Neo from NUS

of Syariah Court orders (Bosco). contributed an article in the Singapore Law
Gazette, covering topics on the:

2. Muslim Law Practice Course (MLPC) a. Historical, philosophical, and social

context for Muslim Law;

The 3-module MLPC organised by the National b. Main developments in division of

University of Singapore (NUS) Faculty of matrimonial assets in Singapore;

Law, in collaboration with the Maijlis Ugama c. Main developments in custody issues

Islam Singapura (MUIS) and Syariah Court in Muslim divorce in Singapore; and

was held on 13 October 2018, 10 November d. Main developments in jurisdictional

2018 and 1 December 2018. Chairperson delineation in Muslim Law practice in

Ahmad Nizam and Committee member Halijah Singapore.

Mohammad, were speakers in Module 2 of the
MLPC on “Dissolution of Muslim Marriages in
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4. Annual Lunch with the Association of
Muslim Lawyers (AML)

The Committee and Council of the Law Society
continued its annual lunch engagement with
the AML on 14 November 2018 to explore
possible collaborations between both
organisations.

5. Singapore Council of Women's
Organisations’ (SCWO) Monthly Legal Clinics

Members of the Committee continue to
volunteer and assist in giving legal advice to
members of the public at the SCWO’s monthly
legal clinics.

6. Dialogues with the Syariah Court

The Committee has been engaging in
dialogues with the Syariah Court, to share
concerns of practitioners.

7. Providing Inputs to MUIS Fatwa Committee

In the release of the 2019 Fatwa Committee
ruling on jointtenancy, the Committee was
cited by the Fatwa Committee for giving
invaluable inputs towards the review of this
Fatwa. The Committee seeks to continue
working with MUIS on identifying legal issues
on the ground surrounding inheritance of
Muslim estates and recommending practical
solutions through the harmonization of Muslim
Law with other laws of the land.
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Ahmad Nizam Bin Abbas Chairperson

Abdul Rahman Bin Mohd Hanipah Vice-Chairperson
Md Noor E Adnaan Council Representative
Abdul Halim Bin Rosalan

Abdul Rohim Bin Sarip

Aishah Winter

Aziz Tayabali Samiwalla

Ferzana Fareen Haq

Halijah Binte Mohamad

Mohamed Fazal Bin Abdul Hamid

Murgiana Haq

Noor Syuhada Mohamad Rafeek

Norashikin Binte Kamal

Norhakim Bin Md Shah

Nur Liyana Binte Mohamed Sinwan

Yasmeen Jamil Marican

Zhulkarnain Abdul Rahim
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Genie Sugene Gan
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PERSONAL INJURY AND
PROPERTY DAMAGE

WILLY TAY, CO-CHAIRPERSON
CONSTANCE PAGLAR, CO-CHAIRPERSON

The Personal Injury
and Property
Damage (PIPD)
Committee presents
its report for the
period 1 September
2018 to 31 August
2019. Information
regarding the
Committee’s key
activities and projects
for the reporting
period is as follows:

1. PIPD Seminars

The PIPD Committee
(Committee) organised
2 half-day seminars

on 16 October 2018
and 8 March 2019,
which enabled

participants to:

* gain an insight into fatal accident
claims as well as provide an overview
of cases involving claims under the
Work Injury Compensation Act;

* appreciate the important changes in
practice when a contrast comparison

is drawn between the present and
proposed Rules of Court;

* broaden their understanding

on spondylosis and how an accident
may aggravate a pre-existing condition
so that practitioners can take note when
preparing for cross examination; and

* gain an understanding on the
psychiatric injuries which emanate from
different accidents for practitioners to

Annual Report 2019

Personal Injury and Property Damage Committee 2019

have a better perspective when dealing
with such issues.

2. Dialogues with Stakeholders

The Committee had a dialogue with the

State Courts Civil Justice Division on 12 April
2019 to discuss and provide feedback on the
proposed Online Dispute Resolution System.
Subsequently, the Committee conducted a
town hall on 30 May 2019 to engage the PIPD
Bar and collated feedback on the same.

The Committee also provided feedback to
the Ministry of Law on its Public Consultation
on proposed amendments to the Work Injury
Compensation Act in February 2019.
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3. PIPD Pre-Action ADR Scheme

The Committee continues to work with the
Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee
to explore the possibility of setting up a
specialised panel under the Law Society
Mediation Scheme for PIPD matters.

4. Other Key Initiatives

The Committee issued a Best Practice Note
on 10 April 2019 to provide PIPD lawyers
with some useful tips when acting for foreign
workers.

The Committee continues to engage with the
General Insurance Association of Singapore
(GIA). The Committee had a meeting with GIA
on 18 September 2018 to discuss areas of
mutual interest, such as:

* Proposal for full GIA reports to
be made available to the solicitors
representing the insureds and the
appropriate mode of sending GIA
reports (e.g. email or post);
* Issuance of cheques in payment of
settlement sums for claims that fall
outside the Public Trustee’s circular; and COMMITTEE MEMBE RS /55—
* Law Society Mediation Scheme for Willy Tay Boon Chong Co-Chairperson
accident matters. Constance Margreat Paglar Co-Chairperson
Abdul Salim Ahmed Ibrahim Co Vice-Chairperson
Paul Yap Tai San Co Vice-Chairperson
Lisa Sam Hui Min Council Representative
Abdul Halim Bin Rosalan
Anparasan s/o Kamachi
Ganesan Susila
Gangadharan Prasanna Devi
Hoon Ang Ping Charles
Karuppan Chettiar s/o Ramasamy Chettiar
Kok Yee Keong
Lim Chui Ling Catherine
Lin Hui Yin Sharon
Namasivayam Srinivasan
Renuka d/o Karuppan Chettiar
Shabira Banu d/o Abdul Kalam Azad
Subir Singh Panoo
Teo Weng Kie
Viviene Kaur Sandhu
Yeo Kim Hai Patrick

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan
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PROBATE PRACTICE

GOH KOK YEOW, CHAIRPERSON

The Probate

Practice Committee
(Committee) has,

for the period 1
September 2018

to 31 August 2019,
been actively
involved in a variety
of activities relating
to its remit of being
the voice for the Law
Society of Singapore
in probate and
administration as
well as succession
planning matters.
The main activities
which the Committee
engaged in are as
follows:

1. Family Conference
2019

Jointly organised by the Probate Practice
Committee, Family Law Practice Committee
and the Muslim Law Practice Committee, the
2nd Family Conference took place on 3 and
4 July 2019 at the Marina Bay Sands Expo
and Convention Centre. This well-attended
conference saw experts and professionals
speaking on a range of important and
developing issues in areas of law and practice
pertaining to the Family Justice Courts and
the Syariah Court. The Probate Practice
Committee held talks during the Conference
on mental capacity by District Judge Dr Colin
Tan, on rectification of wills by Goh Kok
Yeow, enhancement of probate practice by
Goh Kok Yeow and Patrick Tan.

2. Dialogues with the Family Justice Courts
and the Office of the Public Guardian
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Members of the Probate Practice Committee

The Committee continues to engage the
Family Justice Courts through dialogues

on matters relating to Rules and Practice
Directions with regards to civil proceedings
under the Probate and Administration Act,
Mental Capacity Act, Wills Act, and other
related legislation as well as probate,
succession, wills, mental capacity and related
matters.

The Committee also engaged the Office of the
Public Guardian regarding issues pertaining
to the Mental Capacity Act.

3. Other Initiatives
Chairperson represented the Committee
during the 2018 State Courts and Family

Justice Courts Mission Trip to Beijing and
Guangzhou. The agenda included:
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* Sharing with Chinese counterparts
an overview of the probate regime
practice/ succession planning practice
and requirements in Singapore;

* Understanding the processes

and procedures that govern
inheritance for deceased Chinese
nationals who have acquired
moveable and/or immoveable
properties in Singapore as there has
been an increase in the number of
Chinese nationals living/working in
Singapore over the years; and

* Probate issues for Singaporeans
who have acquired moveable and/or
immoveable properties in China.

The Committee also provided feedback

to representatives from GovTech who are
working on a self-help application, Mylegacy,
for users to create their own wills.

Goh Kok Yeow Chairperson

Kee Lay Lian Vice-Chairperson

Chan Tai-Hui, Jason Council Representative
Chong Yue-en

Chugani Ashok Kan

David Chee Chern Ern

Jacintha Pillay d/o Rajagopal Pillay
Joel Wee Tze Sing (Joel Huang Zhixing)
Kanyakumari d/o Veerasamy

Leon Kwong Wing

Nureliza Syahidain Bte Effendy

Raman Gopalan

Samuel Wee Choong Sian

Sim Bock Eng

Tan-Goh Song Gek Alice

Tan Shen Kiat

Tan Tse Chia Patrick

Vivian Kuok Ming Koong

Yap Lan Hiang Vicky

Yeow Tin Tin Margaret

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan
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PUBLICATIONS

MALATHI DAS, CHAIRPERSON

The Publications Committee (the Committee)
oversees the following publications and
projects of the Law Society:

1. Singapore Law Gazette

The Committee publishes the official monthly
magazine of the Law Society, the Singapore
Law Gazette (the Law Gazette). The Commitiee
not only assists in the commissioning, writing
and proof-reading of each issue but also
periodically curates special thematic issues.
During the reporting period, the Committee
produced a theme issue on Cryptocurrencies
in September 2018, one on Public Law in May
2019 and most recently, in July 2019, a special
issue to mark Singapore’s Bicentennial.

Since January 2018, the Law Gazette has gone
fully digital ot www.lawgazette.com.sg. Every
month we inform members via edm when a new
issue is uploaded. The online Law Gazette has
steadily gained readership over the past

2 years. When we first introduced the online
Law Gazette in 2018, we had an average of
1,000 views each month. In 2019, the numbers
of views now average 3,500 per month.

2. Law Gazette Awards

The Law Gazette Awards were introduced

in 2013 to recognise our writers for their
contributions to the Law Gazette, and to
encourage the writing of good quality
articles. We awarded 2 prizes last year for
best feature; the first was by Professor Jeffrey
Pinsler, SC titled “The Springboard Injunction
and lts Future Potential in Singapore” and
the second by Calvin Liang titled “How to
Avoid Getting Clubbed to Death”. The award
for best feature by a young lawyer went to
Leo Zhi Wei for her article “Wrotham Park
Damages Revisited” Apart from receiving
book vouchers as prizes, the Committee

also specially commissioned a plaque in the

Annual Report 2019

shape of a book for each of the winners. The
Committee, at the time of writing of this report,
is undertaking the nominations for the 2019
awards. The awards are judged by a panel

of experienced volunteer judges from the
judiciary, legal profession and academia

Award for Best Feature by a Young Lawyer

3. Mass Call Supplement

Each year, the Committee publishes a
supplement for newly-called lawyers which

is given out at the annual Mass Call event.
This year, we devoted the August issue of the
online Law Gazette to the newly-admitted and
young lawyers with a special edition titled
“Nulawyer: The Essential App to Lawyering”
with articles by both young and senior lawyers
who shared tips on being resilient, staying on
course, advice from a corporate lawyer and a
senior lawyer, how in-house work differs from
law firm practice, and also an article from
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3 lawyers of varying vintage who shared how
practice training contracts nowadays differ
from the way pupillage was conducted

5 decades ago. One of our Committee
members Karin Lee also conducted interviews
with lawyers who have managed to
successfully combine a thriving law practice
with pet hobbies and interests such as music,
writing and sport. In addition to the fully
digital version, we also printed hard copies of
this special issue and distributed them to the
newly-called lawyers at the Mass Call held on
27 and 28 August 2019.

Law Gazette

i3 Mulowyar: Tha Exzeatial App to Lawyading

Mass Call Issue of the Law Gazette

4. Legal Writing Seminar

The Committee conducted a seminar titled
“Legal Drafting Skills: Calling a Spade a
Spade and Writing for Effectiveness” on

2 October 2018. The speakers were the
Honourable Justice Choo Han Teck and Dr
Michael Hwang, SC. Vice-President of the
Society, Adrian Tan, moderated the seminar
which saw a good turnout of 156 participants.
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The next seminar will be held on 7 November
2019 on digital communication and will be
helmed by Professor Ang Peng Hwa and Fong
Wei Li.

5. Online Directory of Law Practices and
Lawyers

The online Directory has consistently been
among the top 5 most visited sections of the
Society’s website. We are grateful to the law
practices that have purchased advertisements in
the Directory for their support.

Following feedback from members, we have
reinstated the directory of law practices and
lawyers on our website, in PDF format. The
directory was removed a few years ago when
the Legal Services Regulatory Authority (LSRA”
took over the registration of law practices. LSRA
will continue to have an online directory of law
practices and lawyers on its website.

6. Specialist Services Directory

The Committee produces the online
Specialist Services Directory which carries
advertisements by legal support services
providers including specialist witnesses.

We hope the Directory will continue to be

a useful and valuable resource for lawyers
seeking specialist opinions or perspectives,
procuring a specialist report or consulting or
instructing a specialist in both contentious
and non-contentious matters.

7. Annual Report

This year’s Annual Report with the tagline
“Charting Our Course” reflects the leadership
of the Law Society and Council in steering
the Society to face and adapt to the new
challenges ahead for the profession.

8. Jus News
The Committee continues to oversee the weekly
e-bulletin, Jus News, which brings the latest and

most current practice information, news and
related matters to the attention of members.
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9. Firm Closure
Dissemination Service

The Committee
continues to provide
a service to assist
law practices to
disseminate their
notices of holiday/
office closures to third
party organisations
(such as the Courts
and government
ministries) for a small
fee. The service was
introduced in January
2013 and has been
well-received by law
practices.

My appreciation
goes to my Co Vice-
Chairs, advisors and

Publications Committee 2019

members of the Committee for their creativity,
enthusiasm, feedback, contributions and

hard work in serving on this Committee. | am
also grateful to our Publications Department
comprising Sharmaine Lau and Shirin Kamsir,
without whose meaningful and tireless service
and support this Committee will not be able to

carry out all that we do.
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Malathi Das Chairperson

Rajan Chettiar Co Vice-Chairperson
Marcus Yip Co Co Vice-Chairperson
Vincent Leow Co Vice-Chairperson
Simran Kaur Toor Council Representative
Cameron Ford Advisor

Professor David Tan Advisor

Dr William Wan Advisor

Alex Liam

Audrey Ho Swee Lin

Debby Lim

Fong Wei Li

Janelene Chen

Josephine lezu Costan

Karin Lee Pin Wen

Kishan Pillay

Li Yan

Nur Hisyam Bin Azman

Shakti Sadashiv

Sharon Wong

Suang Wijaya

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Sharmaine Lau
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INTERNATIONAL LAW

PRAKASH PILLAI, CHAIRPERSON

This report is for the period 1 September 2018
to 31 August 2019.

For the reporting period, the Committee
organised a seminar on the Recognition and
Enforcement of Foreign Judgments in Asia.

This seminar was held in the evening of
Monday, 8 April 2019. There were 2 speakers,
Dr Adeline Chong, Associate Professor at the
Singapore Management University School of
Law and Calvin Liang, an Advocate from Essex
Court Chambers Duxton, a Singapore Group
Practice. The 2 speakers then participated in a
panel discussion chaired by Dr Michael Hwang,
SC, Vice-Chairperson of Law Society’s Public
and International Law Committee.

The seminar focused on the following topics:

(i) The significant increase in cross-
border transactions within ASEAN and
its major trade partners;

(ii) How the increase in cross-border
transactions leads inevitably to a
concomitant rise in cross-border
litigation;

(iii) How the greater portability of
judgments within ASEAN and its
major trade partners facilitates cross-
border transactions by lowering
transaction costs; and

(iv) How the increased transferability
of judgments within ASEAN and its
major trade partners reduces legal
friction among jurisdictions.

Feedback on the seminar was extremely
positive.

During the reporting period, the Committee
also brainstormed the best possible topics for
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the Public Law Conference 2019, an event
scheduled for 8 October 2019.

There is also a planned seminar on recent
developments in the enforcement of judgments
and awards against state assets in October
2019.

In addition, 2019 marks 70 years of

the Geneva Conventions as well as the
establishment of the Singapore Red Cross.
The Committee is co-organising a public event
in September 2019 to commemorate this
important anniversary.

Prakash Pillai Chairperson

Dr Michael Hwang, SC Vice-Chairperson
Tan Beng Hwee Paul Council Representative
Anthony Cheah Nicholls
Anthony Yvette Loretta

Chan Min Jian

Charis Tan En Pin

Jaclyn Neo

Jeffrey Chan Wah Teck, SC
Kam Su Cheun Aurill

Kevin Tan

Koh En Da Matthew

Koh Junxiang

Lee Chia Ming

Lee Soong Yan Kevin

Lim Si Cheng

Mahdev Mohan

Mahesh Rai s/o Vedprakash Rai
Tay Li Yan

Toh Jia Yi

Yvonne Mak Hui-Lin

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Rejini Raman
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SMALL LAW FIRMS

MICHAEL S CHIA, CO-CHAIRPERSON
LISA SAM HUI MIN, CO-CHAIRPERSON

The Small Law Firms
Committee presents its
report for the period
1 September 2018

to 31 August 2019
(Reporting Period).
Information regarding
the Committee’s key
activities and projects
during the Reporting
Period is as follows:

1. Series of Luncheons
at the State Courts Bar
Room

The Committee
continued its
collaboration with
the State Courts
& Family Justice
Courts Committee
(renamed as the
Court Practice Chairpersons’ Committee in
April 2019) to host a series of luncheons at the
State Courts Bar Room. Initiated in 2014, this
series of luncheons has received favourable
responses from members who practise in the
State Courts. Volunteer speakers and members
of the Law Society Secretariat spoke on a
wide range of topics such as managing clients
and mitigating complaints, diligence and
communication, and anti-money laundering.

The luncheon sessions were held on 13
September 2018, 20 February 2019, 12 April
2019 and 18 July 2018. Two more sessions are
slated to take place in September 2019 and
November 2019.

2. Networking Session with the Institution of
Engineers, Singapore (IES)

To catalyse more partnerships with other
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professional bodies, an inaugural networking
evening for lawyers and engineers was jointly
organised by the Law Society and IES on 1
November 2018 at IES’s premises. The session
was intended to generate more cross-referral
business leads and to facilitate an exchange

of industry insights. A networking dinner was
followed by joint welcome remarks delivered by
Co-Chairperson, Lisa Sam and a representative
from IES. Sharing of insights by our member
and a member of IES also took place before the
session ended with an ice-breaker game.

The Committee plans to co-organise a second
networking session with IES in the last quarter
of 2019.

3. Networking Session with the Institute of
Surveyors and Valuers (SISV)

Following the success of the networking

/189



SMALL LAW FIRMS

evenings with the Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants in 2017 and IES in
2018, the Committee jointly organised an
inaugural networking session with SISV on

11 July 2019 at the Singapore Management
University. There was sharing of insights by
our member on understanding professional
liabilities and a land surveyor on land survey
work scopes and encroachments. The session
ended with attendees having the opportunity
to network with one another. Many of our
members who do property disputes and
conveyancing practice found the session very
useful.

4. 2018 Mission Trip to Beijing and
Guangzhou (Mission Trip)

The Co-Chairpersons together with Anuradha
Sharma, Aye Cheng Shone and Genesis Shen
represented the Committee on this Mission Trip
and led the discussions with the following key
focus:

* Managing heightened client
expectations;

* Globalisation of legal practice and
the consequential emergence of global
law firms/accounting firms tying up
with law firms;

* Evolving legal practice structures;

* Changes to areas of work which
were previously the exclusive domain
of lawyers; and

* Understanding China’s approach to
low-value litigation claims.
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COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Michael S Chia Co-Chairperson

Lisa Sam Hui Min Co-Chairperson/Council Representative

Sunil Sudheesan Vice-Chairperson
Anuradha d/o Krishan Chand Sharma
Aye Cheng Shone

Cha Yong Sing, Ignatious

Cheah Saing Chong

Chia Swee Chye Kelvin

Daljit Kaur d/o Harbans Singh
Daryl Ong Hock Chye

Deepak Raja

Edward Stanley Tay Wey Kok
Ho Chye Hoon (Kelly)

Kiranjit Kaur Dharsan

Kuah Boon Theng, SC

Li Jiaxin

Lim Pei Ling June

Ng Keng Chye

Ng Pui Khim

Peng Jianxiong

Rashidah Binte Kader Saheer
Satwant Singh s/o Sarban Singh
Selina Chin Bau Tze

Su Hing Leng, Ryan (Si Yanlong)
Tan-Goh Song Gek Alice

Tan Heng Khim

Tan Kheng Ann Alvin

Tang Jin Sheng

Wang Yishi Tracy

Wee Anthony

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan
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SOCIAL AND WELFARE

HEWAGE USHAN SAMINDA PREMARATNE, CHAIRPERSON

The Social and Welfare Committee (SWC)
organises social activities and fosters
camaraderie among Law Society members

as well as reviews and administers the welfare
schemes of the Law Society.

Highlights of the SWC’s work for the period 1

September 2018-31 August 2019 are as follows:

1. Organising the Law Society Annual Dinner
& Dance 2018

The Law Society held its Annual Dinner &
Dance (D&D) on Friday, 9 November 2018
at Singapore Marriott Tang Plaza Hotel. The
evening was an unforgettable success with
more than 400 guests, including Judges and
Judicial Commissioners of the Supreme Court
and other distinguished guests.

The Master of Ceremony was Stephanie Bovis.

At the D&D, 3 awards were presented - the C
C Tan Award, Pro Bono Ambassador Award
and the Inaugural Sports Personality Award.
The C C Tan award for 2018 was conferred
on Mr Leo Cheng Suan while the Pro Bono
Ambassador Award 2018 was conferred on
Ms June Lim Pei Ling. The recipient for the
Inaugural Sports Personality Award was Mr
Bala Chandran s/o A. Kandiah.

Recipients of awards such as Volunteer

of the Year, Contributor of the Year, Pro

Bono Ambassador of the Year, Plaque of
Appreciation and Friend of the Law Society
were also invited to the D&D in recognition of
their contributions.

In line with the theme of the evening - Top
Secret, a jazz performance by Beverly

Lim Morata, and a Secret Agent Dance
performance were presented to the delight
of the guests. There was also a mobile bar
with a special cocktail by Asher BWS and
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Aperol Spritz, as well as a photo booth at the
reception area.

A booth was set up at the reception area by
Law Society Pro Bono Services which aims to
increase the collaboration and engagement
between lawyers and the wider community.
There were also fund-raising activities such
as silent auction and sales of shawls by the
Singapore Association for Women Lawyers.

2. Organising Festive Luncheons 2018/19

Luncheons were organised at the State Courts
Bar Room to celebrate various festive holidays
such as Lunar New Year, Deepavali and Hari
Raya. The luncheons were well attended by
more than 120 members during each session,
and attendees were able to enjoy traditional
festive cuisine at each luncheon.

Lunar New Year Luncheon

3. Whiskey Appreciation Event 2019

The Whiskey Appreciation Night 2019 was
held on 16 May 2019 at Pernod Ricard’s
Bar. Sponsored by Pernod Ricard, the event
was attended by more than 50 members.
Attendees were welcomed with champagne,
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and invited to sample a variety of premium
cognac and whiskeys from Perrier-Jouet,
Martell and Glenlivet.

4. Pub Quiz 2019

The Pub Quiz 2019 was held on 25 July 2019
at Elbow Room by Drinks & Co. More than 50
members attended this event, forming teams
to challenge their intellect while sharing drinks
and laughter through the evening. Winning
teams of the Pub Quiz, and winners of the
lucky draw went home with bottles of wine.

i N
Pub Quiz

5. Organising the Law Society Annual Dinner
& Dance 2019

D&D 2019 will be held on Friday, 15
November 2019 at The Fullerton Hotel. SWC
has put together an exciting programme

for this highly anticipated event in the legal
profession’s social calendar. Keep a lookout
for more details!
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COMMITTEE MEMBE RS 1

Hewage Ushan Saminda Premaratne Chairperson
Koh Li Qun Kelvin Co Vice-Chairperson

Ho Wei Liang Sherman Co Vice-Chairperson
Low Ying Li Christine Council Representative
Chen Ailin Shermin

De Souza Stephanie Michelle

Debbie Ooi Yu Ting

Josephine lezu Costan

Kong Yin Cheong Jared Andrew (Kaung Yanzhang)
Kor Wan Wen, Melissa

Nandhu

Noor Syuhada Mohamad Rafeek

Ong E-Wei, Patrick

Renuga Devi Sivaram

Swah Yeqin, Shirin

Tan Shi-En Nicolette

Toh Jun Yong Alex

Wong Chooi Teng, Sarah

Yvonne Mak Hui-Lin

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE
Shawn Toh
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SOLICITORS
ACCOUNTS RULES

CHEW KEI-JIN, CHAIRPERSON

In the year under review the Solicitors’
Accounts Committee (the Committee), did
not receive any requests from members for
guidance on the SAR.

The Committee was consulted upon and assisted
on a proposed guidance note on holding funds
in client account as financial intermediary.

The Committee had previously published the
guide book on Guide to Solicitors’ Accounts
(the Guide). The Guide is available at the
Society’s website hitp://www.lawsociety.org.
sg/portals/0/ResourceCentre/FreePublications/
pdf/SAR_Guide.pdf

Further, the Committee has compiled guidance
notes on queries provided to members which
was rolled out earlier and is available on

the Society’s website http://www.lawsociety.
org.sg/For-Lawyers/Running-Your-Practice/
Guidance-on-Professional-and-Practice-Issues.

A representative of the Committee was a panel
speaker at the Society’s annual mandatory
book-keeper’s course, as well as gave a talk
during a luncheon jointly organised by the
Small Law Firms Committee and State Courts
and Family Justice Courts Committee.

Chew Kei-Jin Chairperson

Vivienne Lim Vice-Chairperson

Michael S Chia Council Representative
Gary Allen Pryke

Mimi Oh

Low Chai Chong

Suresh Sukumaran Nair

Chitra Balakrishnan

Tham Lijing

Patrick Tan Tse Chia

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE
K Gopalan

Annual Report 2019 /193



SPORTS

SPORTS

CHAN LAI FOONG, CHAIRPERSON

The Sports Committee aims to cultivate
harmonious relations, encourage teamwork and
create camaraderie amongst members of the
Bar and the legal fraternity which includes the
Judiciary, legal officers, academia as well as
undergraduates, through social networking and
interaction over various sporting activities.

Highlights of the events organised by the Sports
Committee for the Bar and the legal fraternity for

the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019
include the following:

1. Inter-Professional Games (IPG) 2018

IPG 2018 was held from August to October
with participation from the Law Society of
Singapore, Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants, Institute of Engineers, Singapore
Institute of Architects, Singapore Institute of
Surveyors and Valuers, and Singapore Medical
Association. Badminton, Basketball, Bowling,
Chess, Golf, Floorball, Pool, Ladies’ Soccer,
Squash, Table Tennis, Tennis and Volleyball were
played competitively and Singapore Medical
Association was crowned the overall champion
for IPG 2018 with Law Society of Singapore
coming in third.

=1 g

IPB Bowling 2018
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2. Annudl Singapore-Penang Football Match 2018

The Annual Singapore-Penang Football
Match took place in Phuket, Thailand at the
Thanyapura Phuket Sports Resort from 31
August to 2 September 2018. There was no
overall winner this year as the match ended
with a final score of 0-0.

Singapore-Penang Football Match
3. Annual Local Bench & Bar (Badminton) 2018

The Annual Local Bench & Bar Badminton 2018
was held at Singapore Chinese Girls’ School on

13 October 2018. The Games started with the

VIP doubles match win by PJ(SC) Justice See Kee
Oon and Foo Chee Hock, Dean of the Singapore
Judicial College for the Bench against Law Society
President Gregory Vijayendran, SC and Vice-
President Adrian Tan for the Bar. The Bar, however,
took home the Challenge Trophy, winning all of the
five matches that were keenly contested.

4. Tripartite Volleyball Game

The 5th Tripartite Volleyball Game between Hong
Kong Law Society, Malaysia Bar Council and the
Law Society of Singapore was held in Penang,
Malaysia at Azman Hashim Sports Complex.

The game took place on 27 October 2018. The
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Law Society of Singapore defeated Malaysia

Bar Council 3-0 but lost to Law Society of Hong
Kong 2-3. The Law Society of Singapore emerged
as the overall champion with the most number of
winning points.

5. Annual Piala Pala Bowling Tournament

The Annual Piala Pala Bowling Tournament 2018
was held at West Bowl on 8 December 2018.
State Courts Team 1 (Eddy Tham, Karen Lin

and John Ng) won the tournament, while Legal
Works (Dorothy Tay, Calvin Thean and Kenneth
Teo) and LSS (Alvin Ron, Desiree Lim and Rachel
Ang) came in first and second runners-up of the
tournament respectively.

6. Law Fraternity Games

The participation of the Law Fraternity Games
consisted of members of the Law Society

of Singapore, law students from National
University of Singapore (NUS) and Singapore
Management University (SMU). The games were
held over the period of three days from 25 to 27
January 2019. An Opening Ceremony with free
flow of food and drinks was held at Charlie’s
Restaurant & Bar to kick start the games. The
Law Society emerged as the overall champion.

7. Golden Jubilee Malaysia/Singapore Bench
& Bar Games 2019

Over the long weekend of 25 April to 27 April
2019, the 50th Annual Malaysia/Singapore
Bench & Bar Games took place in Singapore.
A total of 19 sports (16 competitive games,
two non-competitive games and one exhibition
match) were played between Singapore and
Malaysia. It was a close fight and both teams
competed fearlessly, with Singapore winning
the Judges’ Cup with an overall score of 9-8.

The Sports Committee has received a
formal protest from the Sports Committee
of the Malaysia Bar Council on 6 May
2019 in relation to the overall result of the
50th Malaysia-Singapore Bench and Bar
Games 2019 and are currently engaged in
correspondence with them to address the
points of protests they have raised.
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8. Law Society Cross Country

Watch this space for the results next year!

Bench & Bar Games 2019

COMMITTEE MEMBER S 15—
Chan Lai Foong Chairperson

Tan Xu Teng Vice-Chairperson (Tennis and Boat Race
Convenor)

Lisa Sam Hui Min Council Representative

Amerjeet Singh (Darts Co-Convenor)

Aylwin Tan

Bala Chandran s/o A Kandiah (Veteran Soccer Convenor)
Chen Yixin Edith (Floorball Convenor)

Chung Weijian Brandon lan (Badminton Convenor)
Felix Lee Shih Yang (Badminton Convenor)

Ho Wanyi (Ladies’ Soccer Convenor)

Ivan Yap Kim Wee (Squash Convenor)

Javier Yeo (Bowling Convenor)

Jispal Singh s/o Harbnan Singh

Joey Lim (Volleyball Convenor)

Lee Koon Foong Adam Hariz

Lee Terk Yang (Premier Soccer Convenor)

Lee Wangqi Leeza

Leon Koh Weijin (Golf Co-Convenor)

Lim Siew Kuan (Golf Co-Convenor)

Liow Wang Wu Joseph

Malcolm Tan (Chess Convenor)

Moiz Haider Sithawalla (Cricket Convenor)
Muhammad Imaduddien bin Abd K

Nakoorsha bin Abdul Kadir (Darts Convenor)

Ng Pei Tong (Table Tennis Co-Convenor)

Nurul Nordin (Netball Convenor))

Ong Kuan Chung (Pool Co-Convenor)

Ramesh Selvaraj (Cross Country Convenor)

Ravin Periasamy (Hockey Convenor)

Tan Cheow Hung (Pool Co-Convenor)

Valmiki C Nair (Touch Rugby Convenor)

Wong Foong Wee (Basketball Co- Convenor)

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE
Shawn Toh
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WOMEN IN PRACTICE

SIMRAN KAUR TOOR, CO-CHAIRPERSON
TAN MAY LIAN FELICIA, CO-CHAIRPERSON

For the reporting
period of

1 September 2018

to 31 August 2019,
the Women in
Practice Committee
(the Committee) was
instituted from a
taskforce that was set
up in March 2018 to
a standing Committee
in the beginning of
2019. The Committee
was active in the
following initiatives to
look into and further
the interests of female
women lawyers in
practice:

1. Women in Practice
(#WIP) Survey

Over 500 responses were received for the
online survey conducted by the taskforce
from July to end September 2018, to better
understand needs of women lawyers in
practice and how the Committee can address
the issues faced by women lawyers.

2. Roundtables

As a follow up to the survey conducted in
2018, the Committee organised a series of
roundtables from May to July 2019. Five
roundtables focusing on areas of mentorship,
business development, discrimination/
unconscious bias, retention and harassment
were conducted with the following groups:

a. Women Lawyers from the junior,
middle and senior categories;

b. Managing Partners and Hiring
Managers/Recruitment Partners; and
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c. Male Lawyers.

3. Women in Practice (#WIP): Change and
Impact

The Committee organised this over-subscribed
seminar on 16 January 2019 where senior
female lawyers in law firms shared their
experiences and views on the challenges in
climbing the corporate ladders and outlook for
the legal industry over the next 5 years. A panel
of esteemed speakers who have made their
mark in law and innovation also shared their
thoughts on women and technology, and how
one leverages on technology for career success.

4. Women in Practice (#WIP) Networking
Event: Inspire & Aspire

The Committee organised a networking event
on 17 April 2019 for women lawyers across a
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wide spectrum of practice areas and seniority
to mingle and network. This was a well-
attended event, graced by Her Honourable
Justice of Appeal Judith Prakash, where
attendees (especially the junior lawyers) were
given the opportunity to interact with invited
guests and fellow practitioners who faced
similar career challenges, to learn and be
inspired by their experiences.

5. Women Lawyers of Tomorrow - Pushing
Base, Brand and Boundaries

The Committee, with the support from the
Office for Women’s Development, Ministry of
Social and Family Development, organised a

session on personal branding on 23 July 2019.

A panel of esteemed speakers shared their
strategies on what lawyers can do to identify
their unique brand, develop and market their
brand, be clear on their core values, appeal
to their target market, and successfully present
their brand to others in order to stand out in
this competitive legal industry.
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COMMITTEE MEMBER'S

Simran Kaur Toor Co-Chairperson
Tan May Lian Felicia Co-Chairperson
Angela Lim Loke San

Cathryn Neo Mei Qin

Chew Lixian Ashley

Dierdre Grace Morgan

Chia Hsien Lin Jennifer

Gloria James-Civetta

Hing Wei Yuen Angelina

Kam Su Cheun Aurill

Kaveeta Sandhu

Kuah Boon Theng, SC

Lim Hui Li Debby

Low Ying Li, Christine (Liu Yingli)
Shobna d/o V Chandran

Sim Jek Sok, Disa

Soh Hui Mun Lynn

Soh Lisha

Toh Jia Yi

Yong Siow Hui Michelle

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Genie Sugene Gan
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YOUNG LAWYERS

CHOO ZHENG XIl, CO-CHAIRPERSON
GERALD THAM, CO-CHAIRPERSON

The Young Lawyers’ Committee (YLC)
endeavours to understand and address the
needs and concerns of members in the Junior
Category i.e. those with less than 5 years of
experience in practice.

The YLC remains active in contributing to

a monthly “Young Lawyer” column which
includes “Amicus Agony” in the Singapore
Law Gazette that addresses the challenges
faced by young practitioners in relation to the
realities of legal practice.

In 2016, Council of the Law Society had
inaugurated a sponsorship scheme to sponsor
up to 4 young lawyers to attend international
legal conferences organised by the International
Bar Association, Inter-Pacific Bar Association or
LAWASIA with the intent to encourage young
lawyers to attend overseas conferences. This
scheme continues to be in popular demand as
we see more and more young lawyers applying
for the sponsorship. To maintain the tradition

of welcoming the newest members to the legal
profession, YLC hosted the Mass Call Reception
on 30 and 31 August 2018. The YLC also
sponsored an instant photo booth for newly
called members to capture their momentous
moment with families and friends.

To continue building camaraderie with doctors
and unwind on a Thursday evening, the annual
lawyer-doctor networking event took place on 19
September 2018 at Infiniti Showroom. Lawyers
and doctors mingled over a buffet spread and
cocktails.

As part of YLC's ongoing efforts to raise
awareness on law as a career, members of

YLC participated in career talks at Ang Mo Kio
Secondary School, Commonwealth Secondary
School, Woodlands Ring Secondary School and
Catholic Junior College between January 2019 to
May 2019. At the career talks, members of YLC
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shared with students the role of Law Society, their
personal experiences as young lawyers as well
as answered questions raised by the students.

To understand issues and challenges from the
perspectives of young lawyers, YLC will be
organising a Young Lawyers Forum in November
2019. Check this space for updates next year.

Two representatives from YLC hosted the

new President of International Association of
Young Lawyers (AlJA) on 25 October 2018 to
exchange ideas on the legal profession in Asia
and globally.

Last but not least, the YLC would like to express its
appreciation to all who have been supportive of
its initiatives and looks forward to planning more
activities for the junior category community!

Attendees at Annual Lawyers-Doctors
Networking Event 2018

Attendees checking out Infiniti Cars
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Choo Zhengxi Co-Chairperson
Gerald Tham Co-Chairperson
Diedre Grace Morgan Vice-Chairperson
Low Ying Li, Christine Council Representative
Ng Huan Yong Council Representative
Abhinav Ratan Mohan

Audrey Liaw Shu Juan

Benny Santoso

Cha Yong Sing, Ignatious

Chooi Jing Yen

De Souza Stephanie Michelle
Gregory Xu Weicheng

Hany Soh Hui Bin

Hiren George Jonas

Hoong Li Ying

John Lo

Lim Charmaine Jillian Phipps

Ng Sui Ping, Penelope Ann
Nicole Carmen Tan Yi

Rebecca Vathanasin

Shereen Hergobind Goklani
Siow Ying Yi

Soh Su Ming, Berlin

Suang Wijaya

Tan Kee Ming, Glen

Tan Wei-Min Sarah Ephesians
Tanya Thomas Vadaketh

Tran Le Luu Phuong

Vikram Ranjan Ramasamy
Vinodhan Gunasekaran

Wong Yi

Yeong Kai Jun, Geraldine

Rebecca, member of YLC speaking to students at
Catholic Junior College

Hany Soh, member of YLC sharing at Woodlands Ring SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE
Secondary School Shawn Toh
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ADMISSIONS

ADMISSIONS

ENHANCING PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

CHRISTOPHER ANAND DANIEL, CHAIRPERSON

This report is in respect of the period
1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019.

1. Admission of Advocates and Solicitors

A total of 695 applicants were admitted as
advocates and solicitors of the Supreme Court
of Singapore compared to 642 applicants who
were admitted during the last reporting period.
The Mass Call was held over 3 consecutive
sessions on 27 August 2019 and 28 August
2019 at the Supreme Court auditorium. 529
applicants were admitted. There were 456
applicants admitted in Mass Call 2018.

2. Part-Call Applications

There were 24 applications for part-call for the
reporting period compared to 27 applications
during the last reporting period. Three part-

call applicants sought leave to withdraw their
applications because they had not served the
relevant stakeholders within the appropriate time.

3. Abridgement of Time Applications

During this reporting period, there were 2
applications for abridgement of time. One
application was successful. In the other
application for abridgment of time, the applicant
sought leave to withdraw his application on

the day of the hearing. Leave was granted to
withdraw with no order as to costs.

4. Section 15(1) Legal Profession Act -

Ad Hoc Admission of Queen’s Counsel of
Equivalent

In the present reporting period, the Admissions
Committee considered 2 applications under

section 15(1) Legal Profession Act.

The first application was for the ad hoc
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admission of Vernon James Flynn QC. Steven
Chong JA dismissed the application on
20 September 2018.

The second application was for the ad hoc
admission of Matthew Peter Gearing. This is
currently before the courts.

5. Section 78(1) Legal Profession Act -
Applications for Employment of Support Staff

In the present reporting period, the Admissions
Committee considered one application made
by a law practice for consent of the High
Court to employ support staff in view of their
bankruptcy or suspension from practice, as
required under the provisions of section 78(1)
of the Legal Profession Act.

Choo Han Teck J granted the application on
29 January 2019.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS I —

Christopher Anand Daniel Chairperson
Rajan Sanjiv Kumar Vice-Chairperson
Chia Boon Teck Council Representative
Chan Hian Young

Cheong Zhihui Ivan

Daniel Chia Hsiung Wen

Davis Tan Yong Chuan

Emmanuel Duncan Chua

Gregory Xu Weicheng

Jasmine Quek

Juliana Yap

Kelvin Tan Teck San

Kenneth Lim Tao Chung

Pradeep G Pillai

Saw Seang Kuan

Tham Wei Chern

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Rejini Raman
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ENHANCING PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

ANTI-MONEY

LAUNI

DERING

SURENTHIRARAJ S/O SAUNTHARARAJAH, CHAIRPERSON

1. Anti-Money Laundering Survey 2018

In October 2018, the Law Society working
with Accuity, a global provider of risk and
compliance solutions, conducted a survey
among both Singapore law practices and
foreign law practices to understand and
identify the challenges facing law firms in
meeting their AML obligations.

The survey results indicated that:

* Small law firms (5 or less lawyers)
and firms with an emphasis on
conveyancing might unwittingly be
targets of money launderers and
terrorism financing. This is partly due to
an absence of a framework to deal
with AML and counter terrorism
financing (CTF) and partly due to

a lack of awareness about how
financial criminals might leverage on
law firms’ services to achieve their
outcomes.

* There are marked differences in
the AML practices of the smaller and
larger firms in Singapore, with small
firms showing particular cause for
concern.

* A significant portion of small and
medium sized law firms (6 to 30
lawyers) do not have documented
Client Due Diligence or Suspicious
Transaction Reporting procedures in
place.

* It is likely that Singapore law firms

are under-reporting suspicious
transactions.
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Anli-Money Laundering Survey 2018
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Circular on Anti-Money Laundering Survey 2018

2. Consultations

This year in March, the Financial Action Task
Force (FATF) invited feedback from private
stakeholders before finalizing the “Draft
Risk-Based Approach Guidance for Legal
Professionals. The Guidance is intended to
provide support both to the private sector
and public authorities, by focusing on ML/TF
risks and associated mitigation measures. The
Committee had, in consultation with Council
submitted its views to FATF in April 2019.
The Committee provided their views to the
Ministry of Law on key changes associated
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with the launch of the electronic Suspicious
Transaction Reporting (STR)-filing platform called
the STRO Online Notices and Reporting platform
(SONAR). The electronic filing of STRs are in line
with the nation-wide initiative to digitise. Members
were notified on the migration to SONAR
through Jus News with guidance available on
Law Society’s AML webpage.

3. Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Inspections

The yearly AML inspections of 50 law
practices were carried out by 2 audit firms in
October and November 2018. The results were
encouraging with most law practices accorded
a positive assessment. The law practices that
did not meet regulatory requirements were
requested to take remedial actions to address
areas for improvement. The Committee will
continue to provide guidance to practitioners,
such as through seminars/briefings and
circulars.

4. Outreach Efforts

The Committee is committed to actively
educating members to raise awareness and
knowledge for better coordination of money
laundering prevention efforts. Throughout the
year, the Committee continued to broaden
and enhance its outreach and engagement
initiatives covering key areas in AML
compliance at the following events:

a. In February 2019, Chairperson,
Suressh provided training on lawyers’
AML obligations at the Law Society’s
Legal Practice Management Course;

b. In May 2019, Committee member,
Chia Boon Teck spoke at the Singapore
Financial Crime Prevention Symposium
that looked at the key risks facing
financial services businesses in Singapore;

c. In May 2019, Chairperson, Suressh
was invited by Accuity, a global
compliance solutions provider, to be
part of a panel that examined the issue
of de-risking in the context of AML
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regulation;

d. In July 2019, Chairperson, Suressh
presented the findings of the AML
survey 2018 at the Law Society’s Small
Firms Committee Luncheon;

e. In July 2019, Chairperson, Suressh
and Vice-Chairperson, Yeoh Lian Chuan
were on a panel that discussed “The
Panama and Paradise Papers,
International Commercial Structures
and lllegal Conduct” at a Continuing
Professional Development seminar;

f. In August 2019, Vice-Chairperson,
Yeoh Lian Chuan represented the Law
Society on a panel at the Joint National
AML/CFT Conference in Malaysia
organised by the Bank Negara Malaysia
(BNM) in collaboration with the
Malaysian Bar; and

g. In August 2019, Chairperson,
Suressh together with Committee
members Stephen Revell and Grace
Chong were panel speakers that
explored Singapore AML legislation
as it impacts lawyers at a seminar
organised by Singapore International
Chamber of Commerce Legal Services
Interest Group.

The annual AML seminar organised by

the Committee with the assistance of the
Continuing Professional Development
Department in September 2018 was well-
attended with speakers discussing topics such
as “Current Issues in Terrorism Financing”
and “Future Directions for AML and The Legal
Profession”.

The Committee will continue to engage with
members and stakeholders to enhance its
future outreach initiatives and address issues
faced by practitioners.

5. Others

The Committee has commenced a review
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of the existing Practice Direction 3.2.1 to
update it to reflect the developments in AML
regulations since 2015, in particular the
updated Risk-Based Approach Guidance for
Legal Professionals that FATF issued earlier this
year, and the findings of the Mutual Evaluation
Report on Singapore published in 2016.
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COMMITTEE MEMBER S /55—
Surenthiraraj s/o Saunthararajah Chairperson
Yeoh Lian Chuan Nigel Vice-Chairperson

Ng Lip Chih Council Representative

Chia Boon Teck

Chow Ci En Grace

Grace Chong

Hsu Sheng Wei Keith

Leong Lu Yuan (Liang Luyuan)

Loh Hui Chen Nicola

Stephen Michael Revell

Tow Chew Choy

Wong Ruigin Serena

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Rejini Raman
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11

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This report covers the period 1 September
2018 to 31 August 2019. During this period
the Law Society (Society) received 55
complaints of inadequate professional services
under section 75B of the Legal Profession Act

(the Act).

Of the 55 complaints received, 2 were
rejected because they did not fall within the
ambit of an inquiry for a complaint under

the Act as they originated from non-clients

and related to matters of conduct rather than
inadequate professional services. Out of the 2
that were rejected, one complaint involved an
unauthorised person who held himself out as a
solicitor providing legal services and another
2 complaints were rejected as the conduct
complained of, occurred more than

3 years from the date the complaint was made.

A total of 10 complaints were withdrawn as the
complainants subsequently settled the matter
with their solicitors, 8 of which were resolved

at meetings facilitated by the Society. Currently,
6 complaints are in the process of self-resolution
between the solicitor and his/her client.

Further, 4 complaints were stayed as the
complainants had made a complaint under
section 85(1) of the Act and current protocol
requires that any inquiry into a complaint
under section 85(1) of the Act be concluded
before the complaint under section 75B of the
Act is referred for inquiry.

Of the remaining complaints, 13 complaints
were referred to Council and the remainder of
the complaints are pending further particulars
from the complainants. The particulars
requested from the complainants were
pertinent to properly identify the breach of the
standards of adequate professional service
complained of. Complainants are always

Annual Report 2019

advised that a complaint made under the Act
is not intended to resolve disputes over
client-solicitor’s costs nor inquire into
allegations of professional negligence.

Of the complaints referred to Council,

7 complaints were dismissed as there was no
prima facie case of a breach of adequate
professional services.

Mediations Conducted from
1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019

For the relevant period, 4 mediations were
scheduled, out of which 2 mediations yielded
a settlement agreement between the parties
with the remaining 2 still in progress.

Investigative Tribunals Appointed from
1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019

Two Investigative Tribunals were appointed
during the period under consideration. One
of the Investigative Tribunals ceased inquiry
when the complaint was withdrawn following
a settlement reached between the complainant
and the respondent. The other Investigative
Tribunal was aborted as the complainant

was no longer contactable at her last known
address and number.

// 105



REPORT OF THE INQUIRY PANEL

ENHANCING PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

REPORT OF THE
INQUIRY PANEL

This Report covers the period 1 September

2018 to 31 August 2019.

Pursuant to section 84 of the Legal Profession
Act (Chapter 161, 2012 Revised Edition) (the

Act), the Honourable the Chief Justice has

appointed the following persons to be members

of the Inquiry Panel for a term of 2 years.

ADVOCATES & SOLICITORS

The following appointees’ term will expire on

30 November 2019:

MR PHILIP JEYARETNAM, SC -
CHAIRMAN, INQUIRY PANEL

1. Mr Francis Xavier, SC
2. Mr Michael Khoo Kah Lip, SC
3. Ms Teh Guek Ngor Engelin, SC

4. Mr Davinder Singh s/o Amar Singh, SC

5. Mr Andre Yeap Poh Leong, SC
6. Mr N. Sreenivasan SC

7. Mr Cavinder Bull, SC

8. Mr Siraj Omar, SC

9. Mr Pathmanaban Selvadurai
10. Ms Oh Buong Yu May

11. Mr Woo Tchi Chu

12. Mr Tan Jin Hwee

13. Ms Maria Lam Sek Fah (Maria Tham)

14. Mr Sim Yong Chan
15. Mr Prabhakaran Nair

16. Mr Ragbir Singh s/o Ram Singh Bajwa

17. Mr Tan Denis

18. Mr Chandra Mohan K Nair
19. Mr Madan Assomull

20. Mr Peter Chong Siong Siang
21. Mr Seah Teck Kim, Kim

22. Mr Bernard Doray

23. Ms Chew Gek Tee Sally

24. Mr Leng Siew Wei Aloysius
25. Ms Woon Lai Keng (Julie)
26. Mr Quek Mong Hua

27. Mr Sarjit Singh s/o Bhagwan Singh

28. Mr Steven Seah Seow Kang
29. Mr Raymond Chan
30. Mr Tan Keok Heng George
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31. Mr Krishnan Sivanandam

32. Mr Chew Swee Leng

33. Mrs Gina Lee-Wan

34. Mr Lee Han Tiong

35. Ms Tan Lay Keng

36. Mr Mahtani Naresh Murlidhar
37. Mr Yang Yung Chong

38. Mr John Ng Lee Chye

39. Mr Cheong Tuck Meng

40. Ms See Siew Heok Jo-Ann

41. Mr Lee Kuen Yip

42. Mr Koh Boon Hai

43. Mr Lim Chen Thor Jason

44. Mdm Susan Mary De Silva
45. Ms Josephine Low Miew Yin
46. Mr Ong Kian Wei Timothy

47. Mr Chua Leong Hin

48. Mr Tan Kheng Ann Alvin

49. Ms Wong Lai Keen

50. Mr Tan Jee Ming

51. Mr David Yeow

52. Mr Tan Lam Siong

53. Mr Selva Kumara Naidu

54. Mr Phua Siow Choon

55. Mr Michael Moey Chin Woon
56. Mr Abdul Jalil Bin Muhammad Tahir
57. Dr Chuang Wei Ping

58. Mr Lee Teck Hai

59. Mr Adrian Ee Hock Hoe

60. Mr Herman Jeremiah

61. Ms Yip Wai Ping Annabelle
62. Mr Goh Kok Yeow

63. Mr Ravindran s/o Muthucumarasamy
64. Mr Chan Hian Young

65. Mr Thomas Tan Boon Yong
66.Ms Yee May Kuen Peggy Sarah
67. Ms Chen Wen Woan Angela
68. Mdm Sheena Rohini Jacob
69. Mr Lim Tat

70. Ms Lalita Chelliah

71. Mr Lim Chong Boon

72. Mr Lim Soo Peng

73. Mr Ravendra Krishnasamy

74. Mr Soh Leong Kiat Anthony
75. Mr Salem Bin Mohamed Ibrahim
76. Mr Kok Hei Mun Jonathan

77. Mr Tan Lay Tiong Anthony
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78. Mr Patrick Ang Peng Koon

79. Mr Chong Yee Leong

80. Mdm Elaine Beh Pur-Lin

81. Mr Tan Kay Kheng

82. Mr Ramesh Chandr Tiwary

83. Mr Abdur Raheem Bin Mohd Igbal
84. Mr Yeo Chuan Seng Victor

85. Mdm Zahara Binte Bakar

86. Mr Surenthiraraj Saunthararajah
87. Mdm Teo Kwee Yee (Claudia)
88. Mr Lawrence Lee Mun Kong
89. Ms Yogarajah Yoga Sharmini
90. Mr Neo Ho Guan Bernie

91. Ms Lisa Theng Siew Lian

92. Ms Marian Ho Wui Mee

93. Mr Chan Wai Mun

94. Mr Seah Eng Chee Rupert

95. Mr Chong Kuan Keong

96. Mr P Padman

97. Ms See Tow Soo Ling

98. Mr Christopher Woo Yin Loong
99. Mr Foo Maw Shen

100. Mr Chandra Mohan Rethnam
101. Mr Yeo Soo Mong Tony

102. Mr Lee Wei Yung

103. Ms Lee Mong Jen

104. Mr Bernard Sahagar s/o Tanggavelu
105. Ms Nirmala Ravindran

106. Ms Kanyakumari d/o Veerasamy
107. Mr Eu Hai Meng

108. Mr Hue Kuan Chen Wilson
109. Mr Jason Chan Kwok Chuan
110. Mr Amolat Singh

111. Mr Liow Wang Wu Joseph
112. Mr Anparasan s/o Kamachi
113. Mr Parwani Vijai Dharamdas
114. Mr Soh Kar Liang

115. Mr Leck Kwang Hwee Andy
116. Mr Abdul Salim Ahmed Ibrahim
117. Ms Lim Lay Choo Jennifer

118. Mr Loh Eu Tse Derek

119. Mr Loke Siew Meng

120. Mr Andrew Wu Chih Wei

121. Mrs Stefanie Yuen Thio

122. Ms Christine Sekhon

123. Mdm Wong Su-Hsien Audrey
124. Mdm Yeow Tin Tin Margaret
125. Mr Rajesh Sreenivasan

126. Mr Edwin Lee Peng Khoon
127. Mr Low Cheong Yeow

128. Mr Chen Nan Chung Burton
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129.
130.
131.
132.
133.
134.
135.
136.

Mr Jonathan Lim Tiek Beng

Mr Renganathan Nandakumar
Mr Zaminder Singh Gill

Mr Christopher Anand s/o Daniel
Mr Tan Teck San Kelvin

Mr Lawrence Tan Aik Leng

Mr Thomas John

Ms Ho Kim Foong

137. Ms Leow Tze Hoon Christabel

138.
139.
140.
141.
142.
143.
144.
145.
146.
147.
148.
149.
150.
151.
152.
153.
154.
155.
156.

Mr Philip Fong Yeng Fatt

Mr Tang Chi Loong

Mr Chey Cheng Chwen Anthony
Mr Cosmas Stephen Gomez

Mr Nandakumar Ponniya

Mr Lim U Wei Ralph Howard
Mr Bernard Chiu Hsu-Hwee

Mr Gong Chin Nam

Mr Yeo Kim Hai Patrick

Mr Goh Chye Hock Joseph

Mr K Muralitherapany

Mr Ang Wee Tiong

Ms Lam Shiao Ning

Mr Yeo Khee Chye Raymond

Mr Michael Low Wan Kwong
Ms Subashini d/o Narayanasamy
Mr Khaira Akramjeet Singh

Mr Ng Kim Beng

Mr Gan Kian Koon Gerry

157. Mr Henry Heng Gwee Nam

158.
159.
160.
161.
162.
163.
164.
165.
166.

Mr Pillai Pradeep G

Mr Lim Choon How

Mr Cheong Chee Min

Ms Choo Poh Hua Josephine

Mr Namasivayam Srinivasan

Mr Derek Tan Jet Wah

Mr Eusuff Ali s/o N B M Mohamed Kassim
Mr Lem Jit Min Andy

Mr Chen Chee Yen

167. Mr Jeeva Arul Joethy

168.
169.
170.
171.
172.
173.
174.
175.
176.
177.
178.
179.

Mr Chan Kah Keen Melvin
Mr Say Chin Phang Sean
Mr Andrew Ho Yew Cheng
Mr Christopher Chong Chi Chuin
Mr Tan Chuan Bing Kendall
Ms Lau Yee Wan Sharon
Mdm Lee Su Yee

Mr Low Yew Shen

Mr Patrick Tan Tse Chia

Mr Chan Jin Han

Mr Adrian Wong Soon Peng
Mr Ong Sing Huat (Nick)
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180. Mr Chia Peng Kiat Kenneth
181. Mr Chan Wei Meng

The following appointees’ term expired on
17 August 2019:

182. Ms Phang Sui Choon (Michelle)

183. Mr Yee Weng Wai Bernard 1. Mr Tan Cheng Han, SC
184. Ms Tsin Jenny 2. Mr Andy Yeo Kian Wee
185. Mr Desmond Tan Yen Hau 3. Ms Ang Siok Hoon

186. Mr Raymond Lam Kuo Wei 4. Mr Darius Bragassam

187. Mr Sim Chong

5. Mr Tan Wen Cheng Adrian

188. Mr Melvin See Hsien Huei 6. Mr Teo Ke-Wei lan
189. Mr Ho Ying Ming
190. Mr Edmund Eng Zixuan The following appointees’ term will expire on

191. Mr Dennis Chua Soon Chai

17 August 2021:

192. Ms Lim Chen Chen
193. Mr Mark Jerome Seah Wei Hsien 1. Mr Alfonso Ang Cheng Ann
194. Ms Rajan Menon Smitha 2. Mr Andrew Chan Chee Yin

195.
196.

Mr Arvind Daas Naaidu
Ms Lim Hui Ying

197. Ms Soh Ean Leng Angeline

3. Ms Ang Hui Ming Vivian
4. Mr Bernard Tan Kim Swee
5. Ms Catherine Lim Chui Ling

198. Mr Ajaib Haridass 6. Mdm Chew Ming Hsien Rebecca
199. Mr Chia Ho Choon 7. Mr Chan Wai Kit Darren Dominic
200. Mr Andrew Yeo Khirn Hin 8. Ms Chang Boon Ngee Laura
201. Mr Chai Ming Kheong Joseph 9. Mr Chen Chuanlian Jason

202. Mr Chai Ming Fatt James 10. Mr Chia Voon Jiet

203. Mr Chan Hock Keng 11. Mr Chong Keen Loon David
204. Mr Alvin Cheng Sun Cheok 12. Mr Choo Chih Chien Benjamin
205. Ms Ang Mei-Ling Valerie Freda 13. Ms Corinne Taylor Lai Sze Huei
206. Mr Chia Peng Chuang 14. Mr Daniel Tay Yi Ming

207. Ms Chiang Ju Hua Audrey 15. Mr Daryl Ong Hock Chye

208. Mr Chan Ju-lian 16. Mr Dayne Ho Chung Wei

209. Mr Chia Jin Chong Daniel 17. Mr Derek Kang Yu Hsien

210. Mr Chew Kiat Jinn 18. Ms Ellen Lee Geck Hoon

211. Ms Chee Hui Yen Charlene Clara

212.
213.
214.
215.
216.

Mr Alvin Lim Jun Hao

Ms Aw Wen Ni

Mr Baldev Singh Bhinder
Ms Chen Weiling

Mr Darrell Low Kim Boon

217. Ms Fu Simin Charmaine

19. Mr Gaw Ying Charn Benjamin
20. Mr Goh Kok Leong

21. Ms Grace Kwek Joo Lee

22. Ms Jennifer Leong Pek Lin

23. Mr Joseph Lee Sien Liang

24. Ms Kang Yixian

25. Mr Lam Chung Nian

218. Mr Chu Hua Yi 26. Mr Lim Yee Ming

219. Ms Fong Lee Cheng Jennifer 27. Mdm Linda Phua Mui Lu
220. Mr Chow Chao Wu Jansen 28. Mr Ling Daw Hoang Philip
221. Ms Foo Yuet Min 29. Ms Loh Wai Mooi

222. Mr Adam Muneer Yusoff Maniam 30. Mr Low Gin Inn Leon
223. Ms Charmaine Chan-Richard 31. Mr Mark Cheng Wai Yuen
224. Ms Chia Ru Yun Megan Joan 32. Mr Mohamed Gul

225. Mr Ho Mingjie Kevin 33. Mr N K Rajarh
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34. Mr Navin Joseph Lobo
35. Mr Paul Wong Por Luk
36. Mr Peh Nam Chuan Adrian

37. Mr Ponnampalam Sivakumar
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38. Mr Ramasamy s/o Karuppan Chettiar
39. Mr Richard Tan Kheng Swee

40. Mr Ricquier William John Munden
41. Mr Rodney Keong Kean Soon

42. Ms Salehah Bte Johari

43. Ms Selvam Arfat Nee Arfat Beebee
Binte Noor Mohamed Abdul Latiff

44. Mr Sunit Chhabra

45. Mr Suresh Divyanathan

46. Mr Tan Hsuan Boon

47. Mr Tan Wei Shyan

48. Ms Winnifred Gomez

49. Mr Wong Kin Kit Winston

REGULATED FOREIGN LAWYERS

The following appointees’ term will expire on
14 December 2019:

1. Mr Alan Joseph Dickson

2. Mr Alexander George
Shepherd

3. Mr Andrew Jonathan Brereton
4. Mr Andrew Robert Schleider

5. Mr Arnold lur Gerscha

6. Mr Barry Lewis Irwin

7. Mr Barrye Langhorne Wall

8. Mr Benjamin Jonathan Rose

9. Mr Bruce Reid Schulberg

10. Ms Chen Xi

11. Mr Christopher James Paul Bradley
12. Mr David Harris Zemans

13. Mr David Lionel Barwise

14. Mr David William Platt

15. Ms Dominique Lucie Rondest
Ep. Lombardi

16. Mr Eric Jay Piesner

17. Mr Fernando Gandioli

18. Mr George Matthew Sheridan
19. Mr Henry David Nigel Goodwin
20. Mr Jai Pathak

21. Mr Jamie Edward Harrison

22. Mr John Alexander Campbell Dick
23. Mr Joseph He Jun

24. Mr Kai-Niklas Anton Schneider
25. Ms Kana Manabe

26. Ms Kayane Helena Proudian
27. Mr Kent Napier Phillips

28. Mr Khai Minh Dang

29. Mr Ko Hanamizu

30. Mr Mark Alan Jacobsen
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31. Mr Mark Errington

32. Mr Michael Kelly Malone

33. Mr Nicholas Michael Benedict
G Hanna

34. Ms Peng Pheng Lim

35. Mr Philip James Badge

36. Mr Philip Winston Lee

37. Mr Rahul Guptan

38. Mr Raijiv Gupta

39. Mr Robert Charles John Foote
40. Mr Robert Thomas Palmer

41. Mr Rooman Richards Bundy
42. Mr Saugata Mukherjee

43. Mr Simon James Brown

44. Mr Simon James Plowright Petch
45. Ms Stephanie Jane Keen

46. Mr Stephen Begley

47. Mr Stephen Roberts Payne
48. Mr Takeshi Komatsu

49. Mr Wade Matthew Coriell

LAY PERSONS

The following appointees’ term will expire on
14 December 2019:

. Mr Ashvinkumar s/o Kantilal
. Mrs Belinda Charles

. Mrs Chew Kwee Tiang

. Mr Chng Beng Guan

. Dr Goh Chong Chia

. Mr Goh Ngan Hong

7. Mr Jamshid Medora

8. Mr K C Ting, John

9. Mr Kwan Yew Huat

10. Mr Lai Hock Meng

11. Mr Lee Kut Cheung

12. Mr Lim Hon Chee Eric

13. Dr Lim Lan Yuan

14. Mr Loi Hwee Yong

15. Mr Michael Wong C K

16. Mr Mirza Iskander Namazie
17. Dr Ng Kheng Siang

18. Mrs Noor Quek

19. Er. Ong Ser Huan

20. Mr Ong Tze Boon

21. Mr Seah Choo Meng

22. Mr Tan Seng Chuan

23. Dr Tan Tiong Tee Clarence
24. Mdm Teo Meng Hua

25. Dr Teoh Hoon Cheow

OO AWN=—
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26. Mr Tjio Kay Loe
27. Mr Willy Shee
28. Mr Yeo Boon Hon
29. Ms Yim Kam May

The following appointees’ term will expire on
14 April 2020:

1. Mr Adrian Soh

2. Asst Prof Alvin See Wei-Liang
3. Prof Andrew Harding

4. Mr Andy Tan Chye Guan

5. Ms Annie Lee

6. Prof Chiew Sing Ping

7. Mr Chua How Kiat

8. Mr Clarence Ting

9. Assoc Prof Daniel William Puchniak
10. Mr Ding Hock Chai

11. Mr Frankie Chia Soo Hien
12. Mr Goh Kia Hong

13. Ms Grace Lee Soo Hiam
14. Mr Han Liang Siew, Louis
15. Assoc Prof Helena Whalen-Bridge
16. Assoc Prof Henry Gao

17. Prof Ho Yew Kee

18. Prof James Penner

19. Ms Joanne Lim

20. Mr John Lim Geok Peng
21. Ms Junie Foo

22. Ms Kuan Li Li

23. Dr Lai Siang Hui

24. Mr Lee Chong Kwee

25. Mr Lim Boon Cheng

26. Mr Lim Kim Cheong

27. Er. Lim Peng Hong

28. Mr Lim Thien Su Gerald
29. Dr Loke Chi Wei Peter

30. Mr Ooi Hoe Yang (Danny)
31. Mr Rohan Kamis

32. Dr Sandra Booysen

33. Ms Sirikit Oh

34. Assoc Prof Stephen Bull
35. Mr Sunny Quek Ser Khieng
36. Mr Tan How Chuan (Sam)
37. Mr Tan Kuang Hui

38. Mr Tan See Chee

39. Dr Tan Teng Hooi

40. Dr Tan Yuen Lan, Diana
41. Prof Thio Li-ann

42. Mr Thomas Sit Kwok Wing
43. Er. Tong Chi Wai
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44. Assoc Prof Umakanth Varottil
45. Assoc Prof Wang Jiangyu
46. Mr Willie Cheng

47. Dr Wilson Chew Huat Chye
48. Dr Wong Chiang Yin

49. Ms Wong Lai Ping

50. Dr Wong Tien Hua

51. Dr Yeo Khee Quan

LEGAL SERVICE OFFICERS

1. Mr Adam Nakhoda

2. Mr Adrian Loo Yu Hao

3. Ms Agnes Chan Huseh Mei

4. Mr Anandan s/o Bala

5. Mr Andre Moses Tan Chang Ann
6. Mr Andrew Abraham

7. Mr Andrew Tan Shao Weng

8. Ms Ang Ching Pin (until July 2019)
9. Ms Ang Feng Qian

10. Ms April Phang Suet Fern

11. Mr Benjamin Yim Geok Choon
12. Ms Beverly Wee Ying Ling

13. Ms Brenda Chua Wei Ling

14. Mrs Carol Chan

15. Ms Carrie Chan Su-Lin

16. Mr Chan Wang Ho

17. Ms Charlene Tay Mei Woon

18. Ms Chee Min Ping

19. Ms Chong Chin Chin

20. Mr Chong Kah Wei

21. Mr Christopher Goh Eng Chiang
22. Mr Christopher Ong Siu Jin

23. Ms Chung Yoon Joo

24. Ms Constance Tay Woan Fen
25. Ms Cornie Ng Teng Teng

26. Mr Daniel Koh Poh Leong

27. Mr Darryl Soh Wen Yan

28. Mr David Lee Yeow Wee

29. Mr David Lim Hock Choon

30. Mr David Lim Jit Hee

31. Mr David Low Quan Ming

32. Mr Davyd Chong Wenquan
33. Ms Deena Bte Abdul Aziz Bajrai
34. Mr Derek Loh Kong Yue

35. Ms Diane Tan Yi-Lui

36. Mr Edgar Foo Mau Peng

37. Ms Elena Yeo Ju-Lan

38. Ms Elena Yip Luyang

39. Ms Elizabeth Lee Liang Mae
40. Mr Eugene Lee Yee Leng
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41.
42.
43.
44.
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.
55.
56.
57.
58.
59.
60.
61.
62.
63.
64.
65.
66.

Mr Eugene Teo Weng Kuan
Mr Fu Qijing

Ms Gay Hui Yi

Ms Geraldine Kang

Mr Gilbert Low Teik Seang
Mr Gnanasihamani Kannan
Mr Gordon Oh Chun Wei
Ms Hamidah Bte lbrahim
Mr Han Ming Kuang

Ms Hee Mee Lin

Mr Hon Yi

Ms Hung Ning Shing

Mr Imran Bin Abdul Hamid
Mr Ivan Chua Boon Chwee
Mr James Elisha Lee Han Leong
Ms Janet Wang Lan Jee

Ms Janice Chia Yong Yong
Ms Janice Wong Shi Hui
Ms Jasbendar Kaur

Mr Jason Tan Theng Kok
Ms Jasvender Kaur

Mr Jay Lee Yuxian

Ms Jean Chan Lay Koon
Mr Jeyendran s/o Jeyapal
Ms Jill Tan Li Ching (until July 2019)
Mr Joel Chen Zhi‘en

67. Mr John Lu Zhuoren

68.
69.
70.
71.
72.
73.
74.
75.
76.
77.
78.
79.
80.
81.
82.
83.
84.
85.
86.

Mr John Ng

Mr Joseph Yeo Swee Teck

Mrs Joyce Chao Suling

Ms Joyce Low Wei Lin

Ms Kamalambigai Ponnampalam
Ms Kan Shuk Weng

Ms Karen Ang Aiping

Ms Karin Lai Yiling

Ms Kathryn Low Lye Fong

Ms Kathryn Thong Lijuan

Mr Kenneth Yap Yew Choh

Mr Kessler Soh Boon Leng

Mr Kevin Yong Ee Wen

Mr Lau Wing Yum

Mr Lee Cheow Han

Mr Lee Chuan Huei

Mr Lee Sing Lit

Ms Lee Ti-Ting (until July 2019)
Ms Lee Yean-Lin

87. Mr Leonard Goh Choon Hian

88.
89.
90.
21.

Mr Lim Jian Yi

Mr Lim Keng Yeow

Ms Lim Sai Nei

Mrs Lim Su Ching (until July 2019)
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92. Mr Lim Tse Haw

93. Mr Lim Yew Jin

94. Mr Loo Ngan Chor

95. Mr Louis Agnelo D’Souza

96. Mr Louis Ng Shi Zheng (until July 2019)
97. Ms Low Siew Ling (until July 2019)
98. Ms Lynda Lee Gek Huang

99. Ms Lynette Yap Beng Lyn

100. Mr Ma Hanfeng

101. Mr Marcus Song Ee Pin

102. Ms Marie Christina Koh Sok Kheng
103. Mr Mark Jayaratnam

104. Mr Mark Tay See Keng

105. Mr Marvin Bay Boon Teck

106. Ms Masayu Norashikin

107. Mr Mathew Joseph

108. Ms May Lucia Mesenas

109. Ms Miranda Yeo Eng Joo

110. Ms Natalie Yu-Lin Morris

111. Mr Nathaniel Khng Yong-Ern

112. Mr Ng Cheng Thiam

113. Mr Ng Der Lim

114. Mr Ng Yiwen

115. Mr Nicholas Khoo Tian Lun

116. Ms Nicole Loh Wern Sze

117. Ms Nor’ashikin Bte Samdin

118. Mr Ong Chin Heng

119. Ms Ong Luan Tze

120. Mr Ow Yong Tuck Leong

121. Ms P Arul Selvamalar

122. Mr Paul Chan Wei Sern

123. Mr Paul Chia Kim Huat

124. Mr Paul Quan Kaih Shiuvh

125. Ms Peggy Pao Pei Yu (until July 2019)
126. Mr Peter Koy Su Hua (until July 2019)
127. Mr Phang Hsiao Chung (until July 2019)
128. Mr Phua Wee Chuan

129. Mr Prem Raj s/o Prabakaran
130. Mr Ramu Miyapan

131. Mr Reynard Cheok Yu-Liang

132. Mr Ronald Gwee Tiong Kee

133. Ms Ruth Wong Shuyi

134. Ms Sabrina Choo Wen Shan
135. Ms Salina Bte Ishak

136. Mr Samuel Chua Hwa Kuan

137. Ms Sandra Looi Ai Lin

138. Ms Sanjna Rai

139. Ms Sarah Lam Yan Xia

140. Mr Sellakumaran s/o Sellamuthoo
141. Ms Serene Seet Lay Cheng

142. Mr Shaiffudin Bin Saruwan
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REPORT OF THE INQUIRY PANEL

143. Ms Sharmila Sripathy

144. Ms Sharon Ong Su Min

145. Mr Shawn Ho Hsi Ming

146. Mr Sheik Mustafa Bin Abu Hassan
147. Ms Shobha Gopalakrishnan Nair
148. Mr Stanley Kok Pin Chin

149. Mr Sunari Bin Kateni

150. Ms Suriakumari d/o Sidambaram
151. Mr Tan Jen Tse

152. Ms Tan Shin Yi

153. Mr Tan Sze Yao

154. Mr Teo Guan Siew

155. Mr Terence Chua Seng Leng
156. Mr Terence Ong (until July 2019)
157. Ms Then Ling

158. Mr Thomas Mathew Koshy

159. Ms Toh Hwee Lian

160. Ms Toh Puay San

161. Mr Toh Shin Hao

162. Ms Vanessa Yeo Xue Ying

163. Mr Victor Lim See Wai

164. Mrs Wendy Chang Mun Lin

165. Ms Wileeza Bte A Gapar

166. Ms Wong Choon Ning

167. Mr Wong Kok Weng

168. Ms Wong Li Tein

169. Ms Wong Peck

Active Review Committees Between
1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019

As at 1 September 2018, there were 10 cases
pending from the previous review year and 95
Review Committees were appointed for each
case referred during this review year. The Review
Committee either directs dismissal of a complaint
with reasons or refers the same to the Chairman
of the Inquiry Panel for further investigation.

Out of a total of 105 cases, the results are as follows:

* 44 cases were dismissed completely;
* 52 cases were fully recommended for
further investigation by an Inquiry
Committee;

* 8 cases contained both a direction
for dismissal for some complaints and

a recommendation for further
investigation for the rest by an Inquiry
Committee; and

* 1 case is still pending as at 31 August 2019.
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Active Inquiry Committees Between
1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019

As at 1 September 2018, there were 22 cases
pending from previous review year. To date,
54 Inquiry Committees have been constituted
to look into the complaints which have been
referred by the Review Committees during this
review year. Forty-eight Inquiry Committees
have completed their investigations and the
results are as follows:

* 16 cases were dismissed;

* 15 cases were recommended

for warnings, reprimand or imposition
of penalties;

* 11 cases were referred for formal
investigation by the Disciplinary
Tribunal; and

* 6 cases where the Inquiry
Committees had recommended partial
dismissals. As such, parts of these
cases were either recommended for
warnings, reprimand or imposition

of penalties on the Respondents, or to
be referred to the Disciplinary Tribunal.

Extensions of time were granted in several
cases because of the unavailability of either
the Complainant or the Respondent and the
difficulty in fixing dates suitable to all parties.
In some cases, extensions were granted due to
the complexity of the cases. Twenty-eight cases
are pending as at 31 August 2019.

Finally, | would like to thank all members of
the Inquiry Panel for their valuable time and
hard work put into handling the cases assigned
to them. It is the willingness of members to
take on these duties that ensures the integrity
of the practising profession and upholds its
independence.

Dated this 31st day of August 2019
Philip Jeyaretnam, SC

Chairman
Inquiry Panel
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COMPENSATION FUND SERVING THE COMMUNITY

COMPENSATION FUND

AZIZ TAYABALI SAMIWALLA, CHAIRPERSON

The Council
administers the
Compensation Fund
(the Fund) that
provides grants to
reduce or mitigate
loss suffered by

any person in
consequence of
dishonesty of a
lawyer in connection
with his/her practice
in Singapore or any
trust in Singapore
of which the lawyer
is a trustee. Such
grants may also be
made to compensate
for loss as a result
of the dishonesty of
an employee of a

law practice in the Compensation Fund Committee 2019

course of his/her

employment. The Fund is administered under For the period under review from 1 September

the terms of section 75 of the Legal Profession 2018 to 31 August 2019, the Committee

Act and the Legal Profession (Compensation received 3 applications for grants from

Fund) Rules. the Compensation Fund, 2 of which were
dismissed. The other application is being

Every practising member of the Law Society is considered by the Committee and the

contributes a sum of $100 per year to the Fund Committee will, in due course, make its
when he/she renews his/her full-time practising recommendation to Council.
certificate. Those applying for Practising
Certificate after 1 October contribute a sum of
$50 to the Fund.
COMMITTEE MEMBER S /55—
This year, the Committee reviewed and Aziz Tayabali Samiwalla Chairperson
recommended changes to the Compensation Tan Kay Kheng Vice-Chairperson

g1 . Tan Gim Hai Adrian Council Representative
Fund guidelines. Council accepted and Kuah Boon Theng, SC

approved the amendments. In principle, the Lam KU SO Ao
Committee amended the guidelines with a Lau Kah Hee

view to make it more accessible to deserving Peter Chong Siong Siang
claimants. Tan Jee Ming

Sean Francois La’Brooy

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Rajvant Kaur
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PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY

SERVING THE COMMUNITY

PROFESSIONAL
INDEMNITY

LOK VI MING, SC, CHAIRPERSON

The Compulsory
Professional
Indemnity Scheme
(the Scheme) was
renewed for another
year, 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2020
with a 10% reduction
for the 2018/2019
Standard Primary
Premium over the
previous year's.

Scheme broker,
Lockton Companies
(Singapore) Pte
Ltd, successfully
negotiated the

said reduction
despite concerns
that the quantum
for certain claims
would drastically

increase. In the circumstances, the Council of

Members of the Professional Indemnity Committee

the Law Society accepted the Pl Committee’s

recommendation on the broker extension and
the premium reduction as reasonable, and the

Scheme renewal was effected accordingly.

As at the end of April 2019, 924 Law
Practices were insured under the Scheme.

This consisted of:

Type of Law Practice

Number

Sole Directors LLCs

Sole Proprietors, Partnerships and 672

Law Corporations

171

Limited Liability Partnerships 81

Annual Report 2019

Compared to the previous year (2018/2019)
for the same period, the number of Law
Practices increased slightly from 890 to 924.
The total number of Insured Persons has

also grown (from 5,132 in the previous year
to 5,362 in the current year). The pool of
the insured persons, who contribute to the
premium for the current period comprise the
following:

* Practitioners;

* Foreign Lawyers;

* “Singapore Lawyers” (i.e. Singapore
advocates and solicitors engaged in the
overseas offices of Singapore Law
Practices, for whom Practising
Certificates are not required);

* Locum Practitioners; and

* Regulated Non-Practitioners.
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PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY SERVING THE COMMUNITY

The Scheme insurers are as listed in the table
below. This is largely similar to the previous
year’s save that ERGO Insurance Pte Lid
ceased to participate on account of its security
rating being downgraded to B++.

MS First Capital Insurance Lead
Limited (previously known as First Insurer -
Capital Insurance Limited) 50%
. . Co-Insurer
India International Insurance Pte Lid o
-20%
QBE Insurance (Singapore) Pte Ltd Co-lcr:surer
-15%
Zurich Insurance Company Ltd Co-Insurer
(Singapore Branch) -15%

The Committee also considered the terms of
cover for the practice year commencing

1 April 2020 and will make its
recommendation to Council in due course.

COMMITTEE MEMBER S 15—
Lok Vi Ming, SC Chairperson

Pan Xing Zheng Edric Vice-Chairperson

M Rajaram Council Representative

Eusuff Ali s/o N B M Mohamed Kassim

Goh Keng Yeow, Simon

Mohamed Ibrahim s/o Mohamed Yakub

Ong Lee Woei

Pateloo Eruthiyanathan Ashokan

SECRETARIAT REPRESENTATIVE

Rajvant Kaur
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Law Society is grateful for the support of

the following law practices and organisations

whose partners, directors, associates, legal
officers and legal counsel have contributed
their time and effort to carry out the work of
the Law Society:

A C Fergusson Law Corporation
A C Shone & Co

A .Rohim Noor Lila LLP
Abbots Chambers LLC

Abdul Rahman Law Corporation
Achievers LLC

Advent Law Corporation
Advocatus Law LLP

Aequitas Law LLP

Allen & Gledhill LLP

Allen & Overy LLP

Amica Law LLC

Amolat & Partners

Anderson Mori & Tomotsune
Ann Tan & Associates

AP Law Practice

Apex Law LLP

Ari Goh & Partners

Arul Chew and Partners
Ascendant Legal LLC

Ashurst LLP

Asia Ascent Law Corporation
Asia Practice LLC

Asialegal LLC

Atlas Asia Law Corporation
Attorneys Inc. LLC

Aziz Tayabali & Associates

B Rengarajoo & Associates
Baker & McKenzie.Wong & Leow
Banyan Tree Holdings
Beacon Law Corporation
Belinda Ang Tang & Partners
Bih Li & Lee LLP

Bird & Bird ATMD LLP
Braddell Brothers LLP

C Paglar & Co

Cairnhill Law LLC

Catherine Lim LLC
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Central Chambers Law Corporation
ChangAroth Chambers LLC
Characterist LLC

Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
Chia Wong Chambers LLC
Citibank N.A.

City Law LLC

Clasis LLC

Clifford Chance Pte Ltd

Clifford Law LLP

Clyde & Co Clasis Singapore Pte Ltd
CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang
(Singapore) LLP

CNPLaw LLP

Collyer Law LLC

Continental Law LLP

Conyers Dill & Pearman
Cornerstone Law LLP

Covenant Chambers LLC

Crocs Singapore Pte. Ltd.
CrossBorders LLC

CSP Legal LLC

CTLC Law Corporation
Damodara Hazra LLP

David Lim & Partners

David Nayar and Vardan

DBS Bank Ltd

DC Law LLC

DCMO Law Practice LLC

De Souza Lim & Goh LLP
Deepak Raja & Associates
Dentons Rodyk & Davidson LLP
Derrick Wong & Lim BC LLP
Deutsche Bank

Dharma Law LLC

Dharsan Seiter Law Corporation
DL Law Corporation

Drew & Napier LLC

DWEF LLP

ECYT Law LLC

Eden Law Corporation

Edmond Pereira Law Corporation
Eldan Law LLP

Ella Cheong LLC

Eng and Co. LLC

Engelin Teh Practice LLC
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Essex Court Chambers Duxton
Ethos Law Corporation
Eugene Thuraisingam LLP
Eversheds Harry Elias LLP
Fidelis Law Corporation

Flint & Battery LLC

Foo & Quek LLC

Fortis Law Corporation
Freshfields Bruchhaus Deringer Singapore Pte Ltd
FSLaw LLC

Fullerton Healthcare Corporation Limited
Gateway Law Corporation
Gavan Law Practice LLC
Genesis Law Corporation
George Hwang LLC

Gibson Dunn & Crutcher LLP
Gloria James-Civetta & Co
Halijah Mohamad & Co
Harold Seet & Indra Raj
Heng, Leong & Srinivasan LLC
Herbert Smith Freehills LLP
HFW Singapore LLP

Ho Wong Law Practice LLC
Hogan Lovells Lee & Lee

Hoh Law Corporation
Holborn Law LLC

Holman Fenwick Willan Singapore LLP
hslegal LLP

I.R.B Law LLP

Incisive Law LLC

Infinitus Law Corporation
Integrated Health Information Systems
Integro Law Chambers LLC
Intel

Intelleigen Legal LLC

Jay Law Corporation

Jenny Lai & Co

Jispal Law Chambers

JLC Advisors LLP

Jones Day

Joseph Lopez LLP

Joseph Tan Jude Benny LLP
Joyce A Tan & Partners LLC
JusJuris Law LLC

Just Law LLC

K L Tan & Associates

K Prasad & Co

K Ravi Law Corporation

K&L Gates Straits Law LLC

Kel LLC

Annual Report 2019

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Kelvin Chia Partnership
KhattarWong LLP

Kusto

Latham & Watkins LLP

Law Connect LLC

LawCraft LLC

Lawrence Chua LLC

Lee & Lee

Lee Bon Leong & Co

Lee Chai & Boon LLP

Legal Clinic LLC

Legal Solutions LLC

Legis Point LLC

Leo Fernando LLC

Lex Advocatus LLC

Lex Quanta Private Limited
Lexcompass LLC

Lim Soo Peng & Co LLP

Lisa Sam & Company

Loo & Partners LLP

Lumen Law Corporation

LVM Law Chambers LLC

M & A Law Corporation
Mahmood Gaznavi & Partners
Malkin & Maxwell LLP

Mallal & Namazie

Mark Tan LLC

Matthew Chiong Partnership
Mayer Brown

Michael Hwang Chambers LLC
Michael Khoo & Partners
Michael Por Law Corporation
Mirandah Law LLP
Mirchandani & Partners

Moey & Yuen

Moi Law Corporation

Morgan Lewis Stamford LLC
Mori Hamada & Matsumoto (Singapore) LLP
MSC Law Corporation

N S Kang

Nair & Co LLC

Nakoorsha Law Corporation
Nanyang Law LLC

National University of Singapore
Norton Rose Fulbright (Asia) LLP
OC Queen Street LLC

One Legal LLC

Oon & Bazul LLP

Optimus Chambers LLC

OTP Law Corporation
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Pang Kok Foo & Co

Patrick Ong LLC

Peter Doraisamy LLC

Peter Low & Choo LLC

PHY Law Corporation
Pinsent Masons MPillay LLP
Providence Law Asia LLC
PRP Law LLC

PY Legal LLC

R. S. Solomon LLC

Rajah & Tann Singapore LLP
Rajan Chettiar LLC

Rajen Law Practice
Ramana Law Corporation
Ramdas & Wong

Ramesh Tiwary

Ravindran Associates LLP
Ray Louis Law Corporation
Raymond Yeo

Reed Smith LLP

Regency Law LLP

RHTLaw Taylor Wessing LLP
Riaz LLC

Robert Wang & Woo LLP
RPC Premier Law Pte Ltd
Sabara Law LLC

Salem lbrahim LLC
Satwant and Associates
Schellenberg Wittmer
Selvam LLC

Shearman & Sterling LLP
Shook Lin & Bok LLP

Sim Mong Teck & Partners
Singapore Kindness Movement
Singapore Management University
Squire Patton Boggs
Stephenson Harwood LLP
Sterling Law Corporation
Straits Law Practice LLC

T L Yap Law Chambers LLC
Tan Kok Quan Partnership
Tan Leroy & Associates
Tan Rajah & Cheah
Temasek Polytechnic
Templars Law LLC

Tham Lijing

Tito Isaac & Co LLP

TJ Cheng Law Corporation
Trident Law Corporation
Tyto LLC

Annual Report 2019

United Legal Alliance LLC
Vision Law LLC

Wave House Sentosa
WhiteFern LLC

William Poh & Louis Lim
Winchester Law LLC
Withers KhattarWong LLP
WMH Law Corporation
Wong Alliance LLP
Wong Thomas & Leong
WongPartnership LLP

Wu LLC

Yusarn Audrey

ZICO Insights Law LLC
Zouk Consulting Pte Ltd

The Law Society would also like to thank the
following for their support of the work of the
Society:

Supreme Court of Singapore

State Courts of Singapore

Family Justice Courts

Syariah Court

Attorney-General’s Chambers

Singapore Academy of Law

Singapore Institute of Legal Education
Ministry of Law

Ministry of Culture, Community and Youth
Ministry of Social and Family Development
Ministry of Home Affairs

Other Government Ministries and Statutory
Boards
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ABOUT US

Law Society Pro Bono Services (“LSPBS”") is a registered charity with an Institution of a
Public Character (“IPC") status.

Launched in 2007, and incorporated in 2017, LSPBS provides pro bono legal
assistance to the community and to organisations in Singapore serving the needy
and disadvantaged.

We work to:

a. develop and ensure a just and efficient system for the provision of pro bono legal
services in Singapore;

b. coordinate the provision of civil, criminal and community pro bono legal services
with various agencies;

C. recruit, train and manage volunteers from the legal fraternity and beyond for the
provision of pro bono services;

d. identify areas of need in the community for pro bono services; and

e. protect and assist the public on matters of the law relevant to their
lives, particularly through programmes to develop public legal literacy.

OUR VISION AND MISSION

Law Society Pro Bono Services serves the community by facilitating access to justice
for the needy and vulnerable so that all may have access to justice in Singapore.

k of East Asia

#05-00 State Courts




The splash of colours on the cover reflects
the colours of grace. Those colours cover
and characterise the work of Law Society
Pro Bono Services (LSPBS) this past year.
Grace breaks down barriers as we apply
our wordcraft. Every lawyer uses words but
not every lawyer has speech seasoned with
grace. Grace brings hope and healing to
their listeners. They are a hallmark of
justice with compassion. We, as a pro bono
community of LSPBS staff and volunteer
lawyers, brought the power of grace into
situations and settings this last year.

Who were the listeners to these words of
grace? One group this year was the
marginalised migrants. Through a migrant
worker coalition linking heads, hands and
hearts of migrant worker organisations and
social service agencies on an LSPBS
platform, we strengthened the serve to this
oft-forgotten group. The sharing of best
practices, issues on the ground and
practical answers during our quarterly
meetings broke solo and silo mindsets. It
made the relevant NGOs a force for good
and collectively, a force to be reckoned
with. LSPBS is committed to moderate and
calibrate views for moderate and calibrated
advocacy to the policymakers of the plight
of the foreigner needing access to justice.
We are particularly pleased to build this
platform so that the marginalised migrants
have access to justice whether due to
unpaid salaries, debt bondage, trafficking
or even a relatively recent observed
phenomena on the ground of illegal
moneylending to migrant workers.

MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

Another important group who need
grace are couples undergoing marriage
breakdown. Our statistics show that the
topmost enquiries at our legal clinics
are on family law. Predictably, even with
our enhanced scale of clinic counselling
courtesy of our MOU signed this year
with People’s Association (“PA”), we will
continue to see an acute need for
familial legal support.

The Family Justice Support Scheme
(“FJSS") has been designed precisely
with that outreach in mind: individuals
with modest means failing the Legal Aid
Bureau means test criteria marginally.
For this group, as the consensus from
the profession (especially the Family
Bar) shows, there is a need to support
the public through low bono schemes.
Likewise, foreign spouses or brides with
children in  Singapore but who
technically do not qualify for legal aid
because of a lack of citizenry or
permanent residence in Singapore
cannot be left helpless and hopeless.
LSPBS has laid the groundwork in
conceptualizing a clearing house to
ensure proper matching for the
individual and the pro bono/low bono
lawyer. We have submitted a proposal
to the Government for support to pilot
the FJSS.



The salient facts and figures of the year under review is in CEO Tanguy Lim’s report and
elaborated on the pages of the annual report unfolding as you read. | shall not repeat
them. These will also touch on Enhanced CLAS, our jewel in the crown, and the MOU
signing with PA that turboboosts our heartland outreach in the CDCs to deliver practical
legal awareness and legal aid on bread and butter issues faced by residents such as
criminal law, family law, estate matters, Muslim Law and elder law to name some areas.

| wish to record my sincere, heartfelt appreciation to Deputy Chairman Kelvin Wong for
his unwavering dedication and loyalty to this cause through the “thick and thin”
situations we navigated. Kudos also to our diverse fellow Board Members who have
stayed engaged and brought various viewpoints to the table to enrich discussion and
decision making. | am also deeply grateful to our reliable and committed CEO Tanguy
who together with his merry men and women on staff lift me up when | see their
unflagging enthusiasm. They have uplifted many indigents. Last but not least, every
single volunteer, donor and partner - we salute you. It is the sacrifice of time, treasure or
talent from each of you to help the least, last and lost in law that catalyzed the growth
and stability of this charity.

The future looks bright for our access to justice arm. The region continues to look to us
for thought leadership through our participation in regional conferences. We have an
invaluable global sharing opportunity later this year when we serve as hosts for the
PILNET forum.

May the charity’s influence continue to grow deeper and go wider both in Singapore and
elsewhere!

GREGORY VIJAYENDRAN, SC



CEQ'S MESSAGE

The cover of this year's annual report is an
explosion of colours. This kaleidoscopic “big
bang” pays homage to the diverse passions and
dynamic energy of our amazing volunteers. Our
volunteers work tirelessly to fill access to
justice gaps in our community. They power the
full spectrum of our access to justice
programmes showcased in the pages to follow.
From law awareness to legal clinics to legal
representation for individuals and non-profit
organisations, our volunteers give sacrificially
of their time to help the needy and
marginalized in Singapore.

This is only our second year of operations as a
standalone entity but with the support of close
to 2,000 volunteer lawyers and law students it
has been full steam ahead for all of our
activities. This past year, more than 14,000
persons have been assisted with legal
awareness, legal advice or legal representation.

Key to the scale of our programmes has been
the fantastic support we receive from our
programme partners who bring us strategic
networks and resources thereby helping us to
achieve an impact far beyond what we could
attain on our own.

This support has enabled us to explore new
access to justice schemes and initiatives in the
family justice system and to support migrant
workers.

In collaboration with the Family Justice Courts,
the Community Justice Centre and the
Singapore University of Social Sciences (SUSS)
we launched a series of talks for persons
contemplating divorce or going through one.
Entitled “Divorce and You", the talks cover the
divorce process and procedure but with an
emphasis on knowledge and tools to better
manage a stressful situation and make an
informed decision on divorce matters. The talks
seek to give a holistic perspective on the
emotional, psychological and practical legal
dynamics of the divorce process. Besides senior
family law practitioners, participants hear
perspectives from a marital counsellor and the
courts.

With the support of the Law Society’s Family
Law Practice Committee, we have laid the
ground work to start the implementation of a
Family Justice Support Scheme (“FJSS”) to assist
persons of modest means who marginally fail
the Legal Aid Bureau’'s means test as well as
impecunious foreign spouses with citizen
children who do not qualify for legal aid due to
their non-permanent resident status. The FJSS
will provide both the under lawyered and un-
lawyered facing a family law crisis with access
to experienced family law practitioners with a
heart for the needy.

At the initiative of our Chairman, a Migrant
Workers' Group (“MWG") to coordinate legal
support for migrant workers has been started.
Drawing together Social Service Agencies
supporting migrant workers, volunteers with a
passion to help migrant workers and other
stakeholder representatives, the MWG meets
on a quarterly basis to brainstorm more
effective legal support for common problems
faced by migrant workers. Focus areas have
included the development of technology
platforms to scale the upstream delivery of
critical legal information to migrant workers as
well as the compilation of a legal terminology
glossary in multiple languages for volunteer
interpreters to help with more accurate
interpretation of legal advice from English to
the migrant worker's mother tongue.

On behalf of the LSPBS team, | would like to
express our heartfelt gratitude to you - our
volunteers, donors and partners - for your
giving of time, talent and treasure. Your
passionate support inspires us to explore new
initiatives and maintain a steady course in
pursuit of access to justice for the needy where
ever they may be in our community.

LIM TANGUY



KEY HIGHLIGHTS

A quick snapshot of our year and achivements for FY2018/19

MAY 2018

JUNE 2018
JULY 2018

AUGUST 2018

SEPTEMBER 2018

OCTOBER 2018

DECEMBER 2018

MARCH 2019

2nd Volunteer Capacity Building Series (VolCapBSeries)
Aadvising on Sexual Harassment Matters

LeapforGood collaboration with raiSE

Divorce and You talks collaboration with Family Justice
Courts and Community Justice Centre

e Advocates for the Arts series collaboration with National
Arts Council

e Launch of Social Service Capacity Building Series
(SSCapB Series), on Litigation and Risk Management

e Practice Law Seminar 2018 collaboration with NUS
Faculty of Law Pro Bono Centre for Legal Education

Law Awareness Weeks @CDC 2018 Launch at South East
CDC

2nd Social Service Capacity Building Series
(SSCapBSeries) on 21st Century Risk, a collaboration with
Rajah & Tann LLP and AIG

Project Legal Empowerment & Assistance for Foreign
Spouses (LEAF)

Just Makan 2019: Justice was Served fundraising dinner
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OUR YEAR AT A GLANCE
14,447 reached 2%

ACROSS ALL PROGRAMMIES (INDIVIDUALS & ORGANISATIONS)

393

Student Volunteers

1,553 3,003

Volunteer Lawyers

2,589
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GREGORY VIJAYENDRAN GANESAMOORTHY, SC
CHAIRMAN

Mr Vijayendran is a Partner, Commercial Litigation at Rajah & Tann
Singapore LLP. He is the President of the Law Society of Singapore.
In that capacity, he also serves on strategic and influential boards
and committees impacting and developing the legal sector such as (i)
Singapore Academy of Law (as Vice President) (ii) SAL Ventures Ltd
(iii) Future Law Innovation Programme Steering Committee and (iv)
Promotion of Singapore Law Committee. His present practice as a
Rajah & Tann Disputes Partner encompasses litigation and
arbitration on a variety of complex commercial disputes as well as
banking and insolvency matters. He was the Law Society Pro Bono
Ambassador in 2009 and was appointed Senior Counsel in 2019.

KELVIN WONG
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Mr Wong is Co-Head of the Corporate & Commercial Department of
Allen & Gledhill LLP, and co-heads the Energy, Infrastructure and
Projects Practice. He also serves as an independent director on the
boards of AETOS Holdings and Singapore Anti-Narcotics Association.

DINESH SINGH DHILLON
TREASURER

Mr Dhillon is a Partner at Allen & Gledhill LLP. He is the Co-Head of
the Firm's International Arbitration practice and practises
international arbitration and litigation. He is the President of The
Singapore Institute of Arbitrators, Chair of the International Bar
Association’s Asia Pacific Newsletter. He was also previously
Honorary Treasurer of the Law Society of Singapore.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ARFAT SELVAM

Mrs Arfat Selvam is a Managing Director of Duane Morris & Selvam
LLP and Selvam LLC. She practices in the area of corporate law. Mrs
Selvam was the President of The Law Society of Singapore in 2003.
Before that she had served as Council and Exco Member of The
Law Society of Singapore and as Chairman of its Inquiry Panel and
Corporate Practice Committee. She was Chairman of the Law
Society Pro Bono Management Committee for 10 years up to 2017.
In addition to being on the Board of Law Society Pro Bono Services,
Mrs Selvam is currently a director of Jurong Health Fund Limited
and Rahmatan Lil Alamin Foundation Ltd. In 2015, she was
awarded the CC Tan Award for upholding the values of honesty,
fair play and personal integrity by the Law Society of Singapore and
was made the Law Society Pro Bono Ambassador in 2017.

N SREENIVASAN, SC

Mr Sreenivasan is the Managing Director and Managing Partner,
Singapore at K&L Gates Straits Law LLC. He was previously a
Council member, Exco member and Treasurer of the Law Society of
Singapore. Mr Sreenivasan has been actively involved in the pro
bono activities of the Law Society for over 25 years and has served
as the Chairman of the Law Awareness Committee of the Law
Society and led various projects. He was also a member of the
Steering Committee of the Enhanced CLAS. He was the Law Society
Pro Bono Ambassador in 2010. Mr Sreenivasan currently serves as
a member of the board of the Singapore Business Federation
Foundation and is chairman of its programmes committee. He was
awarded the Public Service Medal in 2014.

TAN CHEOW HUNG

Mr Tan is a Director at Beacon Law Corporation. He has almost 2
decades of experience in private legal practice. The greater part of
his experience has been in Dispute Resolution. He has represented
clients in a diverse range of civil and commercial disputes, including
shareholders' and partnership disputes, employment disputes,
defamation proceedings, construction disputes, banking disputes
and tortious claims. He was Law Society Pro Bono Ambassador in
2016.



ADRIAN TAN

Mr Tan is a partner at TSMP Law Corporation, a director of Maxwell
Chambers Pte Ltd and the Honorary Legal Counsel for the
Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped. Mr Tan was the
former general counsel at CrimsonLogic, a Singapore government
technology company that provides network services in the legal,
healthcare and trade sectors. He has degrees in law as well as
computer science and psychology.

PAUL SEAH

Mr Seah is a Senior Partner of Tan Kok Quan Partnership.
Recognised as a leading practitioner by leading independent legal
publications, Mr Seah has acted as lead counsel in some of
Singapore's most important and high-profile litigation cases in
recent years. Mr Seah also has a speciality in insolvency and
restructuring work, having advised on numerous well-publicised
insolvencies. Outside of legal practice, Mr Seah is the chairperson
of the Living Waters Methodist Church and a board member of
Metropolitan YMCA Singapore. Mr Seah is also the co-author of a
number of leading textbooks on civil and commercial litigation in
Singapore.

THIO SHEN Y1, SC

A founding member of TSMP Law Corporation and a leading figure
in Singapore's legal community, Mr Thio served as the 25th
President of the Law Society of Singapore from 2015 to 2016. He
was appointed Senior Counsel in 2008 and elected a Master
Bencher of The Middle Temple in 2016. He specialises in corporate,
commercial and financial litigation disputes. Mr Thio is often cited as
a leading individual in Dispute Resolution in many top international
legal publications for his work in dispute resolution, primarily as
counsel, occasionally as arbitrator.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WENDELL WONG HIN PKIN

Mr Wong is a highly respected civil, commercial and criminal
lawyer. His civil and commercial practice includes contracts and
commercial disputes, shareholder and director disputes, asset
recovery, medical negligence, product liability and cross-border
arbitration work and the Singapore International Commercial
Court. His criminal practice focuses on commercial and business
crime, fraud, securities, corruption, corporate governance related
offences and investigations work.

Mr Wong is the current co-chairperson of the Criminal Practice
Committee, Law Society of Singapore. He is also the Membership
Officer of the International Bar Association, Anti-Corruption
Committee.

Mr Wong was also appointed as a member of the Penal Code
Review Committee by the Ministry of Home Affairs and Ministry of
Law.

DEREK KANG YU HSIEN

Mr Kang is the Managing Director of Cairnhill Law LLC. He is a
dispute resolution lawyer with a focus on commercial and civil
litigation, as well as criminal matters and has conducted and won
trials and appeals at all levels of the Singapore judicial system. Mr
Kang represents and advises companies and individuals in a
broad range of cases, including shareholders and directors’
disputes, contractual and employment disputes and cases
involving fraud. He is currently the Chairman of the Criminal Legal
Aid Scheme Committee and has also served on the Criminal
Practice Committee of the Law Society since 2006.
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MANAGEMENT

LIM TANGUY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr Lim was a practising lawyer for 12 years before joining the Law
Society of Singapore in 2007 to set up and run its Pro Bono Services
Office. He served as the Law Society's Director of Pro Bono Services
until his appointment to LSPBS in 2017 as its Chief Executive Officer.
He is a passionate advocate for encouraging pro bono service by the
legal profession and is a frequent speaker at regional pro bono
conferences. A Tote Board scholar, Mr Lim has had more than a
decade of non-profit leadership experience in working with public-
private-people partnerships to enhance access to justice in Singapore.

GOPINATH PILLAI
DIRECTOR, CRIMINAL LEGAL AID SCHEME

Mr Pillai is the Director of the Criminal Legal Aid Scheme (“CLAS")
since 2015. He oversees the administration of the Scheme which
provides criminal defence representation those who are unable to
afford defence counsel in non-capital offences. Mr Pillai supervises
the CLAS Fellowship comprised of four to five lawyers, and the two
CLAS Advocates hired in 2016. Mr Pillai also works with various other
stakeholders in the office’s collaboration, such as those involved in
the migrant worker space.

CLAUDINE TAN
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, OUTREACH, COMMUNICATIONS, HR & ADMINISTRATION

Ms Tan joined the Law Society of Singapore in August 2015 to head
Outreach and Communications in the Pro Bono Services Office. Since
then, she has been overseeing initiatives and programmes that (a)
serve the community through the Community Legal Clinics, Law
Awareness outreach programmes and Project Law Help initiatives
that support community organisations (b) support volunteers (c)
assist or collaborate on pro bono initiatives with other agencies and
(d) fundraising. Ms Tan also oversees Volunteer Management, HR
and Administration.

GOH PENG LEONG
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, FINANCE

Mr Goh joined LSPBS in January 2017. He is responsible for all Finance
functions. Prior to joining LSPBS, he had more than 20 years of
experience in finance across manufacturing, retail and hospitality
industries. He had also several years of experience in managing
supply chain, human resources, information technology as well as
lead various projects in Business Processes Reengineering and Risk
Management. Mr Goh holds a Bachelor of Accountancy from
Nanyang Technological University and is a Chartered Accountant,
member of Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants as well as
Chartered Global Management Accountant from Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, United Kingdom.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairperson
Mrs Arfat Selvam

Members

N Sreenivasan, SC
Wendell Wong Hin Pkin

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Chairperson
Dinesh Singh Dhillon

Members
Cyril Chua
Tan Cheow Hung
Usha Chandradas

FUNDRAISING COMMITTEE

Chairperson
Thio Shen Vi, SC

HR COMMITTEE

Gregory Vijayendran, SC
Kelvin Wong
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PROGRAMME COMMITTEES

CRIMINAL LEGAL AID SCHEME COMMITTEE

Chairperson
Derek Kang Yu Hsien

Members

Amogh Nallan Chakravarti
Anil Narain Balchandani
Cho Kenwei Jonathan**
Chooi Jing Yen**

Chong Yi Mei*

Dennis Chua Soon Chai
Foo Yu Kang, Wilson**
Hannah Tjoa Kai Xuan*
Hany Soh Hui Bin*
Josephine lezu Costan**
Lau Wen Jin*

Lim Pei Ling June

Loh Guo Wei, Melvin**
Lulla Ammar Khan**
Mervyn Cheong*

Mahesh Rai s/o Vedprakash Rai*
Ong Ziying Clement

Sheik Umar bin Mohamed Bagushair*
Suresh s/o Damodara
Vishnu Aditya Naidu*

Tan May Lian Felicia

COMMUNITY LEGAL CLINICS COMMITTEE

Co-Chairpersons
Cyril Chua
Hany Soh Hui Bin

Members

Amira Nabila Budiyano
Gavin Ng Ren Zhang
Hewage Ushan Saminda Premaratne*
Jolie Giouw Rong Zhen*
Jasmine Chew Jiemin*
Katie Lee Shih Ying**

Kelly Toh**

Kevin Ho Mingjie

Lim Lay See

Low Ying Li Christine*
Meera Rajah*

Montague Choy Wing Kin
Ng Xinyuan*

Quek Gou Jun*

Quek Jie Ying*

Seet Pek Hian Harold*
Samuel Seow Theng Beng**
Steven Lam Kuet Keng
Sean Francois La'Brooy
Tan Wei Ming Wayne

Teo Li Ping Annabelle**
Yee May Kuen Peggy Sarah

*Term Served : 1 April - 31 December 2018
** Term Served : 1 January - 31 March 2019

14



PROGRAMME COMMITTEES

LAW AWARENESS COMMITTEE

Chairperson
Josephus Tan Joon Liang

Vice-Chairperson
Elaine Ho Jia Ni

Members

Berlin Soh Su Ming
Boxall Lynette Maureen
Chew Lixian, Ashley**
Chua Sin Yen Jacqueline**
Fong Wei Li

Hugh Turnbull

Javern Sim Jun Yan**
Jeslyn Tan Po Nin*
June Lim Pei Ling
Kamalarajan Malaiyandi Chettiar
Koh Kia Jeng

Lee Chia Ming**

Lydia Pan She Teng*
Meera Rajah*

Rachel Tan Swee-Hua
Sarita Misir

Shereen Goklani*

Siaw Kin Yeow

Suresh s/o Damodara
Toh Wei Yi

Tran Le Luu Phuong
Wang Liansheng**

PROJECT LAW HELP COMMITTEE

Chairperson
Yap Chin Choo Juliana

Vice-Chairperson
Tan Ming Kirk Richard

Members

Amarjit Kaur

Benjamin Foo Guo Zheng*
Boxall Lynette Maureen
Chiam Zhi Wen Nick**

Gerald Tham Keng Yue
Hannah Tjoa Kai Xuan*
Helena Mildred Whalen-Bridge
Hugh Turnbull

Lim Sui Yin Jeffrey

Lim You Yu Benson

Marini Martin Vincent

Nadia Ahmad Samdin**
Nicole Carmen Tan Yi (Chen Yi)
Nicole Chua Shu Ying**

Ong E-Wei Patrick**

Rhudilyn April Bumatay Raimundo
Sarita Misir

Thenuga d/o Vijakumar

Toh Jun Yong

Usha Chandradas

* Term Served : 1 April - 31 December 2018
** Term Served : 1 January - 31 March 2019
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COMMUNITY LEGAL CLINICS

Legal clinic advice for the needy.
Committee Report, Mr Cyril Chua, Ms Hany Soh Hui Bin, Co-Chairs

Our volunteer lawyers at the Community Legal Clinics (“CLCs") provide one-on-one consultation
services and basic legal advice on personal legal matters - from family law, to employment, estate
planning, harassment issues and beyond, all free of charge. Since its inception in 2014, more than
11,000 needy Singaporeans or Permanent Residents have benefitted from the CLCs. Details of the
extent of our outreach this financial year are shown on the facing page.

The Community Legal Clinic Committee (“CLC Committee”) was formed in August 2014 to oversee
the implementation of the CLCs. Members of the CLC Committee comprise lawyers who currently
are or have previously volunteered at CLCs, lawyers who are actively volunteering, as well as
lawyers who are interested in increasing access-to-justice through Committee planning.

Community Legal Clinics - Growth and Expansion

MOU for Community Legal Pro Bono Services Network

Further to the renewal and expansion of the scope of the MOU of 12 September 2014 in
September 2017, legal clinics have been held every night from Mondays to Thursdays (excluding
the eve of and public holidays) at the four (4) Community Development Councils (“CDCs") in the
North West, South East, Central and South West of Singapore.

MOU for Community Clinics Network (“Network Clinics")

Besides the CLCs located at the five CDCs,there have been manysatellite clinics operating at
Community Clubs, Residents’ Committees and religious organisations (amongst others). Given the
multiple clinics at Community Centres and Community Clubs, it was timely for the People's
Association ("PA") to come on board as a partner organisation. Accordingly, LSPBS and the PA
entered into a fresh MOU in January 2019. This MOU gives the PA oversight of the management
of the satellite clinics that have signed up through PA to be part of the Community Clinics
Network. The Network Clinics receive an onboarding kit from LSPBS, which provides them
with insurance coverage for their volunteer lawyers, best practices tips and guidelines, guidance
on governance issues, and access to shared resources and a wide pool of volunteers, amongst
other benefits. There are currently 15 Network Clinics island-wide. We anticipate this number to
grow in the year ahead.

Specialised Legal Clinics

The Committee collaborates with specialised organisationsto provide targeted advice to specific
segments of the community that frequently encounter legal issues. Through these collaborations,
we have been able to reach out to the vulnerable and marginalized segments of society such as
foreign workers, sex workers and victims of sexual abuse. Conversations are also ongoing with
voluntary welfare organisations assisting with human trafficking victims, those suffering from
various addiction issues as well as the creative industries sector. We will continue to support new
initiatives where there is a real need that cannot be met by the existing network of clinics.

Meanwhile, urgent cases are referred by LSPBS to the Onsite Legal Assistance Scheme (“OSLAS")
located at the Community Justice Centre at the State Courts and at the Supreme Court.

Telephonic Legal Clinics
LSPBS has made available a telephonic service for quick consults with lawyers. Social workers
referring clients with mobility issues are able to leverage on this service.
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CLC STATISTICS

Case Profiles

o o
iR

538 68
Family Criminal

LEGAL CLINICS

1,917 Registrations 165 Registrations
1,452 Attended* 113 Attended*

373 Registrations 138 Registrations
302 Attended * 123 Attended

1,167
Applicants Surveyed

“I am one of the beneficiaries from your CLCs organised by
LSPBS...I would like to thank LSPBS for your kind and great
service to our community through the CLCs.

My experience was very good. | felt comfortable while
meeting with the volunteer lawyer. He spoke with me
effectively and | received good advice as to what to do.”
Pandian

88% found
the advice

O

931 157 132
Civil Tort Others

SPECIALISED CLINICS

69 Attended 9 Attended

*Figures include referrals from TADM & AWARE
**FAST: Foreign Domestic Worker Association
for Social Support and Training

91% would
return to the
legal clinics

94% found our
staff friendly
and helpful

helpful
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CRIMINAL LEGAL AID SCHEME

Providing pro bono criminal representation - for needy accused persons facing non-capital charges,
regardless of nationality.

Committee Report, Mr Derek Kang Yu Hsien, Chairperson

Launched in 1985 by the Law Society, CLAS was the first criminal legal aid programme set up to
help the needy and vulnerable in Singapore, and has been the principal provider of legal aid for
non-capital criminal cases since. In 2015, the Singapore government pledged to fund an
enhanced CLAS scheme, which aims to serve up to 6,000 accused persons yearly. The CLAS
scheme has since been growing in scope and depth. A total of 2,589 applications were processed
during the financial year, of which more than 50% received aid. The overall percentage of cases in
which aid was granted had decreased from the previous year, owing to a more stringent
application of the means and merits tests.

CLAS Volunteers

During the financial year, 297 CLAS volunteer lawyers represented an accused or assisted on at
least one case. CLAS's other volunteers include law undergraduates from the National University
of Singapore, Singapore Management University and various overseas universities. They interned
at the office, assisting the interviewing lawyers, officers and CLAS Fellows and Advocates.

CLAS Advocates

The 2 CLAS Advocates continue to provide and perform a dedicated mentoring and leadership
role to the Fellows, and junior external CLAS volunteers. From an operational perspective, the
CLAS Advocates serve to smoothen the transition between the batches of Fellows. In particular,
they provide supervision for on-going matters that the out-going Fellows are unable to complete
before the end of their Fellowship tenure. In addition, the Advocates provided training to the
Fellows on how interviews for merits testing ought to be conducted. Pursuant to the successful
and effective training sessions, the Fellows have been conducting interviews for the merits test
independently.

CLAS Advocates also assist the CLAS Directorate generally in its pro bono programmes, perform
community outreach as ambassadors, conduct research relating to the legal profession (with an
emphasis on criminal defence work), and perform other duties or roles designated by the
Directorate. For this year, the Advocates also assisted in the approval process for applications,
and assessed requests from volunteer lawyers to, for example, seek medical reports and
discharges.

CLAS Fellowship 2019

Owing to operational requirements, three of the CLAS Fellows from the 2018 batch were
extended for a further period of one year. In February 2019, Pramnath Vijayakumar was hired as
a CLAS Fellow for a period of one year. Following amendments to the Legal Profession Act, the
CLAS Fellows are now directly employed by Law Society Pro Bono Services. Following discussions
at the Steering Committee, CLAS will be seeking to structure the hires of Fellows in two batches -
one in September, and the other in April of the subsequent year.

CLAS Criminal Law Training Programme

CLAS launched the fifth run of the Criminal Law Training Programme on March 2018. The
Programme consists of 31 modules on various criminal law topics delivered by senior
practitioners, academics, experts, including psychiatrists as well as representatives of the various
stakeholders in the criminal justice system including a District Judge and representatives from the
Probationary Service.
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Sitting (left to right): CLAS Advocates Sadhana Rai and Ng Shi Yang
Standing (left to right): CLAS Fellows Pramnath Vijayakumar, Majorie Kong, Shaneet Rai and Shaik Siraj

CLAS ADVOCATES

The CLAS Advocates, Sadhana Rai and Ng Shi Yang continue to provide and perform a dedicated mentoring and
leadership role to the Fellows, and junior external CLAS volunteers. The Advocates and the CLAS Directorate
conduct an on-boarding exercise for incoming CLAS Fellows on the objectives of the Fellowship, and the role that
they play. This on-boarding proves to be effective in allowing the incoming Fellows to quickly understand and
appreciate more fully the role and function they occupy in the pro bono and criminal justice landscape.

CLAS FELLOWSHIP 2019

Marjorie Kong

Marjorie graduated with a Bachelor of Laws (Hons.) from the University of Nottingham in 2015. She was with the
firm of Timothy Ng LLC from 2015 to 2017 first as a trainee and then an associate. She assisted in a spectrum of
contentious matters, including building and construction-related disputes, contractual disputes, and negligence
suits; as well as a few criminal matters.

Pramnath Vijayakumar
Pramnath obtained his Law Degree from Australia and was called to the Singapore Bar in April 2015. He currently
has 4 years' PQE and more than 6 and a half years of relevant working experience in civil and criminal litigation.

Shaik Siraj
Siraj graduated with a Bachelor of Laws (Hons.) from Singapore Management University (SMU) in 2015 and was

called to the Bar in 2016 after completion of his training contract at Straits Law Practice LLC where he assisted
with various civil and criminal matters.

Shaneet Rai
Shaneet was called to the Bar in April 2016, after earning his Juris Doctor at SMU. Prior to law school, he majored
in Political Science at NUS. Shaneet was previously an associate at Trident Law Corporation. Working

predominantly on criminal matters, he was involved in a wide array of cases ranging from shop-theft to capital
offences.
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CLAS STATISTICS

2 Advocates
4 Fellows
297 Active Volunteer Lawyers

16 CLAS MOU FIRMS

2,589 Applicants received advice
1,414 Applicants granted aid

31 CLAS Training modules
594 Volunteer lawyers attended

CLAS EXPENDITURE AND INCOME

Expenditura (55) neoma (58] sSurplus/eflcit |55
1 April 2018 =31 March 2014 2 663,152 32000, 557 {5538, 188)
| &pril 2007 — 31 March 2018 $2.871,554 33177, 163 3205509

“CLAS has helped me settle my court case with minimum punishment.
I am very grateful and thankful to the lawyer they assigned to me, who has given me a second chance in life.”
CLAS Beneficiary
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LAW AWARENESS

Empowering everyday people with legal awareness.
Committee Report, Mr Josephus Tan, Chairman

Law Awareness Weeks @CDC 2018

Started in 2015, Law Awareness Weeks @CDC ("LAWs @CDC") is a collaboration between LSPBS
and the five Community Development Councils (“CDCs"), supported by the People's Association,
National University of Singapore, Singapore Management University and Singapore University of
Social Sciences. LAWs @CDC is an annual nationwide effort to promote awareness and
understanding of the law in the community through a series of talks tailored to address the
common legal issues that members of the public encounter. LAWs @CDC 2018 was launched on
15 September 2018 at Wisma Geylang Serai by Mr Edwin Tong, Senior Minister of State, Ministry
of Law and Health, the Mayors of the 5 CDCs and Chairman of LSPBS, Mr Gregory Vijayendran, SC.
Top CLC volunteers, anchor law firms, speakers and students received Certificates of
Appreciation. During the 1.5 month campaign, a total of 70 talks were held, reaching almost 1,878
residents.

Law Works

Law Works is an ongoing partnership between LSPBS and NTUC which aims to educate union
members and workers on their legal rights, through Legal Primers, particularly with respect to
employment issues. Legal clinics are held monthly where applicants can seek advice on a wide
range of personal issues.

Advocates for the Arts

Following the launch of LSPBS' latest publication, Advocates for The Arts (AfA), LSPBS organised
three legal awareness talks and administered AfA Legal Clinics as part of outreach to the creative
industries. The legal talks provided lay persons in these industries with useful and practical legal
knowledge to guide or risk manage their activities and their creative output. The AfA Legal Clinics
cater specially to community organisations and individuals in the arts/creative industry.
Applications made for Legal Clinic assistance were successfully matched to volunteers.

Volunteer Capacity Building Series & Social Service Capacity Building Series

LSPBS is committed to supporting our volunteers and the social service sector with training to
capacity build. This year, we launched the Volunteer Capability Building (VolCapB) Series and the
Social Service Capacity Building Series (SSCapB), which comprise seminars and workshops to
update our volunteers in the respective sectors on the latest legal developments, and to develop
relevant skills to empower them to bring their pro bono services to the next level.

Project Schools

Project Schools was launched in July 2012 with the objective of promoting a greater level of civic-
mindedness amongst youth and enabling them to better protect themselves from the
consequence of crime. The close collaboration between school teachers and volunteer lawyers
has enabled the success of Project Schools, which has engaged over 30,000 youths from the
various schools which participated in this programme since its inception.

General Outreach

LSPBS continues to reach out to the community and increase public understanding of the law in
the daily lives of our citizens. We do this through free public education talks, seminars, exhibitions
and legal clinics, as well as information booklets on the law which are available for free download
from our website.
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LAW AWARENESS STATISTICS
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Advocate for Divorce & You LAWs @CDC 2018 Others
the Arts

“It takes a village to raise a child.

CHIf Katong Convent is grateful for the partnership with LSPBS
and their support through the years. We look forward to more
years of partnership!”

CHIJ Katong Convent Secondary School

“We at Good Shepherd Centre would like to send our deepest
gratitude to the LSPBS team for taking their time to organise this
talk and tour for our residents.”

Good Shepherd Centre
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PROJECT LAW HELP

Building capacity in the non-profit, charitable, and social enterprise sector
Volunteer firms share corporate advice, so community organisations can flourish.

Committee Report, Ms Juliana Yap, Chairperson

Project Law Help (“PLH") seeks to help the growing number of community organisations -
charities, not-for-profit organisations and social enterprises by matching them with a volunteer
law practice, to share and provide pro bono corporate advice. These organisations tend to
struggle with limited resources, especially in their budding phase. With the help of the volunteer
law firms, community organisations are legally equipped to manage their operations, so they can
get on with what matters most - giving back and reaching their charitable goals. In achieving its
goals, the Project Law Help Committee (“PLH Committee”) plays a multi-faceted role.

Access to legal assistance for community organisations

The PLH Committee oversees initiatives for community organisations to access pro bono legal
counsel and assistance. Through the various schemes under these initiatives the PLH committee
also seeks to facilitate, promote, support and encourage a sustainable commitment to pro bono
work for community organisations among members of the Singapore legal profession. The 2 main
schemes under which volunteer lawyers provide pro bono advice and assistance: (a) Community
Organisation Clinics (“COC") and (b) Project Law Help (“PLH").

coc

The COC consist of 45-minute consultation sessions with volunteer lawyers on
corporate/transaction matters. Representatives from community organisations have the
opportunity to discuss their legal issues and obtain pro boo basic legal advice. The COC is tailored
to quick legal consults.

PLH

PLH is a scheme which facilitates more prolonged legal representation. LSPBS conducts an initial
consultation with the community organisation to gain information about the legal issues faced
and the appropriate scheme it could come under. Under PLH, qualifying community
organisations are matched with law firms that are willing to provide free non-litigation legal
services. The assigned volunteer law firm will work directly with the community organisations
under a formal solicitor-client relationship.

Keeping abreast of Charity Council’s initiatives and requirements

The PLH Committee keeps track of the various requirements and guidelines issued by the Charity
Council, and strives to align its approach with the good governance standards and best practices
promoted by the Charity Council. This ensures that LSPBS is attuned to the latest developments in
the charity sector and continues to effectively support community organisations.

Capacity Building

We engage in capacity building and raising law awareness for community organisations by
collaborating with various partner organisations in seminars and outreach events. These include
the National Council of Social Service (“NCSS”), the Charities Unit under Ministry of Culture,
Community and Youth (“MCCY"), the Centre for Non-Profit Leadership (“CNPL") under National
Volunteer and Philanthropy Centre (“NVPC"), the Singapore Centre for Social Enterprise (“raiSE"),
amongst others.

Publication
LEGALESE is a legal handbook produced and published by LSPBS to provide useful basic legal
resource for community organisations. The 2nd edition of LEGALESE was published in 2016.
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PLH STATISTICS

Community Organisation Clinincs

36 Applications
32 Successful Matches

Project Law Help

] 10 Applications
1 1 5 Successful Matches

“Sessions like these play an integral role in ensuring that successful social
entrepreneurship can flourish...raiSE extends our appreciation to the lawyers who
supported the session with their time, knowledge and advice, as well as to LSPBS for co-
creating a session that met the needs of our aspiring entrepreneurs.

We look forward to collaborating with LSPBS again.”
raiSE Singapore
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AD HOC PRO BONO SCHEME

Providing pro bono legal representation ’for ersons with exceptional circumstances who do not meet the criteria for
existing legal aid schemes but nonetheless are in urgent need.

The Ad Hoc Pro Bono Scheme ("AHPBS") was set up to prevent persons in dire need of legal help
from falling through the cracks in the justice system. Upon receiving an application, which are
accepted on a referral-only basis (e.g. from the Courts, Social Service Agencies, government
organisations, lawyers, etc), LSPBS conducts a full assessment of the applicant's suitability for
help, and matches qualified applicants with volunteer lawyers.

Project LEAF

Project LEAF (Legal Empowerment and Assistance for Foreign spouses) started in December 2018
together with Ms June Lim, our Pro Bono Ambassador for 2018. Project LEAF is a pilot project
which serves as a precursor to the upcoming Family Justice Support Scheme, one component of
which will be to institutionalise formal structures to provide assistance in the area of foreign
spouses.

Project LEAF provides pro bono legal advice, assistance and/or representation to foreign spouses
with Singaporean children. Priority is given to applicants residing in crisis shelters due to domestic
violence and/or breakdown of marriage.

To gain a better understanding of the issues faced by these foreign spouses and to identify
eligible residents who may require legal assistance, Project LEAF worked with four crisis shelters
(Casa Raudha Women Home, SCWO Star Shelter, Anglican Family Centre and The Good Shepherd
Shelter). Below are some of the key challenges identified:-

a. Foreign spouses with Singaporean children are a particularly vulnerable group in our community.
Often, they are heavily reliant on their spouses in all areas of their lives, including basic needs such
as housing and living expenses. When the marriage breaks down and/or they face domestic abuse,
they have no one to turn to for support and assistance.

b. Foreign spouses face the possibility of repatriation if their Singaporean spouse stops sponsoring
visa renewals. This issue is particularly pressing where they have Singaporean children, who will
either be uprooted from the country or separated from their mothers, who are usually the primary
caregivers.

¢. Many of them cannot afford to engage a private lawyer but do not qualify for existing national
legal aid schemes as they are neither Singapore Citizens nor Permanent Residents. Thus, they are
left to navigate the complex court system, which could lead to miscarriages of justice.

Project LEAF empowers foreign spouses by educating them on their rights and enabling them to
present their case in court effectively, thereby achieving a fair and just outcome with minimal
acrimony, while safeguarding the welfare of the children involved.

“My ex-husband stopped paying maintenance...Thanks
to LSPBS and the volunteer lawyer, my daughter can
33 successful matches continue her studies to fulfil her dream to be a
medical doctor. They saved my daughter’s dream.”
AHPBS Beneficiary
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BAR MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

The Bar Memorial Scholarship Fund (‘the Scholarship’) was founded by the members of the
Singapore Bar in memory of fellow members who perished in the First World War. It is an
annual award given to Singaporean candidates who have obtained admission to, or who are
currently taking a course in subjects of study relating to law. Other considerations being
equal, preference is given to an undergraduate admitted to, or pursuing, a Bachelor of Law
(LLB) course at a Singapore law school, subject to a maximum of $5,000.00 per annum.

Aside from academic performance, other factors taken into consideration include the
character and financial needs of candidates.

For the period April 2018 to March 2019, eight applications were received and considered.
Six were awarded the Scholarship at $2,500.00 per annum until their studies are completed.
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350
DONORS

$1,045,422.18

RAISED

TOP DONORS

CLAS FELLOWSHIP

Allen & Gledhill LLP

Dentons Rodyk & Davidson LLP
Drew & Napier LLC

Rajah & Tann Foundation
WongPartnership LLP

ANNUAL PLEDGES

Allen & Gledhill LLP

Allen & Overy LLP

Clifford Chance Pte Ltd
Drew & Napier LLC

K&L Gates Straits Law LLC
Linklaters Singapore Pte Ltd
Providence Law Asia LLC
Rajah & Tann Foundation

FOUNDATION & GRANT MAKERS
Community Foundation of Singapore

JUST MAKAN

Far East Organisation

Lee Foundation

Eugene Thuraisingam LLP
TSMP Foundation

Baker McKenzie Wong & Leow
Certis Cisco Security Pte Ltd
Duane Morris & Selvam LLP
Ms Ho Ching

Hong Leong Foundation

K&L Gates Straits Law LLC
Keppel Foundation
Providence Law Asia LLC
Singapore Law Academy

Tito Isaac & Co LLP
WongPartnership LLP

The Law Society of Singapore
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PARTNERS

Agency for Integrated Care

Anglican Family Centre

Association of Corporate Counsel
Association of Women for Action and
Research (AWARE)

Casa Raudha Women Home

Catholic Lawyers Guild

Centre for Domestic Employees (CDE)
Centre for Non-Profit Leadership (CNPL)
Community Development Councils
Community Justice Centre

Family Justice Courts

Foreign Domestic Worker Association for
Social Support and Training (FAST)
HealthServe

Humanitarian Organisation for

Migration Economics (HOME)

Institute of Estate Agents

Justice Without Borders

Migrant Workers' Centre

Ministry of Social and Family Development
National Arts Council

National Council of Social Service
National Volunteer & Philanthropy Centre
(NVPQ)

People's Association

Methodist Welfare Services

Ministry of Law

National University of Singapore
Singapore Centre for Social Enterprise (raiSE)
Singapore Council of Women's Organisations
Star Shelter

Singapore University of Social Sciences
Singapore Management University
Singapore Academy of Law

Singapore Corporate Counsel Association
Singapore Institute of Legal Education
The Good Shepherd Shelter

The State Courts

Transient Workers Count Too (TWC2)
Tripartite Alliance for Dispute
Management (TADM)

CLAS MOU FIRMS

Abbots Chambers LLC

Allen & Gledhill LLP

Baker McKenzie Wong & Leow LLC
Damodara Hazra LLP

Dentons Rodyk & Davidson LLP
Drew & Napier LLC

Eldan Law LLP

Eversheds Harry Elias LLP
Gloria James-Civetta & Co
Kennedys Law LLP

K&L Gates Straits Law LLC
Morgan Lewis Stamford LLC
Oon & Bazul LLP

Shook Lin & Bok LLP

TSMP Law Corporation

WMH Law Corporation

COMMUNITY LEGAL CLINICS ANCHOR FIRMS

Allen & Gledhill LLP

Baker & McKenzie.Wong & Leow LLC
Dentons Rodyk & Davidson LLP
Drew & Napier LLC

Eversheds Harry Elias LLP
Fortis Law Corporation

Lexton Law Corporation
Quahe Woo & Palmer LLC
Rajah & Tann Singapore LLP
Shook Lin & Bok LLP

K&L Gates Straits Law LLC

Tan Kok Quan Partnership

Tan Rajah & Cheah

TSMP Law Corporation
WongPartnership LLP

MEDIA & PR SUPPORT
Asia PR Werkz
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JUST MAKAN 2018: JUSTICE IS SERVED

Fullerton Hotel, Friday, 29 March 2019

In keeping with the spirit of Just Walk (2015), Just Sing (2016) and Just Jubilee (2017), Just Makan:
Justice is Served fundraising dinner served as a platform for uniting both the legal fraternity and
the community in promoting legal awareness and access to justice.

Just Makan was held on 29 March 2019 at the Fullerton Hotel. Senior Minister of State, Edwin
Tong, Ministry of Law and Ministry of Health was our Guest of Honour.

The dinner:

e Recognised and appreciated the volunteers who have given their time and expertise to the pro
bono legal landscape of Singapore;

e Recognised and appreciated the anchor donors, institutional partners, and CLAS Fellowship
sponsors, and all others who have given their financial resources for the furtherance of the
mission of LSPBS.

e Showcased the five pillars of LSPBS and the work they each do, and the stories and testimonials
given by the beneficiaries of our programmes.

e Fundraised for our programmes for the year and beyond.

The evening's programme included a video titled “60 seconds on pro bono”, where our Chairman,
Mr Gregory Vijayendran, SC, and each of the programme Committee heads shared about the
importance of pro bono to them, as well as the work they had done and their vision for their
respective programmes.

Champion volunteers and donors of LSPBS were recognised and presented with a teapot set,
Brush with the Law 2019, specially made by Kim Whye Kee for their dedication towards the pro
bono cause. A live auction was helmed by Paul Foster. Guests were entertained by music from
Chain Reaction followed by a rocking night with music from Guilty as Charged who donated their
time and talent to the event. Over 450 guests attended the dinner and over $400,000 was raised
for LSPBS.

LSPBS is grateful to all partners, volunteers and staff who contributed to the success of Just
Makan: Justice is Served.

S
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FUNDRAISING EFFICIENCY

$445,338 $117,228 RATIO
FUNDS RAISED EXPENSES
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Top 2018 Community Legal Clinics Volunteers
Krishna Sharma, Ng Boon Gan
and Richard Tan (I-R)

Top CLAS Volunteers
Chong Yi Mei, Stacia Yong for Wilbur Lim and
Amogh Nallachandran (I-R)

Top Ad Hoc Volunteers
Haryini lyengar, Melissa Tonglee, Mia Watanabe, Ng Li Yen

and Nicole Fraser (L-R)
=4 (ha RN II
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Top Law Awareness Volunteers
Jeremiah Choy, Ng Bin Hong Patrick Tay
‘ and Richard Siaw (L-R)
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OUR YEAR AHEAD
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Our New Home

The State Courts currently houses CLAS operations, while all other operations are at the
Grand Building office (previously Golden Shoe Carpark). Once the new State Courts
Tower, scheduled to be fully operational by the first quarter of 2020, is ready, we will
operate under one roof.

JUST...Wait for it

Following our hugely successful Just Makan this year, many of our partners and donors
have been asking “What’s next?”. Plans are already underway, and our next annual
fundraiser promises to be an exciting and entertaining event (currently slotted to take
place in March 2020).
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OUR YEAR AHEAD

Family Justice Support Scheme (FJSS)

The concept of a Family Law Assistance Scheme was first brought up by the Chief Justice during
his Opening of the Legal Year speech in 2018. The idea was for the “F/C to work with the Law Society
to explore the possibility of launching a Family Law Assistance Scheme”, to “develop a low bono model
... [and] increase access to legal services for those within the “sandwich class” who get embroiled in
family disputes. The underlying thinking is that if trained and committed practitioners bring their
wisdom and counsel to bear on these disputes, this too should help reduce acrimony in the
proceedings". LSPBS, together with the Family Law Practice Committee, hosted a town hall session
on 7 August 2018 at the State Courts Bar Room, to obtain feedback from the Family Bar on the
proposed FJSS. The session, which was attended by more than 60 members, provided an
opportunity for members to discuss, interact and provide feedback on the FJSS. Following the
town hall session, a questionnaire was circulated for Family Law Practitioners to share their
feedback on the proposed FJSS.

The feedback was positive and indicated the Family Bar's support for the proposed FJSS. More
than 65% of the respondents agreed that help should be extended to litigants who fail LAB's
means test as well as impecunious foreign spouses. Nearly 80% of the respondents agreed that a
legal clearing house will help categories of people who are under-lawyered. Since then, LSPBS has
been working with various stakeholders to scope out the conceptual framework of the proposed
Family Justice Support Scheme, which we target to launch by the end of 2019.

Assistance for Migrant Workers Social Service Agencies

The LSPBS Migrant Workers' Group, which will be launched officially in Q4 2019, was set up to
foster greater alignment and closer collaboration in enhancing legal awareness and access to
justice in the migrant worker community in Singapore.

The collaboration aims to facilitate access to justice and legal knowledge for the migrant worker
community by, inter alia:
o |dentifying areas of needs and potential areas of collaboration amongst the participating
Voluntary Welfare Organisations (VWOs);
o Providing opportunities for the VWOs to collaborate with LSPBS and other organisations to
demonstrate social responsibility towards the migrant worker community; and
o Providing a platform for discussion, exchange of ideas and sharing of resources.

Law Awareness webinars on “taboo” topics

Due to the stigma associated with certain “taboo” legal topics, members of the public may be
hesitant to attend some of the law awareness talks in person. To reach out to the wider
community, LSPBS is working with the LAWs @ CDC Committee and other partners to produce
webinars (web-based seminars), which would allow individuals to attend the “live” talks using their
personal electronic devices, including their handphones. Through the interactive Q&A segment,
attendees will be able to ask questions in real time anonymously, thereby removing any
reservations they may have due to the nature of the topics discussed. To kickstart this series, two
common taboo topics have been selected: Dealing with Debt and Divorce and You. Additionally,
in partnership with the Singapore Heart Foundation, there will be a third webinar where the
ethical and legal issues of being a Good Samaritan are discussed to encourage and help more
come forward to help others.
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GOVERNANCE
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A. BOARD & EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

LSPBS Board of Directors

LSPBS is governed by a Board of Directors (“the Board”). The Board provides leadership to enable
LSPBS to carry out its objects as set out in the Constitution.

The composition, powers and functions of the Board are governed by the Constitution.

The majority of the Board shall as far as practicable be lawyers with a practicing certificate issued
under Section 25 of the Legal Profession Act (Cap. 161) in force.

No Board member is paid any remuneration or fees for his services and no Board member is a staff of
LSPBS.

Roles and Responsibilities

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that LSPBS complies with the Constitution and all
relevant laws and regulations, as well as make sure LSPBS is governed and managed responsibly and
prudently to achieve organizational effectiveness, credibility and sustainability. The Board's roles and
responsibilities include to:

e Set LSPBS long-term objectives, purpose and strategy, including the charity's mission, vision, values
and standards;

e Ensure necessary management and financial controls are in place;

e Approve annual operating and capital expenditure budgets and any material changes to them;

e Approve the annual report and audited accounts.

Term Limit of Board

Board members are appointed for a term of two (2) years and may be re-appointed at the expiration
of the term. To ensure succession planning and steady renewal in the spirit of sustainability of LSPBS,
the Board has a term limit of ten years.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets at least once every four (4) months with a quorum of four (4) Board members.
The following table sets out the individual Board member’s attendance at the meetings.

&1 Appointment

Baard Member Current Designation Baard Attendance

Gregory Vijayvendran Ganesamoarthy, SC Chadrman [ Pl TR i

Kaedvin Wong Daputy Chairman D130 T

Cinesh Singh Dhilan Tresrar Db 01T dof4
s Arafal Selvam Board herminer 0T 4 of 4
Copril Ghua Beoxard hdermber DAGHB0TT = 01 R20D daf 2
Craroek I-'i.ang Yu Haten Board Mermbor B S0 T 2of 4
M Srgarmmmsan, SC Board Marmbar Dud i F0 T Oof4
Pad Senh Board Member Dm0 1of ¢
Tan Cheoy Himg Eeaared Mapdher DT dal 4
Adrian Tan Board Marvbear DDA T 1of 1
Thic Shen ¥i, 50 Board Mamber [y ey ind 1of 4
Wendell Wong Hin PKin Board hearmbear DD T 20old
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Board and Programme Committees
The Board is further complemented by 4 Board Committees and 4 Programme Committees.

Board Committees

(i) Audit
The Audit Committee facilitates the external and internal audit of LSPBS for the Board to obtain
independent information about LSPBS activities.

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include:

o

O O O ©o

To oversee the financial reporting and disclosure process, and monitor the choice of
accounting policies and principles;

To review the audit plans and reports of the external auditors and internal auditors, and
considers the effectiveness of the actions taken by management on the auditors’
recommendations;

To conduct periodic internal checks on key processes to ensure compliance with the
established procedures, and report to the Board on the findings and recommendations for
improvements;

To analyse and address the risks that are associated with the key processes;

To oversee regulatory compliance and whistleblower guidelines;

To report to the Board of any financial irregularities, concerns and opportunities; and

To liaise with auditors on any significant matters arising.

(ii) Finance
The responsibilities of the Finance Committee include:

o

o

To prepare LSPBS’ budget for Board's approval;

To develop coherent financial policies for LSPBS including investment policies and
guidelines for the Board's approval;

To review the various functions and activities of LSPBS which impact the finances of LSPBS;
To ensure that the appropriate internal controls and risk management strategies (both
operational and financial risks) are in place; and

To ensure accountability to the Board, LSPBS and its stakeholders.

The Treasurer of LSPBS is the Chairperson of the Finance Committee.

(iii) Fundraising

The Fundraising Committee is responsible for overseeing LSPBS' overall fundraising and, in
particular, the fundraising done by the Board. The Fundraising Committee’s responsibilities
include:

o

To work with staff to establish a fundraising plan that incorporates a series of appropriate
vehicles, such as special events, direct mail, fundraising campaigns, etc;

To work with fundraising staff in their efforts to raise money;

To identify and solicit funds from external sources of support;

To take the lead in certain types of outreach efforts, such as chairing a dinner/dance
committee or hosting fundraising parties, etc;

To be responsible for involvement of all Board members in fundraising; and

To monitor fundraising efforts to ensure that the fundraising activities are transparent and
ethical, that donors are acknowledged appropriately, and that fundraising efforts are cost-
effective.
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(iv) Human Resource
The responsibilities of the HR Committee include:
o Reviewing job descriptions;
Establishing a system for setting the remuneration of staff;
Establishing a volunteer management system;
Establishing a fair and transparent performance review and appraisal system for staff;
Reviewing staff salary and benefits package; and
Guiding the development, review and authorisation of HR policies and procedures.

O O 0O O o

Programme Committees

(i) Criminal Legal Aid Scheme (CLAS)

The Terms of Reference of the CLAS Committee are:
i. To co-ordinate and advise the Board on the administration of the Criminal Legal Aid Scheme (the Scheme);
ii.To hold dialogue sessions, seminars, talks and visits relevant for volunteer lawyers and / or pupils of the
Scheme on criminal law, practice and procedure;
iii.To publish relevant information to the public on the Scheme and on criminal law and procedure;
iv.To organise fund raising activities forthe Scheme on behalf of LSPBS; and
v. To keep the Board apprised of all such activities.

(ii) Community Legal Clinics (CLC)
The Terms of Reference of the CLC Committee are:
i.To ensure that the proposed expansion plans are implemented effectively, efficiently and according to the
timeline.
ii.To provide guidance and oversee the implementation process.
iii.To co-ordinate and advise the Board on the administration of the Community Legal Clinics network.
iv. To hold dialogue sessions, seminars, talks and visits relevant for volunteer lawyers and / or pupils on
Community Legal Clinics processes, practice and procedure.
v. To publish relevant information to the public on the Community Legal Clinics network and the services
provided.
vi. To organize fund raising activities for the Community Legal Clinics network on behalf of LSPBS; and
vii.To keep the Board apprised of all such activities.

(iii) Law Awareness
The Terms of Reference of the Law Awareness Committee are:
i. To assist the Board in its purpose to facilitate the acquisition of legal knowledge by members of the public;
ii. To recommend and implement law awareness projects and programmes for the public's benefit;
iii. To undertake fund raising projects on behalf of LSPBS for law awareness programmes; and
iv. To apprise the Board of all such activities.

(iv) Project Law Help (PLH)

The Terms of Reference of the PLH Committee are:
i. To make provision for a scheme by which legal practices and advocates and solicitors can provide pro bono
non-litigation commercial legal advice to charities, non-profit organizations, social enterprises and voluntary
welfare organisations.
ii. To facilitate, promote, support and encourage a sustainable commitment to pro bono work within the legal
profession in Singapore.
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B. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Annual Remuneration of 3 Highest Paid Staff

Salary Bands (in bands of SGD100,000) MNumber of Staff
SG0100,000 — 2GD159 999 2
SGD200,000 - SGD299 999 1

No LSPBS staff serve in the Board.

LSPBS does not have paid staff who are close members of the family of the Executive Head
or Board members.

C. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Reserves Policy

For long-term stability of the operations, it is the objective of LSPBS to achieve a reserve that
would be able to sustain operations for a three years period in the event of a decline in
donations.

Whistle-blowing Policy
LSPBS has in place a Whistle-blowing Policy to address concerns about possible wrong-doing
or improprieties in financial or other matters within LSPBS.

Conflict of Interest Management

Every Board Member is required to comply with the LSPBS Conflict of Interest & Related
Party Transactions Policy, as well as the provisions of the Companies Act relating to the
disclosure of the interests of the Board Members.

The Board has put in place documented procedures for Board members and staff to declare
actual or potential conflicts of interest on a regular and need-to basis.

Board members also abstain and do not participate in decision-making on matters where
they have a conflict of interest.
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D. GOVERNANCE EVALUATION CHECKLIST

5/N

1

_Bn-ard Governance

Code guideling

Compliance

Induction and arientation are proviced 1o incoming
gaverning board members upon joining the Board.
Are there governing board members holding staf?
appointments? (skip tems 2 and 3 if “Mo")

Stafl does not chair the Board and does not comprise
mare than one third of the Board,

There are written job descriptions for the staff's executive
functions and opsrational duties, which are distinct from the
stafi's Board roka.

The Treasurer of he charity (or any parson holding an
equivalent position in the charily, &.g. Finance Commiltes
Chaman ar @ govarning baard member responsile fo
ovargaaing e inancas of the charity) can only serve a
maimum of 4 congecutive yoars.

If the charity has not apponted any governing board meamber
to overses its fimances, it will be presumsad that the Chairman
oversast the finances of the charity.

&l govaming beard members must submit themeslvas for re-
nomination and re-appointment, at least once every 3
PEAFE

The Board conducts self-svaluation o assess its
performance and effaclivenass once during iis term or every
3 years, whichaver ks shorter,

Is there any governing beard member who has served
fior more than 10 consecutive yearsT {skip ltem T If “Ma™)

The chanly discleses inils annual reporl ihe reasons for
retaining the governing board member who has served
for more than 10 consecutive years.

Thare are documented terms of reference for the Board
and each of its commitiaes.

113

1.1.5

117

1113

1.2

Compled

Rl

HNA

hA

Compied

Compliad

Mo

A

Compled

Canflict of Interast

10

Thare are documented preceduras for governing bosnd
members and staff to declare aciual or potential conflicts of
interest o the Board at the earfast opportumiby.

Governlng board members de not vale arf participate n
decision making on matters where they have a confct of
intersst

2.1

24

Compled

Complad

Strategic Planning

The Board periedically reviews and approves the
strategic plan for tha charily fo eraure thal the charnty's
actnilins ane jn line with the charity & cbjéctves

322

Compled
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D. GOVERNANCE EVALUATION CHECKLIST

S/M  Code guideline Code ID Compliance
Human Resource and Volunteer Management

12 Thie Board approves documented human resource 5.1 Compled
policies for staff.

13 There B a decumented Code of Conduct for governing 53 Cooenpaliad

board membars, siaff and volunteers (where applicable)
which iz approved by the Board,

14 Thers are processes for regular supervision, appraisal 55 Complied
and professional development of staff.
Ara there volunteers serving in the charity? (skip item Yas
15 if “No™)

15 Thers are volunteer management policies in place for 57 Coenplied
volunieers,

Financial Management and Internal Controls

16 There 5 adocumented policy 10 seek the Board's 6.1.1 Complied
approval for any Ioans, donations, grants o financial
assislance provided Dy ihe chanity which are not part of
the charily's core chasilable programmes.

1T The Board ensures that nternal controls for financial .12 Complied
matters in key araas arg in plece with decumanted
procedurss,

18 The Board ensures that reviews on the chanty's nternal 6.1.3 Complied
conirols, processes, key programmes and events are
regulany conducted,

19  The Board ensures that there is a process to ldentify, 614 Complied
and regularly monlter and review the charty's key
risks.

20 The Board approves an annual budget for the charnity's 6.2.1 Complied
plans and regulandy moniors the charity's axpandilure.

Does the charity invest its reserves (e.g. in fixed Yas
deposits)? (skip item 21 if "No™)

21 The charity has a documented investment policy 623 Comphed
approved by the Board,

Fundraising Practices

Did the charity receive cash donations {solicited or b=l
unzolicited) during the financial year? (skip item 22 if
JI."nr!a

22 All collections recelved {solicited or unsolicited) are [ Complied
properly accounted for and promptly depesited by the
charity
Did the charity recelve donations In kind during the Mo
financial year? {skip item 23 It "Ne")

2% Al donations in kind racsived are properly recorded and 7.23 A
accounted for by the charty.
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D. GOVERNANCE EVALUATION CHECKLIST

Code guideline

Code ID

Compliance

25

26

27
28

28

Disclosure and Transparency

The charity discloses in its annual report —

&} the number of Board mestings in the financial year;
and

ih) the attendance of every goveming baard member at
those mestings.

Are governing board members remunerated for their
services o the Board? (skip tems 25 and 26 if “Ne™)
Mo goveming board member 15 invilved in satting RS own
ramunaration,

The charity discloses the exact remuneration and benafits
received by each gowemning board member in its annual
raport.

OR

The charity disclosas that no govarning bosrd mambeer is
ramunsrated.

[Doas the charity employ paid staff? (skip ifems 27, 28
and 29 if "No")

Ko staff is imvclved = satfing his own remuneration.

The charity discloses in its annual report —

1a) the tofal annual remuneration for each of iz 3 highest
paid staff who each hes received remuneration (Including
remuneration recelved from he charily's subsidiaries)
exceeding 500,000 during the inancial year; and

(o} wehether any of the 3 highes! paid stall also serves as
@ goeeming board member of the charty. The indormaton
ralating to the remunaration of the steff must be presented
s bands of §100 004,

The chanty disclosas thal there is no paid staff. baing 2
close member of tha family Balorging (o the Executive
Hesd or a governing board mamber of the charity, who
has recaived remunaration exceeding 50,000 during the
financial year.

82

£2

2.3

22
a4

3.5

Complied

Mo

Il

A

Yag

Complied
Complied

Complied

30

Public Ima__ga

‘The chanty has a documented communication policy
on the release of Infermation about tha charity and ks
‘activities acroas sl media platforms.

Complied
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CORE PROGRAMME INFORMATION
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LSPBS provides:
(a) pro bono legal assistance for the most disadvantaged in the community as well as
for organisations serving the needy;

(b) support for lawyers undertaking pro bono work; and
(c) support for other organisations engaged in access to justice initiatives.

Policies adopted by LSPBS during the financial year in pursuance of the Charity’s objectives
have included policies to:

(a) facilitate the recruitment and mobilization of volunteers for pro bono services through:
o the presentation of a range of pro bono volunteer opportunities catering to different
interests, time commitments and legal/practice expertise; and
o the transfer of skills, know-how and a positive pro bono spirit from senior volunteers to
junior volunteers;

(b) facilitate volunteer networking, the transfer and dissemination of information and ideas
among volunteers and the organic development of pro bono initiatives to meet needs/gaps
in the legal assistance framework; and

(c) encourage law practices to support their lawyers to volunteer for pro bono work.

Programmes for individuals

Our Law Awareness programmes reach out to members of the public to increase
understanding of how the law applies in their daily lives. We do this through:

o Free public legal education talks, seminars, exhibitions and information booklets;

o Collaborations such as our Law Works partnership with NTUC and our annual Law
Awareness Weeks @CDC collaboration with the Community Development Councils and
People’s Association;

o Focused outreach such as our Project Schools programme which provides legal
knowledge to students and Law Cares which seeks to raise legal awareness concerning
end of life issues (wills, lasting power of attorney etc.)

Our Community Legal Clinics offer free basic legal advice to members of the public who are
facing a legal issue on personal matters and do not have access to legal advice or
representation. Needy applicants are also offered alternate legal clinic options through our
partnership with the Community Justice Centre to provide specialised Civil Legal Clinics,
Family Legal Clinics and daily on-site legal advice at the State Courts.

Our Criminal Legal Aid Scheme offers pro bono criminal defence representation for needy
accused persons regardless of nationality.

Our Ad Hoc Pro Bono Scheme offers legal representation for persons with exceptional
circumstances who do not meet the criteria for existing legal aid schemes but nonetheless
are in urgent need.

Please see Appendix A for a table providing an overview of our main pro bono programmes
for individuals and the reports of the Programme Committee Chairpersons for the Law
Awareness, Community Legal Clinics, Criminal Legal Aid Schemes and Project Law Help.
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Programmes for non-profit organisations

Recognizing that charities, voluntary welfare organisations, non-profit organisations and
social enterprises (collectively referred to as community organisations) are often run on
limited resources and may have difficulty affording legal consultation and representation, we
have 3 legal assistance schemes for non-profit organisations: the Community Organisation
Clinic, Project Law Help and the Joint International Pro Bono Committee.

The Community Organisation Clinic offers free basic legal advice on operational issues for
community organisations in Singapore that have an objective to meet community concerns
or needs.

Project Law Help assists community organisations doing community work in Singapore by
matching eligible organisations with a volunteer law practice that will provide pro bono non-
litigation corporate legal assistance.

Legal assistance rendered under Project Law Help covers pro bono corporate transactional
assistance in addition to legal advice.

The Joint International Pro Bono Committee assists non-profit organisations based in
Singapore but doing community work overseas with pro bono non-litigation corporate legal
assistance.

We also run free legal awareness talks for non-profit organisations to (a) update their
frontline staff/social service workers on laws which may assist their beneficiaries or (b)
update management staff/board members on laws concerning the operation/governance of
their organisations.

We also provide legal information relevant to the set-up and running of non-profit
organisations through our online NPO guide information portal as well as our “Legalese”
publication which is made available free of charge and can also be downloaded from our
website.

Please see Appendix B for a table providing an overview of our main pro bono programmes for non-
profit organisations and the report of the Programme Committee Chairperson for the Project Law
Help Scheme.

Programmes supporting our volunteers

We have a number of programmes to support our volunteers including:
(a) Capacity building and training talks for our volunteers to enhance their pro bono legal
advice and representation work.
(b) The Ad Hoc Pro Bono Scheme (AHPBS) which assists practitioners and firms who wish
to undertake pro bono work for needy persons on an ad hoc basis by screening and
preparing a suitability report on the potential recipient of the pro bono assistance.
(c) The Volunteer Initiative Support Scheme which assists practitioners undertaking their
own pro bono initiatives with administrative support and volunteer coordination and
mobilization.
(d) Social Service Agency referral service which helps to alleviate the burden often
encountered by practitioners in searching for relevant assistance schemes to help
dysfunctional pro bono clients. We provide guidance on relevant social serve
agencies/schemes and assists in making referrals to those agencies/schemes.

Please see Appendix C for a table providing an overview of our main volunteer support programmes.
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Programmes to assist or collaborate on access to justice initiatives with other
organisations

We strive for synergy and an integrated approach in delivering access to justice initiatives.

We have developed systems and procedures for the running of pro bono programmes.
Systems for programme administration, volunteer mobilisation and volunteer support
materials are a valuable resource for other organisations seeking to start or develop their
pro bono programmes. We give ready access to our resources to organisations initiating or
administering pro bono programmes. We assist agencies with volunteer recruitment by
publicising pro bono opportunities with these agencies to our pool of volunteers and
organise regular inter-agency networking sessions to share on new developments and needs
within the pro bono landscape.

We work closely with law faculties, pro bono law centres and law student pro bono groups
such as the NUS Pro Bono Group and SMU Outreach Club to provide meaningful pro bono
volunteer opportunities for law students.

We have collaborated or are collaborating with a number of other organisations including
the Agency for Integrated Care, Association of Women for Action and Research (AWARE),
Association of Corporate Counsel, Centre for Domestic Employees (CDE), Centre for Non-
Profit Leadership (CNPL), Community Justice Centre, Family Justice Courts, Foreign Domestic
Worker Association for Social Support and Training (FAST), HealthServe, Humanitarian
Organisation for Migration Economics (HOME), Justice Without Boders, Mayors Committee of
the Community Development Councils, Methodist Welfare Services, Migrant Workers' Centre,
Ministry of Law, Ministry of Social and Family Development, National Arts Council, National
Council of Social Service, National Volunteer & Philanthropy Centre (NVPC), National
University of Singapore, NTUC, People’s Association, Singapore Centre for Social Enterprise
(raiSE), Singapore Management University, Singapore Academy of Law, Singapore Corporate
Counsel Association,Singapore Institute of Legal Education, State Courts, Transient Workers
Count Too (TWC2), Tripartite Alliance for Dispute Management (TADM).
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APPENDIX A
Programmes for Individuals
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Ananine portal on LSPES wel:sl:e for wokislears |0 frack the number of pro bons Reurs they
havo aspardad v 2 year and 5o reg serio voluniessr for pro bono prog rammes
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APPENDIX B
Programmes for Non-Profit Organisations

Prisgiasnimg Sanvica Providad |mq|.rlrnnl

Commeanity Drgansaton Clinkes

| Genoral lesgal mdv ice for communty

ergunmaliae Uon reqeest by non-profil arganizalion

Fropect Lew Meip

| Mlaich-up mardce for local community
|orpenisatioss undertakisg communitywork | Assignment of woluntesr lree practice upon
|wdthim Bingapare and By Srava o pravide pro |sucsessiul appication

| Eseera corposate ogal Essistanca

Jaiml mimmational Pro Bonog Sommities

| liwih-ups sa e B pes-poii
|loegunmsations kased w Singagars
i‘ul‘ld-lll:lkrlg veork culside of Bingseora} und
||lll'|' firrse 16 provich pre BSen carpeca|a legal

Baaigrmiand of velinloer lee praslics upsn
suooessful appiczbion

|assstanoe,

Capacity Busding Programmes

| Presgyi i v

Descnptinn

{LEGALESE; a kgal boo kit far Canmunity

| Cregrunecafians [mads posble with denetinns fnm
| 0B8 Frsndalian, S3F Fouwrdalien & Wihies

| Knatanivang LLF

LEGALESE k& putlicatisn which aims o provids bile-sized pesces of mfeamadon o the &n the|
vk lgal i peck ol sslting up @5 FUnEing & Sackii anlaipriss af nae-poll sy The Tea
ot on fosused sakly on sopiad antorprisos. The sepord od Bon was o pandod fo ooeoer

e e

Tha LEGALESE 1=olkit car b downloaded far fres Bom LEPES vebals
Iipipmobono lavecculy. g, s/ Pagesilegale BE . wape

“First Rozpsnchar” sppart - Eary Inlemerdion
Inisative be aspisl froeing waibin proviling sl
Syl 0 Aadinre

Pravide soppart do sndiel warkas mom vanely of vways [niuding copecity buliding Bk, egs!
ol far @S mEao Qe o dscusdl o, legal sinies, sic). The aind & o aquip socal werkiers
with basx kmowdedgn of cameman le=gal issues w0 thal 1hey are ablke bo 1genily pebenfial cos=es
thail mary bo suitable for sarfy mgalinlvendicn, o wel am io anewer any legal gussian thiy
msy hive

|}
Axzimling the Informoedinge 1o Loag Term Sam (LTS
sesinr

Raksing swaranazs on advance plhnnisg Esune {o.p Werial Capacity Act, Laeting Fowemns of
Acevcy, aic) and providisg lapsl assistacee 10 e seer, ircluding The ey, medical secil

wiikirs and LTC sedor badas:

Social Service Capasly Balding Sanan
[SECapESenos)

Capacity building vwiihn the secial perve sacior thicagh o eesies ol {alke, The sim s e ague
the sacion with [ogal knossledge so thal they may improvs thel services o the sacio,
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APPENDIX C
Volunteer Programmes

FI'IJFHI'-'I'II‘

Al Hot P Bomnde ASS eSS maint 5o ma

D-na-:nphm
Ju'I-IH.'I. i} SO0 frs vl Bia phm-ﬂm o -aed hag |.|m Do war fai- mnd. pmm:ﬂ. n-p
{assessing # prospociin cient's sastabd iy 1o pro Do assisEnog.

Unluminer Capecly Ruldng Sere s SfniCapa Sermn)

| Pracico wireskems and legal semnarsvorkshops o onhance {se debvery of pro bon pevices

oy oor welurRears

el Laga A Traiong Programema

:_l'nriw ruhiwsfsers and imgel sominers in enhence tha dobyacy gf pro bone weryices by our
1 1LA% vaknbeora

WoniaiSpesindbil B asaurcs Sodancs

|Mabching of jnier pro bono Wvyes with a menter! prastics sgpecming is provide pracice
gukdince

Paraligsl Dugport far el msl Sal

:P:l:lh-p.l irial spparttor pra bone lawyere ardarfakegg orminad Sgaly aidsd cacac

Erinlirgs for law practicas s @s Bano Dpportu pilie

{an sfo pro bane tiedngs on volusteer opporiunRes for o pracices.

Pre Bono Guide Inf Law Praciices

[Suid for law practces on providisg shectured support for bysyers %0 angegs in pro bona,
lavaiisbie i hand and 2oft oopy

Pro Bono Guke v Yolunizars

ik oy wekindoars an i B apportiinhes B Segennn, asailaba in Gesd aed ot g

Eangapard In=House Legal Counsal Pro Bong Quda

Pror Bona Matkoking E-Hsmnr.

Cotlzbonrtien with OLA Pioer srvd with tha suoport of the Singacare Comporabs Counsad
{associalion, He puide was Bundhed on 29 Jeraary P06 The Guite Payhiights spg o s
qpﬂnh mdrichaal In-koues laweenn who aich B undortais pre Sono logel week indagpandent of
'm:rimpupm

':':':Iulrlfrlr netrorking sesmons rl:r -:n-rrlul:: wavy yolunfsers. vatly pru- bono programTes

Pre Eang Resiich IHIiiIJH

HE’EHI"I:I support far pro boao lavwers underiaking casos .m'-:dnrru compky issues of L

‘Walumbaar Initistve Buippart Gelame

_.iln-luunlx- [ar practdonets involved in réesgular pro beene work Tor groap ol pessoes or
Ceamimierly in raad

‘Walurbaar Mansgemrani Pertal

AN oniine potal o LOPES" weobsis Roa walsntaers 12 ek the rumbes of o boan hvors thay
have cupardad in o pear and io regishe b wolLnbear fod pro Doa0 progRmnes.
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APPENDIX D
Access to Justice Collaborations

Ca iy Justca Canm

Seavice Prowided
e L

The CoFemnily Justcs Cantie saaks o
aeaEl Eewia @ parson wilh (e lollvang
po bona senraces

[a) nleenaton senices;

(&) Praglice SUppon semces

[} Hafermal camicac

|d} Lay Asssiance Schame

[a) Legal efisice; and

[y Pubke: gutmsch sanices

|t State Couda

Deysciiption
The Law Society throogh LEPES is seoparing
ke Communiy Jistice Cenng indiathe (G0}
in calateration wik 1ha Sime Coate, the
Family Justica Counls, the Kinstry of Law, the
IMinusiry of Sozzal and Famiy Developmerl and
ih@ Tan Coin Tush Foundaton

&, duty ofices from LEPES is stahoned at CIC
li& Lafn in s process tegeirations for the
Crimizgl, Famihy sl Cred logal chinicg rom sl

Cammuniy Legal $inics Mabwork

Suppor for indepardent kagal chmos Hrough
inplamenaten of cinc besl praclices
eiuaes irabiisatan e olher bechnical
it

Indspendent wgal clincs oin this network By
signing a Memarandum of Underslanding with
LEFES commitag (e & a8 of basl
prachizesSiandan opscaing proceiras

Tpoculipsd Chnice
. Wiagrant Waxioar Centre: {WWTG)

Foraigm Dorwetic Worker Association for Socal
Sippord and Twming (FAST)

Lagal chnics &t faraign workers

LEPES proades the fallowing support

() the shanng of LSPES malenal includng
[tk Community Lagal Chnic reanuaf and ow
chnic fanmra For the ussodeptation

) technical assisiance nclufing the
tepinigiatiachmant stinks of stalf on Bgal cling
admizisiralion 3nd procEoures;

(ich Fgh griweg b gur volunbesr pracbiboner
pool fegal cling volunissr oppatusilies; asd

(e vokoekegr modiis alion and coordreaine

A total of &9 fegal sppomtments ware nan at
KT and 0 &t FAST during thes sspoding

AVWARE's Berval Aspaull Cain Coentre [ZACC)

Lopal chnic s0ace 10 Aclims of 3exus dbuse
Hilanidog Amang's Saxual Assadl Cars
Cantra bor coonaeling

i
Unile: a collaborsion wih AVARS. LEREs |

hag offaied kgal eSacs to 18T victeny relemed
By the SACC dweing this mpodivg panod

Bano Ceniee

Eingapars Management Unreeesity Schood of Law Pro

Thi woek of thes SR Pro Bano Coenben

includes the faclitaton of access 1 justice

(il s comrpuy gal climiss fer ndiganis and

mﬁﬂmm?ﬂm ol Bawy sludend s A0 oAl
CO ESisas

LEPES povdes the sama scope of supped as
ouikmed above forihe Specialsed Clhnics
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1 Havelock Square
5th Floor State Courts Complex
Singapore 059724

T: 6536 0650
F: 6534 5237
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THE LAWY SOCIETY OF SINGAMIRE AND 1T SUBSIDMARY
STATEMENT BY THE COURCTL

In the ormiom of the Coceil che consaldated financial statcimens of The Law Saciety of Singapore
(il "Socicy™ and its subsidiany (he “GToE=") a5 sotout o1 pages =t 6F mme properly drewn, ap i
peeordance weth 1he Legal Prolession Aey Chaper 161 2ed bresncial Mezorung Stagdards in
Singapore 20 &5 1o present fairls . in ali mancrial reepems e Enenzial pocicion of the Groop ae ot
I Marzh 2029 aad afche finansial performance, changes in accurmulazed Funds arad Siv value reserve

and cash tlaws of the Group for tae finercial year ended on b daie.

U bahalCof dee Coune il

Wr G Vijayerdran Mt Tia Shane [saac
Praside 11 easuray

13 Seplember 200G



G bakertilly

300 Fcatn Oreage Rogd
A05-L 1 Per-kwieow Sijuere
Zingepore 18E7 T3

T +53 £336 3333
whrnt, Bk A lly, 2

INDETFENDENT AVDITOH'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

THE LAW SOCIETY OF SINGAPORE

Repart on the Audit of the Fizancial Statrments
Opinian

We have soditel the accempsnving finencial statements of The Law Sogiety of 5ingapore
fthe “Sncieiy™) and ils subsidiay (the “{iromp™ e s=t out an pages 5 to 60, which comprse the
balance sheet of the Qrewp ae at 31 March 2019, and the staiemett of omprehensive income,
statement of chaoges .o sceurnulated fiunds and fair valoe resecve and stateansar of cash dovws far the
year then ended, Bnd nates o the fnencial satements, inchading & summary of signitican: acgounbng
policics.

It g opinion, the acconspanying coosolidaled finaneial statcments of the Group are properly drswo
up in accordarce with the Legal Profession Act, Chapter 16] [the “Acl™} und Fitkeeial F.:p-nmng
Sandacds in Singapore (FERS5™) so s Lo presens fairly, in all material respects, the Loancial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019 end of the financial performance, chanpes in aceursulated funds
ABC Fair vane reserve and eash flows of the Group or the vear ended on that dule.

Busis for Opinion

We copducted cur zudit in avcordance with Singapors Standards oo Auwditing (38457, Qur
responsigilites wnder those sianderds are farther deseridad in the dwdiver’s Responwbiiiies for the
Awdir of the Finaneiad Statemeentr section of emr report, We are independent of the 3ociety in
aecotdanss with te Accounting and Corporate Begulatory Awtharity [ACRA) Cade of Professiesal
Covectued wmd Briivs fhor Publiz Aceovarants ard Accounting Entifles {ACRA Code) together wiil t12
shical tequiternentz that are relevant 1 our audil of the fivanpcial satements in Singapore, aod W
have Fulfilled our other eskical cespomsibitilies in accordzoce with these requirements and the ACRA
Code. We believe (hat the sudit evidencs we have sblained is seificient sod appropnate to mrovids 3
ba=is for out opiies,

{zher Inforaration

The Management is respunsible fa the other infonnacion. The other informalion chtained at the date
af this anditar's report 15 the Treasuter's Beoort and the $tatement by the Council a5 set out on page L
but dees not incde the fnencial staretments and oo swditee’s repot: trereen.

Dz opinion oo the financal statements doss not cover the other infermation and we de nae 2xpress
eny Form of assurance consmsion thereon.

In comneclion with our sudil of the fnapcial steiements, our responsibility is to read the other
information aad, 1 doing o, consicer wheiher she ather information i@ materially Lconsisiont with
the financial statements or our kocwledpe abfained in Jhe podit or athereise appears o be materially
misstared, IE, baged an the work we have perfummed on e athes nformation cbtedne prio: to the Jate
of [his muditor’s report, we conchude that there s a matemal misstalement of this other informelion, we
are reguired 1o veport that fact, We have nathing to repor 15 1his resard

Badear Tilly TEW LLP 2radireg a2 Saser Il 15 6 mermaer o the gobal nenwsrk ot Haer Dl mbamataral Lid. ke mamess of whick &
sepin Hle avel inde penieent gzl enlitizs,

Baker Tily T='W L_P [*2gierahon Mo " OLL14B56E1 1= snaszountlng wnsC liaaisy pertnesh g reglsterad ir Sirgapora Lnzer the 2
L'mit=a Liglal sy PRAAersmps sl (Craprer '|E|E."l].



@ bakertilly

INDEPESDENT AVDITOR'S REFORT TO THE MEMEERS UF
THE LAW SOCIETY OF SINGAPORE {eont"d}

Repor! ou (he Audit of the Financial Statem eats (conc’dy

Responsibilities of rhe Management and Thase Charged with Governawce for the Finencial
Sratements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fuir presentations of fiese financial slatements
in acoordanee with the Act and FRSs, and for such internal eotiteol 33 the Management desennines is
necossary to enaoke the preparation of financial statsments that ace free fram material missatement,
whether due to [raud or exTor.

In preparing the Gnaocial stasements, the Management is rsponsible for assessing the Group's chility
tn continue as a guing coocem, dischosiog, as applicahle, matters related 10 going cpncemn end wiib
the goina concem Has's of accounting viless the Management sither intends ta liguicale the Group or
to gmse pperat:ons, or bas oo realisic allemasive bol tn do so.

Thoze chacped with sovercanee are responsible for pverscoing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditar's Respansibilities for the Avwdit of the Financial Sweenenis

{hur ohjectives ame 1o vblain rsagonable asswwance oot whether the Guancial stasements es a whole
are fice rom metesial misstarement, whetlier doe to fraud ar armor, and o 15807 a0 suditor's report that
includes our op:aion. Keassmable assarance is & high level of sssorance, i is nat @ puaraniee 154 an
andit eanducted in aecondance with 35A3 will alwaws detee? a matsrial sisstatctnent when o exists.
Wigstpienants can erse from frewd o emor and are considered materia if, individezelly or in the
agpregate, they could reasonebly be expectad tn influence the ecunomiv decisions of vsers taken on
Jie hagis of these f2aancial stalemenls.

A% part of an audit 5 sceordance with 5543, we eyercise profewsicnal judpement and niaintain
prufessiona] scepiizizm thrmughont the audil. We a.z0!

»  Idemtify ahd aszess the dsks of maenel misstatement of the fraocial slaements, whether due o
fraud or ereos, desipr and perfanm =udil procedores responsive to thase nske, and obtain audit
evidznoe thisl is sofficiett and sppropriste to previde a basis for our opmion. The risk of bot
Ceterling a craterial mizsiatemen: resulting from fread i higher tham foc nne resuliing frum eoer,
as fraud may involve collogion, forgery, imtentinnal omissiung, misrepecsentations, or the overrde
of irterral cantrol.

«  Dbtain an onderstanding af ioterpal contral pelevant 2o the audd m oorder do dosiph awdst
proceduees that arc appenprizie in (e sirewrstances, bet not for the purpose of exprassing an
apimion oo the effectiveness of the Group's mtersal controd,

+  Fwvaluatz the approprisleness of aceounting poacies wied and the reasonableness af accounting
¢atimates and related ciseleswres made by the Managem.ent.



@ pakertilly

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE LAW SOCIETY OF SINGAPORE (cont’d)

Report on the Aundit of the Financial Statements (cont"d)
Anditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cant'd)

« Conclude on the appropristeness of the Management’s wse of the going concern hasis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists relatad
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability o continue &s a going
concern. If we conclude thar a material unceriainty exists, we are required to draw stfention in ot
anditor's report 1o the related disclosares in the fnancial siatements or, if such disclosures are
inadequete, to modify our apirion, Chir conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the dale of oor mditor’s report. However, fiture events or conditions may cause the Socicty to
cease to conbmue a8 A riing COncer.

+ Ewaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Divain sufficient appropriate sudit cvidence regarding the financial informaiion of the entities or
buisiness activities within the Group 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audi, We remain
anlely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned
seope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies m
internal control that we identify during our audil.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our apirion, the accounting and other records requirsd by the Act 10 be kept by the Society has
besn properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Tatu( Uy Fn
Baker Tilly TPW LLP

Public Accountants and
Charered Acoountants

Sing=pore
23 September 2019
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THE LAW S0CTETY OF SINGAPORE AND 1T SUBSIDARY

CONSOLINATED STATEMENT OF CASH FL.OWS
For the fiuageial year ended 31 Murch 201%

Mote

Cash Alows from vperating activitkes
surplus befors tax
Adjustments for:
AmoTiizalion on intangible wssets 3
Amnertisation of defered capital ot 11
Arnertisation of deferred expendilure
Dep-eciption of property, plant and eguipmenl 2
Fuir value j0s8 o financial assews at fair value
thouph profit or loss
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale Bnancial assels
Tmpairment losg on available-tor-zale finencel assets
Interest ncomes
InvEstment incomne
Intangihle assels wniten off
Lozs om tedemphion of nascial ageets a fair value
through other comprehensive wnoome
PFroperty, plent and squipment written off
Wavier of honorunums and disbursatpents charged hy
AWYErs
Operaling cush Nows sefore working capital chingas
Fixed depasits and bank palances neld m 1ot
inventoriss
Recervables
Deferred eapital prane received
Coantcact liakilines
Deferred expenditurs
Pavables and monwes beld in tewsy
gl TToan operalians
Incanne tax praid
Met cash from operating acdvitles

Cash Bows [rox investing activifics

Additione of availakle-for-gale financia) assets

Cash withdreral frem fund: placed with fund manepers

Funds placed with Tond manapces

Troceeds from dispogal of avalable-for-zale
financiel assets

Purchaze of intangible arseis E

Purcnise of prosery, plant and sguipméal 2

Purchase of financial assets at far valus throogh ather
comprehensive It

Ttooasds from disposat ol Eaancial assets ot far valoe
through pther comprenimisys Heome

Inierest recoived

Investroent inecTas received

Net cash from/(osed Ln) invesdng actvities

2019 2018
% 3
1,080,675 3.38% 74T
162,792 163,238
{225,490 (157,727
21,998 -
548,252 459,836
114,614 _
- (11,309
- 236,109
(362,671 {267.715)
{422,141 {463,045)
- 1075
4,251 :
315 6,208
(945,500} -
XE6,124 2,248 357
88,978 346 208
4,550 (5.042)
1,014,667 {132, 414)
11.37h 337,276
{497,764) 528,597
{3,998) (56,135}
{20,523 (571,790}
1,484,312 2,557,514
{2,734) -
1,474,568 2 507 414
- (3,000 706
258,391 _
- (204, 2541
- 2,290,150
- {45,094
{269,931) (251,252
{256, 624)
515,798 -
362,672 7,024
422,101 463,045
L3807 (T0.658)

The accorapamyang notes form an itiggrenl pan of these francial stalemoents,



THE LAW SOCIETY OF STNGAPORE AND ITS SUBSINIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the fuancial vear ended 31 March 2019

218 2018
MNate ¥ ¥

et increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,512,975 EARD, 150
ash and mash cquivalants at the beginzing of

fihascial wear 21,984,791 20,104,636
Cash aod vush equivalents af the end

of finzucisl yoar 24,497,767 2] WEd4 70
Cash awd ¢ash equlvalents comprise:
Fixed deposils, bank and cash balanses 10 25,540,485 23,038 532
Less: bionies halé in st 10 (1,142,718y  (1,053740)

24 497,767 21.954,792

The ascompatrying notes form en micgmal pat of (Rese hrancial statements.
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THE LAW SOCTETY OF SINGAPORE AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the linancial year ended 31 March 20159

These aates form an inepral parl of agd shoold be mead in conjuaction with the accomoanying
{inatcial staterents.

1  Somntoary of significaot accounting policies
2] Hsaels of preparation

The financial slaterments, cxproased in Sinpapore dellar (“8°), which is the Society's
funchiomal curtency, have Loen prepared in sceordance with the Tegal Frofession Ast,
Chanter 161 and Financigl Reporting Standards in Sinpapore ("FESs™). The fmancial
statements have peen prepored wnder the histoncal cost eonvenlion gxeept a5 disclosed o the
axaompting polioies helos,

The preparation of francist stateinents in conforrmby with FRSs requires the use of estimates
and azsumptions thar affect the reported amounes of assels aml lisbiliges and disclosure of
contingent sssets and iabilities 1 tac date of the fnancial sl=ments aud the ropored
armonits of ingome eod =xpendilure duving the fingncsal wear. Althoueh these estimates are
hated on managemont’s best koowledge of cwrent everts and actions &nd historical
euperiences Ang varinus other (aclors thal are helieved (o oe reascmable under the
ciTcwnstanees, acrual rosults may wktimately differ from thoze estimares.

e eof esrimirtes o jrdgements

These catitnates and sssumnptions are assessed o an on-poing basis and ame Dascd on
sxpreriere aid relevant Factors, including expeciations of fiturc evenis (hat are pelieved to be
Teasanible under the cireumetances.

In the process of 2pplying the (roop's accounling policies dessrbed below, managetrent 28
made zhe following “adgement that hes the mest sipnificant £itest on the amonly recopnised
1n the fimaneial etatements:

The Group depteciates s properts, plant end equiprnent based on a straight-lne basis ovel
their expeated useful lives, The camying amaunt. of the Group's property, plant and equpment
at 31 March 2019 was 34017 366 (2018 $5,196,592). Clanges in the level of vsage and
market wses could impact the usetisl lises and residusl waluss of t1ese assets and benos luture
depresiation charges sould be (evized,

The catving amoun's of cesh and cash 2evivalenits, otker cutrent reecivables and payahles
approginiale their respechve Car valust due o che relatively shon-teom coatarity of those
linencial nstimments.

MNew and revised srrngdands

It ;he curmens Snancial year, the Giowp has adopied all the sew and pevised FR3s and
Irterpretations of FRSs (“INT FESe") that are relevant 1o it operalions ad efferive for the
snren] finarcial vear. Changes e tne Group’s accounting palicies have been made a3
cequiced, it dccordance with the transitinnal provisioas in the respecticve FE.S¢ and INT FRSs.

Tre adoption uf these naw and revised FRSs and INT FREs did 101 have any matenal effect
op the Ninancie. results or positon of the Giroup.
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The Lpw Saciery af Singapiece aod i sebsidiany

Swmmary of signiftcant accounting polickes (cont'd)

[a) Basls of preparstion (coot*d)

MNew awd revised standards foown 'd)
FRS 115: Revenne from Contraces with Castomers

FRY 115 replace: FRS 18 ‘Revenue’, FRE |1 “Cuastruction corcmets’ and other cevenue-
rebated interpretations. IL applics to all contracts with cuztomers, cxoept far leases. financial
instruments, mauraice contracts and cortam guaranies conttacs anc non-menelary exchalge
conzracts. FRY 115 pruvides a single, principle-hased meodel to be applied to all contracts with
cusicaners. AT enlity Tecopmises revenue o accordence with the corg principle m
FEE 113 by applying a 5-sleo appreach,

Under FES 115, an entity recognises meverue wheo {or es) e perfocnanee obligaien 1s
satizfied, ie. when “control” of the geods o services underhving the partcalar performarce
ohligation Js teansfermed to the customer, The etiity 15 required o exercize judgetment, 1aking
i1la consideration all of the relevant fucls and citeqinstances when spplying cach stew of the
model; to comrracts wish theit customers. The standard slso specifies 1he accowing fnz
ircremental costs of obtaining = contract and the costs divect.y relatsd to fo’filling « coitract

Ti= Grovp adopled FES 115 using the modified retrospective approach withunl testating
prior pernods’ ifonnation and recognises any diflercnct betwesn the previous camyilig
armount and Lhe carrying anscont /t the beginning of the anaual reporting penied et the gate of
switial applicatian in the opeaing accomulated funds as at | April 2013,

1,oder this method, the standard can he applied either o all contracts at the dete of "aiial
applicaticn or emly to contracss thac are not completed as 41 this daee. The Groop has eleed
ihe practicel expelienl 10 30ply the standard to contracls %:al ae not completed at the date of
iritial applicaticn.

A The dave of in'tial application and 31 3arch 2009, the Group has agscssed 1hat the adeprion
of FR5 115 dnes nat have any matsral impast to the Ananeial position and results of the
Growp except as follows:

The oifvet of adopiing FRE 115 a2 at | Aprd] 201% was as follows:

[ocreaseTLorerse}
i
Feeraivablos (A4 22E)
(omlcacl assols I 325
Fres receivead moadvance {2,652 837
Contezot liahilities Z.0%92 617

Cancract assels represent coattibiiion receivabls from Ministry of Las: for sernces performed
tor CLAYS ceses ool hilled. In the finapcial pencd ended 31 March 2018, his contribution
raceivable Brom Mimstry of Law 938 classified as receivaples.

Cortrast lighilizies represont subscnpiion fees paid in advance by mambecs b the financial
veer ecded 3] Mazxl 2004, this was classified as fees received in advance.
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The Law Society of Snpasorr and itz wahaidiany

1 Summucy of sigoificanl accounting policies (conf*d)

(2] Hasis of preparstion (cont’d)

Mew gnd revized Mawdards {cawi 'd}
FRS 10% Financlal Tnsiruments

FES 108 replaces FRS 3% Financial oetumeniy: Recopniticn and Meagurement for anowal
periuds bewinaing on or after 1 January 2018, T includes guidanee un {f) the classification and
mewsuremenl of fnaocal asscks and fivencial liabalrdes; (1) impaitment requirements for
finencial aesets: ard (iii] genetal hedpe accounting. Finanoial wisets e classified according
ta their contreetua’ cash Dow chatacteristcs and the hosiness model under which ey are
held. The impairment requinements io FES 109 aoc bascd on cxpected credit Joss medel and
repizoe FRY 35 inour=d Lotz madel,

e frooap applied FRE W04 p=ing a medified rettospective approach, with dete af mlial
applicstion om © April 2018, The Group has not regtaced tha comparative informatior, which
contitmes o he eepotted vnder TRS 3% Dilkmences adsicg from the adnption of
FRS 108 hiave been recopnised directly in actomolated funds and ofber components of squity.

The effect of adopling FRS 10% as a0 1 Apnl 2018 was as [ollows:

Non-current assets Relerences (Trecrease)Tncrease
Available for sale financial asscts M AFEY) 2 (L0, 200,077)
Funds placed with tund managers =)} (2, 18K, 858)
Fina+cial assets at fair velue through

ciher comptehetsive income {MFVOCT [a) 12,200,073
Fiouncizl azsets at fait wamae through profit o

(“EVTPL™ (b} 2,388 B30

Curcent assets

Available for tale financial ase2ts (“AFS") (ak {330,500
Finencial assers ar FYOCT (@) & (k) 250, 500
Equity

Fair value reserve ic) 187078
Geperal Fund {c} {68,405)
Compensation Fand {c) S N ULV )

The falowing are e charges in classification and measucement acising from adopting
TRS10G:

{ay AFS of 510,450,572 reclassified o FVOCT {310,200 73]

{12 Funds laced with Junds managers of 52,388,856 reclassitied to KV TPL (32,288 534)

fch For the presously held AFS equity secmities measured st FVOCT comclative
unpainment charge nf 5236, 108 previcusly mecoenised o profi or loss wes reelassified
from Gextecal Fand and Compensstion Fund to Fair Waloe Beserve a5 51 1 Aoeil 2008,

T eddition, fair value gain of 340,037 pertaining oo fuad placed with [und nansger

previoualy rﬁmg:'nﬁ:d in ulner cumaprebensive neomme was clasaified from Fair Value
Eoserve to Ceneral Fund and Compensanion Fand a5 o 1 April 2015,
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Thes Luw Sociely of Smpapora aod it subsidiary

1

Summary of sigolflcant accommting prlicies (cont'd)
(A} Rasis of preparation {cout’d)
Mo and revized Mandaeds (oot 'd)
FRY 10% Financial fnsiriiments {oont’d}
The natuve of these edustments are dezenbed below:
() Classifiearion and seasurames

Tnder FRS 19%, the Grnup ciassifues its financial assels based on entily's busimess inodel
frr managing the Anancial assats and the comtrectual cesk flow characteristics of the
finanzial assets, The assessroent of the Lrmp's busmess model was made as of e date
of initial application oo 1 Apold 2018 The assessmetd of whether cootractual cash Dows
om cebt ineruments are solely comprited of principal and interest was made based oo the
facts and cireumstances 32 a0 the initial reeopnition of the wssets,

The following are the chanpe: in classification and meagurcment arisiog fam adopting
FRS (09

Loans @nd receivahles including receivatles, fxed doposits, bank end cash balawees
a5 al 31 March 2018 are he'd to collest contrectual cash fieeas, These arz classified
and measured as debt instrnmens at smemised cosl depirnitg 1 Apnil 2014,

»  Investroent in quated squity shaes classified as available-for-sale (“AFS") financial
asserts aw ol 3 March 2013 are classifisd and meazured a5 equity instoumoent at far
waluc throaph cther comprehensive inceme (“EYOQCTY) begmrmng 1 Apnl 2018, The
firgup sxpects *o beld these assets 1o collert contractual cash Nows and fo sell from
sime 1 [ Eould the need arise.

v kroted debt instruments classified as AFS finarcial sssets as 2t 51 March 2018 aig
classified aod messured as FVOCL begonang | oAprl 2018 The quored dekt
instoutneats ace held within a tusiness moadel with the objessive of both holding m
collect conmacteal cash fows end selling wo give rse to cash flows repressiting
solely paymenty of pnocipal and Wierest,

»  Tupds plazed with find manspers a5 et 31 barch 2018 are classified and measured at
fzir value through profic ar lees (“TVITLY) beginning 1 Aprl 201E. Ax a cesult of the
change in meaturetnent of Socisty's funds places with fund managers o FVYTET, fair
velue gain of 549,01 ralsted 4o funds placed fund maecapers ihar wes previously
1aken to Zpir value regerve was reclassifizd 1o Geoecal Pund and Compensat:on Fund
o5 a: 1 April 2018,

The Growr has not designated any fitancia: liabiditics at fair value (arough profit or Loss,

Thers are no changes it classification and mewsurement for Ale Group's fitancial
labiliies,
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The |.aw Swsiety of Siagapore end i3 pulisidiare

1 Summary of significant accounting policics {cont'd)
() Hasis of preparation {eont’ d}
Maw g revised slardaords 'eont'd)
FRY 103 Financial Fnsiruments (cent "6
fi) Clagsifiearion and mecruremen {eont'd)

The llowirg summariszs the coquired croeleoed reslassifications 45 ol 1 Apm: 200G
upon adeption of FRE JOW

Iriginal FES 109 wicasurcmeot category
carryiof Amortised
amount FVvO(C] cost F%TFL
¥ 5 b 3
Lroup
FES 3 medsarement
caleory
Laans and receivahies
Mon-carcent assets
Avrailanle-for-sele finanaeal
asnets 10,200 373 10,200,073 - -
Funds placed with Fund
MAEnAgETs 2508 556 - - 2,385 856
Current assets
Available-for-sale financial
assELs 230,500 250,500 - -
Receivab.ce 3,040,634 - 3.040,634 -
Fixed deposite, benk and cash
halances 23038232 - 23033532 -

(I} Trepir e

TES 109 requires she Cirgup to record cxpected credit losses om ell of ils Dancial assets
" amonTesey] cast cither on a & 2-month or lilslune basgis,

At the date of indtial applizaiion apd 31 Mazch 2019, the Group has assessed thal Lhe

adoption of FRS 105 dees ot Tiave a matenial fmpact on (be fivazeial posilinn and results
of the Gizoup.
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The Law 5.-:|¢.|¢1:|-' cf.ﬁ'ing_aplre anil ice .:l;h:rillmr:.r

Summary of signfivant accounting policies fvoot*d)

{a)

Basis of preparation (rant"d)
MNevw and revised staderdr feond &

MNew siencards, amendmerl: to standards end interprelations thal have beey issued at the
balancs shest dete bur are 20t yer effective for the financial sear ended 31 March 2019 Rave
ot been appled in prepanng these financial stataments. Mane of these are expecled 1o ligve B
sipnificant effect on the financial stalements of (e Growp cxcept as disclesed Below:

FRY 1I'6 Leares

FRS 116 replaces the cxizting FHS 17: Leases, It reforns lessee accounting by introduzing o
cingls lasyee aocouniing mndel. Tessees are reqoired Lo eecogiise all leases on their balance
sheats 1o reflect their righis to use leased assets (2 “right-cfoss™ 2ssel) and ho associated
obligetionz for lease payments (a leasc Dakilited, with houted exempiions for shaott ismm
l=p=ex [less than 12 motthe) and leases of low value items. In addilicn, the natra of expeEnses
related to ihose leazes @ill change as FRS 116 replaces lhe staizhbi-line operating lease
expense with depreciation charge of righi-of-use assct and interest expense on lease lability.
“Ihe secounticg for leesers will nac chanpe Rigrificant!y.

“The standerd 1z effective for annnal periods beginning oo or after 1 JTanuwary 2019, As at the
seporing cute, the Gruwp bes nod-canesllable lease commitments of 3438,340 (2015
$2835,225) {Note 28). The Group expests 10 tecoghise the shove nght-of-wse assets and leasc
liabilitics om 1 April 2019, The Group is i the process of poritmming a detailed assesstoent of
1he imapeact on i1 financel pesiticn and eesulis,

{b} Basis of consolidation

(=)

Thic consolidaled financial staiements comprise the financial statements of the Society and its
subsidiary a5 at the balarce sheet date. The subsidiary is consolidated from the date ob wiich
the Growp chiaing control, and contizue to be corsolidated until the date that such contrel
LSS

The Anancipl satements of the subsidiary are prepared o fhe sarne ceporting date as the
parent vacipary . Censistent acenunting policies ace applied fee like transachicns and eventt im
slmilar cirdumstances,

Intragroup balances and tansastions. jneluding incame, expenses and divicends, e
alivinated m Rulb. Profils and losses resulting fom mcragroup frensaclions that abe tecngrised
in Breets, such as inveedory and property, plang and coguipmen, e sliminated m full,

Business combinatons are accaunred for using the accuisition method. The consideration
tranzterred for che zequisition comprises the fair value of 1he assets transferred, the liabilites
earred 2nd the cguity inerests dmsned by be Group, The ¢ozsiderstion transferred skso
inzludes the fair value of any conhngert cons:d=rahect arcangerment atd the faic value of any
pre-sxisting &quity intersst it -he subsidiamy. Acgukition-relal=d cosls are secoglised as
expenses as incwmed. Ideslifialle asscts aoquited and lighilbes und conlingeni liabilities
aszurmicd in & business combination are measured initislly st their fair valoes ar the acqeisition
date,

Subsidiory
4 suhzidiany is wn enlity conleolled by fhe Geoup. The Grroup contrals Lhe entily a3 11 Sroup

i5 exposes i, or hes dghls Lo, vanaale clorns or losses fom ks involvement with £ satity
and bas the abiiity io affse! those veteens Caonph its power nver the entity.



The Law Siasicey of Sagapan ¢ and 1ts sulisidian

1

Summarcy of significant acconnting policics (cont'd)

(d) Tncome recognitiun

Income s rooopnised when the servioe is Ipc.-fmn::d and completed Sor the customer at the
amount of promised considertion 1o whicl 1he $nciety is expecled L be entitled, cacluding
thuse amounts collected on behalf of thard parties.

Incoms is recogiised on the fallovAng bazis:

Dronatisrs - when received in cash of the righ to recerve paymes
extahlished
LAY Co-Pavment colleclionn. - when servics 1s rendemed

Conferonce fess, CLAR Training - when the ¢vent 1z held
priegramnme fees, inoome rum
gc.f financing projeat

Intarest income - am 4 titme proportion basie wsing Je effective intersst
wmneihesd

Subscription from members and - stradeht-line over the subseriphon peoad
cobributions

Dividend theote - rght to receive payimnenl 15 catablished

Sale of poods on credit - when powds are dslivered and in respect of cash sales,
when poods are 1aken 2od paid far aver the counter

() Goveromenl LA

i

Crovernment prants are reeognised =t their fair value where (here is 2 reasonable assurance
1lat the prant will be received and all altzching conditions will be complzed with, Whers the

amk relates o oan assel, the fair value is recounived 3 e deferred capilal grant on fae
g;]an-:q: sheet apd amortissd to poofit or logs over the expeated vseful hfe of the relevant assel
hy equal arnual instalinemrs.

When the grant related to expenditure isem, it is recognised :a profit of Joss over the perind
necessary o match them oo e systematic basis to the expenditure that it 15 mtended 1o
COTPEnIsaIE.

Emplovee's henefiis
Dsfined conteihution plaks

The Gtoup tnakes conribetions to e Cenleal Providamt Fund (MCPE7), a defined conlobution
plan regulated and managed hy the Singapare Govermment. The Group's contributinns io CFF
are charsed L profit or loss in (e percd n which the related serviee is perfarmed.

Lplapes leave eniitlenen

Empllu}rcclm:ijlcmmts to anoual Jeave are recogmised when they accue 10 employess, A

El‘n'l."lﬁl is made for the estimated liability for amnual leave 33 o result o servieos tendered
v wieiplensges wp o che balance sheet date.

Opcrating lesses

Logses whome a sygnificant pation of the hisks and rewsnds incilentsl to ownership are
tetained by Lhe lessor ave classified as cperating l=ases. Pavioents mace onder operating
leazes {nef of any incenlives received from e lessor) are recngmised in profil o loss ob &
stracghi-line Sasis over the peziod of the lease,

When an operating leses {s terminated before the lense pericd expires, any payrcnt Tﬁql.li]'l:d

to be made to (he lessor by way of penslty iz rocognised as an expendiawe in the penod in
wkich lezmingtion takes place.
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The Law Socicry of Sinpapare a7d its snheidiary

Summary of sigaificanl acconntmg piicies (cont'd}

(h] loeome taxes

(i)

Iicotae tax on e profit ot loss for tue vear comprises currsot and deferred fax. Curreol and
deferved fax are 1ecopgsed in porfit ar lass excepl 10 the extont dhat they relate (o alema
recegaised outgide profit o loss, either in other comprehonsive income or directly & fund n
which the tax is also recognised ontside ponfit ar less (ellber 2L cther comprzhensive iocume
or direclly ta the fund respoctively).

Currerl wa is 1he exXpeoied tax payehle ar recovemble ob the taxable inoome for the cutrent
Year, WEE tax retes enacted or subsiantively cnacted ai the balance shee. date, and any
sdjustment Lo lax payable o 1ecoverable in respecl of previcus Years

Deferred income laa 1s provided vaing the liability method, on al reinosary differences at the
balence shest date arising between the tax hases of assets apd Lishlides and their camrying
amoents in the financiel datsmnents,

Deferred tax asscts ere mmeopmsed 10 the extent that it is probable (Ral Fihize texable profil
will be available against whicl: the terporary differences can be wilised.

Dheferred tax assels and liabillies are measured et the 1as mles that arc expecled  apply in
the vear when she asset is realissd of the linbilicy is settled, based oo earemtly enacted nr
suhtantively enacted iax 1ates at the halance sheed date.

Froperty, plaot sod equipent

Property, plant and squiprnent ace inctio.fy recorded at cost. Subsequent (0 ihitial recognitian,
property. placi and equipment ars stated al cesl less acowsulated deprstiation and any
ageuimulated impairmeant logsas,

The cost of prep=rty, plant ind equismnent injtially recognised ineludes its purchase price and
uny cost Uhal 15 diecty atttibutable o hringing fhe asset o “he losation ead conditiodn
mecEsSary Sar it 1o be capable of eperaling in the manner intended by managesme,

Distnantlemest, Temaval or restoration costs ave included =5 part of the cost of property, plant
and equipment (f lhe oblipation for dismantlement, rsmoval of estoration is incurmed as o
coreeguence of asquinog nr usiog the asget.

Omn disouzal of a propetty, Pant end squipment, e difference between the net dispozal
proceeds and its carryizf; amonl 38 Saken 1o profil or ipss.

Depseciation is caloulated on a straipht-line basis to allpcate the deprecinble amourt of
property, piant and equipment over their cxpecsed ussul e, The cstimated vseful lives are
us [o]lows: .

Years
Leasehald building L1
F.engvaiion 2]l
Computer eguipment 5
Cffice equipren L]
Furniture and Eftings LD
Air-vetdinotiets RTINS
Libsrary books 5

The cesidual values, estimated useful lives azd depreciztion method of ponperty, plant and
equipmesnt &¢ Teviewsd, and adjusted 25 appropiate, at cach balance sheer date, The affecs
of any revision are recormised in profit or Jass when the changes e,

Fully deprecisted asses ans relained in (he {inancial statements ool they aoe b lenges in 1se.
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The Law Society of Singapare ani s subsidiecy

1 Summeary of sipnifleant aceounting policies (coot'd)

(3

(k)

(1)

Intangible sesets

Camputer sofiware deve'opmenl cusls are capitalised on the basia of the costs inqurred o
acqurre and hring 1o use the speciiic softwarns. Dimol sxpenditure, which enhanees or ealends
the performance of computer sullware beyedd its aripinal specitications and waieh ¢ap b=
rchably measured, is recognisec a3 a capital improvement and added to the orginal cosl of
the zeltware, Costs assooiated with me’nlaining covtpater saflware ars recogtused a5 an
CAPENGE AJ INGLITES.

Cemputcr software develnpmenl cests and 2oguired computer saftesre liceaces are staled at
cost less sccumulated amovtisstion and accumululed Dopaicnent losses. These costs are
arnordised using the straight-line method ower their estimated useful lives of & years,

The amertiszlion perad and amortisation methed of intangible assets 2re mvigwed ol least at
each balanse shegt date. The effects of anv rovision are recopnisel in peofit or Joss when the
chunges arizse.

Impairmenl of now-fnancial assets

Mom-finanezal assels are reviewed for impaimment a1 ewch balance sheet cete or whenever
everts or changes in eircumstances indicate that the camying amound of an asset may Lo be
recorvomable. Whenever the carrying amnune of an zssel exceads i35 recoveranls amount, wn
iwpeiement loss is recogniszd in probit or luss,

Reversal of impairmet losses recognised o prior yeacs Js rooorded when there is o
indication that the impaimment losses reeognised for the assel no longer exist or have
dicmansel, The reversal is record=d ia proliL or luss, However, the increased carmving seeint
af an azsct das o e reversal of an wnpalteent loss is tecopnised o the extant it does ool
exceed he cantyizp amoune thet would have beon detspoined (st of amoclisalion o
depceation) had no impaicnent 1oss been resngnised for that ssget it prior yoars.

Tuventories

Inventedigs comprising nublication, pifts and souvenirs held for resale aee valued at the lower
of cost and net eealisahle valuz with cost being determined on a frse-ing fist-oul beses. Ned
realisable velue iz flie astimaied selling price in the crdinany couzse of business less selling
I:HPEHEEE.

(] Finaocial assets

The accont’ag palicy for fnanciil aswels betors 1 April 200 8 cowards i2 os follyws;

The Group classifics its Anencie] assets in the fullowing catcgoncs: Yoans and recelvakles and
available-for-sale. The classificat’on depends on the neture of e assets and the purpose for
whizh the aseely were acquited. Managzmenl delermines the classificatinn of its fmancial
assels al 1natial eesognitiom.

Loans and receivatles

Laans and ceceivables ars non-derivative finencial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are nol queted in an Astive macket. They anise »hen the Group provades meoey, soods o
services directly to a debtor witk oo izlention of trading che recervable. They are included in
GuUTTENE asaets, xceps those mamring laer then 12 mooths after the balanse sheet date wrich
ar= clagtifiad ag pon-curent asselz. Loans aml ceceivables are prosenzed as “Interfond-aount
due from™, "Reccivanles™ [excluling prepayioents] and “Fixed depozils, bank and cash
balepees” on the balates shaet,

Loan: and meegivables ars measwred at iniial recognizion 2l (e value plug tEanssetinn orsts,
and are subserguendly geasured at amomised cost usimp e effeclive interest method, lese
Lmpoairens,
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Tre Law Bariery of Singepors and its subsid ary

1

Summary of siguificant acconnting policies {cont'd)

{rm) Finanrcial assets {conr'd)

The accounting policy Far fitancial assstz hetore | April 201§ orwerds is 25 fallows (eons'd):
Lagis qied receivalles feoni 'd)

An allowance fir impairment of loans and recelvables i3 recopnised when -here ts abjeclive
evirdence “bat The {ireup wl] not be able to collect all amcunls due aceording to the ongng
terms ofthe reesivables,

Sianilicane fAreocial difficultics of the debtor, prohability thae tfhe debtor will enter
bankruptey o financia! rearganization, and defaukt or dehnguency in payments are eensidered
indicetors thal e receivable is Dopaired, The amount of e allowance is the difference
hetwesn the assels cerrvima amouol and the present vaius of eslimared furure ¢asa (dovs,
dizcounted at the erigina! offective inwerest rats, Toe camying amount of *Le assel i3 reduged
hoough the uee of an allowenes aceccn, and the amoune of the loss 1= recognised i peofit o
loas. When a receivable is oncollectible, i is writich off agains: the allowancs acoouns for 1le
Tecrivables. Subsequent recavenies of amcunts previcusly written, off are credited o peafit o
Inss.

[f in suhgcaucnt persods, the impairment loss dacrenzes, and the decrease can be elaled
objectively to R0 event accurring afler e impaimnent logs was recngnised, e previously
recapnised imparrment Yoss 15 mEversed (mrough profit or Joss fo the cxtent tha' 1he carmi
amonat af the azser does not exeeed its amortized cosl ab the reversed date.

Avuilubie-for-gale finopcicl asxets

Availalie-for-sale financial assels are non-Geovelives that sic cither demgnated o this
calegory or not ¢lassificd in any of ke other catepories. They are ineluded in non-current
Asseis unless Manapement intends 10 dispose of The assets within 12 morths afler the belance
gheel dare

Purthase and zales of jvestments ame recopnised on Leade-fule - the date an which the Ciooup
sommils o purchase of s¢ll the asset. Tnvastments are derscoymised when 1he rights 19 recaive
zash flows from the Baancial assers have sxpired or have been transferved and the Group hag
transferred sabstantially all rgks and reveards of coneeship.

Avallable-for-saie Anencial assers ave indlially reeognised at fair value plus transndnicd, Costs
ang subsgquently carried ar fair wiloe,

Urpeaiised gains and Josaes ansing frem changes iv the tair valus of investments classified 2z
available-for-gale are recognised io 1be olher cumprebersive incotne and accumulaced in i
valpe regetve within Fapds. When investments classified as availablc-for-sale are sald or
impaired, the cccumalaed bair vales adjustments i the fair value reserve are included in
prafit ar lose.

The fair values of quotsd financial assels are bosed oo market priss at the balance shast dare.
If 1ke rearket Zor @ Jnencizl assel 1= not aetive, 1he Grovp establishes fair value by using
valuatios techniques. These incloded the nse of recent ami'’s Jength teangactions, reference Lo
other ins‘nwtenls that are suastariially the same, discnunted cazh flow analysis, and option
priciap medels refined 1o refleet the issuer's specifls crsumstances.

Y



The I Av Bnciery af S ngapome ord 115 subsadiry

1  Summary of sipnificant pcconnting policies [eont'd}

{m’ Financlal assets (oot d)
The aveuunting policy for finarcial assets before | Apnl 2018 onwards ia es falicws {vont™d):
Available-fur-ale Fagrctal esseir fopns'd)

The Giroum assesses at #uch balance shest date whether thees i objective evidence that a
finsncial asset or a proup of Anascial assets (9 impeired. In the case of equity ibvesmenls
plassificd as avaibahle-for-zale, a sipnificant or prolonged decline in the fair valwe of the
itrvestment botow its oost 15 considered in deemmining whether the investments &ee inpajrad.
If amy such evidence exists for available-forsgale financial sssets, the cumalalive loss is
measweed ag e differcoce berarssr the apquisiticn cosi And the cwment Fair value, 1252 any
ipaittnent logs on that fnapcuwl ssse previously recognised in poofit or loss, 15 sanoved
fram the fait valwe reservs within fund and recosnised in profil or loas. Impatrment Josges
cecogmised o peofit or 1058 o0 cquity investments are not peversed through profit or lozs, anl
the =quity investments ars disposed of.

The acconling policy [ fhancisl azacte fram | Apol 2008 15 as follows:
Recognition and derecogniffon

Hegalar way purcheses and sales of financial assets are necogmized on ttade date — the date oo
which the Srous commils e purchast of scll the ssset. Finuncial asserz a2¢ derecogoized
when the rghts 4 receive cazly Hlows from the financial assets have axpired or hawve Heen
trapsfeoed and the Group has transferved suhsantially all isky and rewacds of ownarship.

tisencial mssels are imiticliy measwred at fair valuc Transactionm coss thal are directly
attributahls 1o the acgomsition of financial assets (other than Pnancial asscss & fic velue
through profic or loss)h are added (o e Gir vaiue of the Jnencal assets o initial recognition.
Transacion costs direatly attributable 19 acquisition of financial azeets al fair valwe fheough
arafit of losz are recopmsed mediately o profit or loss. Trade recervables witheet &
significant financing component is inifially measuied at transactinn pnces.

ClaseifTogiinn and meaairenient

All finacteial 2ssets arc subsequently measored in their enlitety a: either wmortisad vo o Rl
valte, depending om the classification of the finencial aszets.

The Group claseifies iz financial asscts in the measurement citegories:
=~ Amortizéd fosl;

a  Pair value lbroepn olber cotprehensive income (“FYOCT™): aad

+  Fair value throup=s profic o2 loss (“FVTFL™).

The <lazsification iz hased @2 the entity™s business model for manegizp the brancal asset ard
ihe conlcactual casl flow chzractensics of the finaacial assets,

The Group teclassifies Hinancial assets when and valy when its posingss mode] for managizg
those assels changes,

SHBFeFUENE MEdSHrEmeni

0 Dabi pietrmends
I'tebt icsloumnents include receivables (sacluding prepayimeats), fiied deposits and henk
and cash balaroes and nvestoon! in debt secunties on the Balanee sheet, The finanoal

aszets, dzpendimp on the Group's isiness mode. for munaging the aseed ard cagh fha
chararteristios of the asuel:
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The Law Soxicty af Siwpopore and ice subs diary

1 Summaty of sipnificant acconoting policics (coot’d)

(m) Finaocial as1eta (cont*d)

The seeannling policy [or fraancial assats from 1 Apeil 2088 15 ps fodlows {cont™c)

Subraquent measurentent {coni'd}

1

Dedf irgtrumends foawnt 'd;
Aotz cost

The Group measures financia assets at amartised ezl if beth of The following eond:tuns
ACE ITEE

» The Gnancial zsset iz held within a busness model with the abjective tn held
fnancial mseets i order 10 eollect comtractual cash flows; and

*  The contraclual lenns of the financial 2ssce give rise on specibie dares to cash flows
that are salaly paymeats of prinzipa: and interest on the prmeizal amount cucgdanding,

Financial assets at amarised cost e subscouently mersured using the effective tersst
rate {"EIH"] method and are subject o impairment, $ains and Josses are ecopnaised n
profiz or loss when the assel is derezognised, swodified or impaiced. Inlerest income o
these finRncial assets is included io Jerest income vsing the E1R method,

Fair veliee through ather comprebenyive invome (“FYOCL )

The Group rcasurcs debt instruments a0 FYOCT if hoth of the following condimns are
met;

»  The financial asget iz held sithin 8 business moded with the ohjective ol bth holding
to collest contractual cash flaws and selfiog: ard
The cotkraztaal tenns of the finaneial asset give vise o specificd dates to cash flows
that a2¢ solely payimests of principal and interest on the pringipal amnunt culstanding,.

bMovernents i i values for debts instruments at FVOCT are reengnized m other
eoroprehateive ineome and accumulated io S value resemve, except for e recognilion
uf impeinnenl gaing o losges, incerest incore and fpnsgn exchatge gaing and doeses,
which are recogpized i profk or Joss. Whew the fioencinl asset is derecogniscd the
cumulabive pmin or logs previensly recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclessified from eguite to proflt or loss ag 4 reclassificatinn edjustmezt and presented oy
"other incomae/eanense’”. Iolemest imeome feotn theae finencil ass=tE & recopised in
profit or loss using the EIR method,

Epeeity (b drends

The Cromp has designated sll of its squity snvestments thal are ool held Bor ipading at
FYOCT at inival secognilicr:. Gaivs and losses ansing foom changes in fair value of dhese
Equity iovestments claszified a FVOCT are prescaed 23 “fair value geins/lasses™ b other
comprekensive income and aceunwlated e fair walie ressrvs and will never e
-cclagsificd o profit or loss. O disposal of an eguity Jnvestaent, the diffarence betvessn
‘he carrving aount and sales praczsd emount woudld be recopniscd in profit or less
excep: for equity invesiment designased au FVYOCT which waald 32 recopnised in ather
camprehens’ve income, Fair vaue meserve relating tn the disposed asset weuld be
franeferred to reteioed eamiips gpon disposal, Dividends from squity invesOnents are
resognised 1 profit or loss eod poesenied ir Yother income”. Bquiy Cavestinends
classified az FVOCT are not sunject o impairmenl a35ess2cnt
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The Law Saciedy of Singapore and i suhsidiary

1 Summary of significant pccounting policies {contd)
{10} Financlal assets (cont'd}
Thae secounting pelicy for fnascial asscts from 1 Aprl 20108 1 as follows {cont )
i) Fumds ploces with o moRogers

The Group classify a portfolio of financial 2ssets shat is managed end whose performance
ia evaivated on a Fair valus basls as fioancial assets at fair value through profil o loss,
tucl porifolio of financial assels §s neither 221d to collest conrraetuzh cash tlows nor held
Loth o coliect contrecteal cash Dows aml 1o sell fivancial assets, The collection of
eoneractinl zazh fows is only inoidental 1o ackieving the Group’s objective. The Group's
primary focus on & portfalic of financial esscls s oo the fair value wformation and wses
that information 10 255655 the arsota’ pecformence and to make decisicns,

Ampairment

The Group recopsses at allowance for expected credit Iosses [TECLs™) [ur Jinaiial asses
caTied et amortised cost and debe instrements gt FYOC). BCLs are based em e difference
beleesen the comracioal cash fows dwe i accordance with 1the contrect and all the cash flows
thet the Grouo expecls to peceive, discounted at an approximaton of the vogingl efecive
intersst rate.

'|he umpeimment methedolopy applied depends on whether there has been s sifmoficant
increase ir credit tisk. Fur credil saposuces for whicl: there has oot heen a significant merease
tn eredit nzk since izitial recopmition, TCLE are provided for credit losees thet result from
defanlt svents that are poss’hle within Qe oekt | 2-maaths (3 12-month FCL). For thoss cradil
cxposures Sor which there bave besm a sigmificant ineresse in credit cisk smee ural
recagnition, 2 loss allowance s required for credit Josses capeated over the remaining life of
the expagare, irrespectove of the tming of the default (a tifetina ECL).

For trade receivables end contret ussels that do not have A signifizant fnancing component,
B¢ {roup applics a simplified aporoech to recoenize a loss allowanes based an hifetime ECLs
at gnch reporting date. The Croup has established a arovision mairx that is hased oo its
historizal crodit [osz cxporencs, adjusted as appropriate for curment conditions znd forward-
looking factors specific to the debtoms and the sounumic swvizuament,

I e Cirowgr has measwed the loss ellowance foo o fnancial 2ssel at an ancount cgual to
lifetime ECI. in -ha previous reporting period, but d=termines al the curreal reparting date that
(he cosditions for Lilctime ECL are ne looger toet, the Gronp meagwess the 1oss allowrance =t
an atmaunl equal o 1 2=month FCT. at the currert repocting date.

The Group recormse: 3k modinnen; fain ar Joss inwofit or loss for all Eaanciul sssets with
a comespanding adjustment to theit carrying Amoun; through a less allowsnee acoonn, eXent
fnr inwestments ‘o debr instruments thar are mcasurcd a0 FYOCI for which the loss ellowance
if recognacd in other comprehensive ‘neome, and does nat reduce the carmying smount of the
financial asset in the statemen? of fiancial oosiduon,

Offser

Financiiel wssels awd Labatities sre offsct and the net amount presented oo the balanes sheet,
when antd only when the Group bas & l2eal righd to offas: the amounts and ntenls afler to
asttle on a net basis or o realise the asset and settle the [ability zinmultaneously.

(1) Finamcial liabilities

Tinatieial lighilities inclnde interfiund - amount d-= te, amoant due to The Law Socicty of
Singapun:, payables (excloding depsticns seceived in advemce end grents recerved i
advanes) and medies held in tuzl, Financial liapilities are recopnised on the balade sheet
when, and nzly when, ihe Group becumes 2 pacty to the contrasingl provisinns of the Snaneizl
inst-uments. Finencial tabilities are initially recognised at fair vahee plus diczothy aurbulable
iransaction costs and subsequently measuced ol amorlised cost vsing the oFcctive intesest
methnd,

9



T Law Seciety of Singapore ard i subsidiary

1

Bumvmary of significant accountfing policies (eont’d)

(o)

{al

()

o

Finuocial Lobilities {cont’d)

A financial lishility 15 devecopnised when the abliganon under the Sability is extinguizhed.

Cimins and losses are recognised T profit or Zoss when the labililies are derccognised and
thvough amortization process.

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Gooup has a preseat legal or construcrive pbligation as 2
result of past cvelns, anid ot 35 probahie ikel an eutflow of resources will be roquc=d o seide
the chligation and a reliahle extimate of the amoant can be made Where the Droup scpecls a
pruvisien be be reimbursed, the reimburssment is recoumized as 4 seperate assct hut only warn
the: reimbursettizan i3 vintally certala,

Funds

Lnless specifically indiceied, fund balanees arg net represented by any specitic asaets or
iiabilitiez but are teprecentad bee all 2szets of the Cromap.

Cash and cash eyuivalents in 1he statement of cash flows

For the purpose of presetalivn in e slament of cash Aows, cosh and cash equivaletss
comprisec wach on d, depmsits with finaoeial institotions which are subject o #n
imsignificant risk of changs in value and olhe: shortderm highly agqud investmoents that are
teadily convorible to 2 lmown amount of cash and sre subject o en insigoifeent cigk of
changes i value and sxcludzs mondes beld i s,
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The Law Rpzichy of Simzepore and i subsilary

2 FProperty, plant and equipment

Alr-
Levgehnkl T iunpuler CrEflee condlifioner  Library
building Resovabon  <quipmeni  eqmiprocst ¥ banks Tuital
5 5 5 3 ] 5 3

M1a

Cost

A1 1 &l 2015 TITEARG  RMORRGZ Bl TG L7335 IETE I3TEED 12,124,533
Additicns - 102HME 132,912 12,141 - - 245,M1
Vlitmer off - 05 T (2 rE (.6L2)

AUCIE Mareh 3012 FITEG0G LT TED dTHSM L42,258 206,576 |3RA6E  13,3E%TE

Acgamulpted depreciation

At L April 2018 3 DR EIG AEEs T EXLREL 156,771 178,05 |32, 506 541% N51
Depreciation chargs [ 55,342 ZRE&2S 43,803 1759 15,340 - 54E 2RX
Wntten qif - - - (30441 i 3R] - - ':ﬁr't-':' .
AE2] Bdarch 2R 2.EL4,331 2980588 A5, 141147 1A207)  [32fch TAGET1G
Fiet cavrving valoe
Ar 3] March 201G 4562275 152,13 157,403 iL1L1 14,505 - 91785
LiHmprised
Senarad Fungd 4561275 A 147,782 6,970 e N T
i'ra Hara Sarvigus - EJFE ___39 14,24z 14,405 - 1 23,k

4,561,275 161182 157608 11111 14,605 — 4917856
2008
Cot
At L Apil 297 1,705 GG 25 L3 AN 121,540 1EL,647 132068 1195 004
Additinas - 159,647 0,187 16,34 24 3 - 151,257
Woiren off . (349167 (1E948) L5070, - (37,843}
Artl ¥Mawcn M8 WFTSG06 03862 ¥ TS 173925 MEET  1ILEE 11124653
Accumulaled depreciation
A1 1 Agnl 2017 205 2k A 450 2l TI4 daF L 14,343 182 45 L5 A6k 4,3 %8 RE0
Cepreciakizn charge 155,533 242 BL1 11,17 &, 0| 14,032 - 450 B3
Wntwm alf - IR (176 {23, T34 - — (71,6351
Al sl March 2012 3,058, 7H s St S | 156,77, TR 7Ll 152G 5,925.06)
Mad earrying »aiu
AL31 March F1IE 4 TIT.A07 a5 &6 A5TT L7134 ZWHES - 310550
Comprisest
Ceneral Fend 4717507 JOF A5 Rt E R b - 4,95 il
Pro Song Spesions - 151,454 11,158 12,175 29 La5 - 20,743

A I1ECT 1d5.0ES 86,377 17,154 19 B A T
Diepreciation of prapersy, plan arsd eqeapeoet js sharged a=s tellows;

mig R
% 3
Cigretal Turd Cnce |de) 5455,55‘? Se6 0L
FroBana Services (Mot 14
- Genetel Bro Bang Sorvicess Office (" Gemerol PRS0 45,212 53
- Uucingl Legat Aid Scheme ¢ CLa™ 55810 3d 462
HEIER 454 236
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The Law Socacry of S:ngapore aisd its subcidiary

3

[otangible assets

2n1e
Cost

At the ‘oeginning and cad of the wear

Accumivlated amertsation
At 1he bepitming of he year
Aroortizalicn charge

At the eod of Binanc:al e

Mel earrying value
At the end of Onancial vear

Comprizes
Cemerad Fundg
e Bere Seriear

015

Cast

AL the bemting of 1the year
Additieny

Wrtten off

At the eod of finaneial year

Accumulaled amerlizalion
At the bepinming of the vear
Amortisation charse
Woitten nff

Ad she 2ud of tinancial year

Met carrying value
At the end of financial year

Compriscs
renaral Fund
Pre Song Services

Atnernisation is charged as follows:

Feneral Fund (Mot 14¢)
Fro Bono Serviees (Wete 16)
- Qe [und

-CLAs

Computer
software
development  Computer
Losts software Tkal
3 L 5
5Bl 48,094 __B1395h
28,061 LR 468,580
153,173 Dale 16u 752
___ eILI1N 19,238 631,372
153,718 15 856 LE2 S84
Lo,022 - L 022
157,106 2% 856 166 562
153, 72K 28 854 182,584
Tag 297 - TR 29T
- 43,0424 45004
(2.4535) (2.435)
TG B2 EENGE] 813.956
ELIL - 305,762
153,419 2619 163,234
{1,420] - {1,420
453,901 _9alY 463 530
305,001 5475 155,374
ERRIE & - 31043
LR 3n 475 313,331
306,801 35,475 145.37h
2019 2018
% 3

19073 1a,0E3

127150 137,396

0,612 3,519

161,791 167,238

The compier softerre developmeal costs were maimly imeuneed for compaterization of Genecal

PBAC workilows for smplementatuorn nf a customer celatonslip Sanagemern sysem.
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The 1anw Sociany of Sinpapere and its subsidiary

4  Availablefer—iale financial asssts

Availahle-Tor-sale Onancial assels coanprise:

ns 2013
¥ 3
Mon-ciurrent assets
{huoted 1olerts: bedring SeCULles - 7,880,237
Crunded eduity insnunents - 2,309.815
- 10,200,073

Current assets N
Cuated mtzrest bearing secktities - 50,50k
- (0,450,573

Available-for-zale 1iaocial asscts ste analysed as follows:

1) B 2ing
¥ 5
Maa-cursgut
Genaral Tend - 4,200,63]
Cempengation Fund . — 5,693,422
- 10,206.073
Current
Teneral Fund - 123,250
Compeosativn Fund - 125 250
- J50_500
- - 10,430 5871

In 20 Y, interest boannp securities earned interests at fixed rates from 1.85% 1o 6.00% per aum
anl Ene matucily dates of cerlain securities were due within 1 10 7 years from the balance sheet
Jatc The balancez incloded perpetual bonds,

Tn X018, impairment loss nf 5236, 109 was charged o profit o 08 as follows:

201% 208
§ i

Geberal fund [MNaote E4e) - 104,26
Compenzation fund (Nate 15) - 131 403

- 226,104
Impairment loss was fmom:
= Aovgilable-for-sale finaacial assels - AR TR
- Faur value reserve - reclassitication - 1440044

- 236,104

2



The Zow Sinciely nf Singupare aod g dubsidia-y

%  Fonds placed with fund managers

Funds are placed with the professional lund managers, The fond manapers are grven disoretionaey
powets within semain puidelines o invest the funds,

e 2018
i i
{Jootest enquidies - S52,036
Chaed interest bearing securitiss - 1,782,973
Tolial nveslments - 2,335009
Bank balances = A3
— 2388 850
{nmprizes:
{renecal Fund - 1,194,424
Cnmpensation Fund - 1,184,424
- 2158 RSG
& Financial assets af Fair value throogh profic or loss
201% 21E
¥ b
Furds olazed with fiind menagers )& K52
Conprizes:
Crenecal Fuad 1007926 -
Compensation Fund LO0T 826 o=
2,015,551 -

The furpd tnanagers are givea discretionary powers within certain guidelioes to mvesl e faads,
The fitnds are primarily placed in queded equity securitics and dolv sastruments.

7 Flpaucial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incone

Zle s
3 4
Non-currcer
Quoted dehl insiruments 6,025012 -
fuated equify mvestments o Sicgapare 1,935,130 -
500,137 -
Crrrend
Cruoted debt insimuments a0l 734
Comprizes
Mow-current
Geoeral Fud 3,TT198 -
Compensation Fund 4,TE3,934 -
¥ 5102 -
Lprent
General Fund &57. 790 -
Compensation Fanid 313,544 -
1,501,734 :

&4



The Law Soziery of Singapore ard it subwidiary

T  Fioanvicl assels ol fabr value thirgugh other com prehensive Ineom e (cont’d)

Dekt iosirumeals eam sotecess st fixed rates from 1RS% to 4636 per avovtn and the mostunty
dates of certein securilizs are due withit 1 to & years Fom the batanes saser date,

Tre Fair values of the quoted eyuily veshinents and debe instruments sre deteomned based on

guated marke: prices et the belanve sheel date, These insuments are includ=d i Level 1 of the
fair valus hicrarchy.

§ Inveotoriss

2019 2014
5 ¥
Puhlications, gifx and souvemirs (MNete 17) 48,617 52,067
D EReceivables
Tatal ofier
Teral uirfire imter-sepmeni
Greaerol (kher Pra Bono iol=-scpcul Liltr-septnent #llminatien
Fund Z1mes SErvicTs vbizanon  chiminestion Pl b U1
£ 5 3 5 5 L L

Amount dus frem

Law Saciai» Pro

Tara Savios: LT - 1,527 (1327 - -
Sukscriptiam et

meceiwed by

Srpreme Crart

1 behndf ot e

Spciery I ,fi34, 844 - - 1,573, R - 1,839,844 I, 743456
Tdrdry TRzgivahles

- Min Law -- - LB D0 TR0 - 137, 1) L1507
Sundry deproiia e 35,01 20,770 o4 B2 3 - a4 X3 Jad 154
Tnierest

reccivahlea - M AT 20,3 - 2B BT 18 B4
Clekaa recyvables 293,131 1,402 145,246 425 Tt - 425,099 202,998
Prcpyinicns 281,082 1,254 L1429 L5125 - 1463325 52453

117,118 15475 384,603 2,537,395 (1,527 13535866 5000554
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The Laa Scicdy of Sicpapoee and ins swbsidiery

10 Fixed depnsits, hank and cash balances

Bank and
Fixed cash e

depasite balanses Telul
2015 5 3 L1
Geneal Fund 95004 5T 004 579 L0989, 353
Corpeneatien Furnd 1716415 126l 2.041,03%

17,711,033 2,319,302 200030 205
Jus Cubo Fund A3 Gkl 122.646T Ian,60%
Library Fund 41,013 10,000 51,008
Paztocal ©2ars I'vnd (15,870 {15,570]
Sparts Meet Fund - iL, 107 31,107
Wellars fund 41,941 41,941
Practice Fesilizone Fuad - L,add LA00

54,953 190,235 176,198
Genzral PRSI 1,004,406 951,153 3,268,573
CLAS 182,591 1EE.501
Law Aworsness Fund o 16,704 16,754
Bar MemoTial Schularship Fund 14,082 16125 16,217
3O 495 1,170,670 4,191,1"?

20LE1E.55] 5 6EL, 220 24 497 TE&T

biumes held 2 Trast (Nole 25) 74384 185,334 1,142,718

Tzl 21 570,825 4,069,550 15 648, 405




The Law Saciery of Singapoes and i12 eabsidiary

It Fiaed deposics, bauk and cash balaaces (cont’d)

Total
before Tuoial aftcr
Bank and inter- Tater- inter-
Fixed cash sogment FeErnenT Legment
deposits balances  #liminetion  climination  elimination
20TE 5 g 5 5 L]
General Fund TA6028Y 1,355,155 Q015,442 0117 7 Lig5 550
Comipensation Fund 750,157 f34, 593 &, 157 056 - LT G
15, [6d. 444 2,050 354 17,212,408 mIlLT 17,282 613
Chbiee Funds!
Jas Curia Fund 41311 104,289 144,199 L43, 100
Labrary Fotd 40415 10,000 50,415 - A1
Fusturn] Cane Fumcl - (11,5503 (11,550 - 111,550
Zports Mest Fural - 35498 15,490 - 15,400
Weifare Amid . - 58,601 58401 - 54 401
615 197,338 Z8_, 164 - 2L 144
'ro Hiono Servacss:
Chemeral FRS(H 7,964,767 §T5E19 3,940,542 - 3540582
CLAL - 415,202 515,253 A15003
Law Avwiraness Fured - 25,093 25,091 - 23003
Bar Memorial Schedacshp
Fund L8 &< 24,160 40,045 a0
A ALK 1 440 565 4,471,011 ) 1421015
13,226,718 387057 o B14.875 LT 21,734,752
Monizg held o Trust
fMnLe 335 T48 155 04 58T 1057 740 - 1,033,740
Talal 1R2?5 471 3,00 x4 22 Lhd 415 MLLET 13,033 512

The fiaed deposits” Lue<est rates a5 a0 31 harch 201% 2re fixed and reoped betwesen 0.25% to
2.10% (2018 0.25% Lo 1.61%0) per annu, The fixed deposits matces within | 1o 7 thonths (2015
I 1o 12 momihz) ader t1e valance sheet date,

Iy



Tl Law Siwsiery of Slngaacce and ite subsidiare

11

L&

Deferred capital graot aod delerroed expenditure

01 2018
% 5
Treferred capital graot
o Bora ervices
Balance ot the bepinning of Jnencia) year 219 860 345 751
Giranls received from Singapore Tatalisator Board
- PS50 cumputecisaion - 215,714
Amartsarion (Mo 18] (225,400 {157,727
Balance ar iz eod of financial vear 04 370 3957, TG
Grapt received Tromn Singaporc ‘| otalisator Hoerd
- Mehile App - 10,00
Grant reveivend froon Marional Arts Council 6,36 15,000
Cirant receivad frocm MCSS 10,412 17,120
Cirant refundable 1o Minis:ry of Law (5,513 -
I 135 529 550
{rrants for projec to be gompleled:
Within 12 momthe - Corrent (More [§) 116005 15,00
MWnre than 12 months - Non-comend (e 1£] 130 514,850
36135 325 A0
Deferred expenditore
Fro Bano Services
Deferred cxpendiiure for Matianal Arls Council proj o 3,648 21,908
Deforred cxpendrure for NCSS project ) 34,240 34,240
37,088 NLrRHS
Graxts for project to be completsd:
Witkin 12 monthe - Current IT Ha¥ AL
tlore fhan 12 moaths - Non-carrent - 24,240
aT.B58 6,218

Deferred capital granis are grants reccreed from vadous stafutory hodies for the implemeniation
of 1he varioas projecrs andertaken hy the Crowp. Such grants whocl hawve beez received are nnt
recognived in profit o tess a5 the projeets Aave not ooen cormpleted and Lhe fenos and codidibions
relating to the eranls have oot besn met. Sitodlarly, cxpensess incomred for sich wbcornplened

projocty =re d=ferrad and net recopmized in profit or loss.

VWlen the projests ars campleted and the tetms and condifions heve heen saticSied, the defecred

grants teceived and detemed sxpenditure will be reeognised i profii ot loss.

Cootracl assets and crnivaci UabiiGes

pLLIE

20te
5
Pro Bonn Services
Crafrazl agsets L3701
Comlraet liabilivics 2,194 873

Contract as=zts relzte to the subsidiary's righls o cohsidaration for services perfarmed for CLAS
vazés nat ailled at the repotting dale. Coztract liaoeifes represent subserrpton fszs paid

advatoe by menbers.
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The Law Seciely of Sungipors acd its sulssidiaey

13

14

Payahlcs and deferred income

Genzral Other Pro Bone Cnmpensation
Fund Fund: Bervices Fund 2019 201E
3 h 5 x 5 b
Bunekry pavables 315,302 015 LR H U (N ERL1 154,170
Aenren] expenses 38,320 2,804 204450 L5834 817,341
Donwstioos received
in advance from
ko Birmos under
CLa% Fellovwship
Scheme - - A LI - 05,000 285,000 _
AlE, 123 13,774 £55 124 ann 3377513 1,456,515
reneval Fand
2018 ol |
Mot 5 3
INCOME
Subecdplions [rom MAchibe s 12a 5,485,206 52,506
Imterest inceme oo Oxed deposits 14b 186,557 F27. 602
Invesiment Income 189,010 210413
Surplus from sell-Imancing projoeis lde 1,097,642 LI=22.594
Sund-v income 14d 518,210 ITLILS
a8 7 had 1517014
LESS EXPENDITURL
Administrative expenses 14 030,124 By =20
Pessonnel expesses 14F 4316719 4 434, T8
NonetonaCirants' Con'nbulioos Lo Siigagmc
Inst=te of Leral BEducahorFro Botc Services 1ig 01,440 631,714
Meetings, events and vther Council expenses 1dh 3af, 654 152,303
Council bucgets for speaial prejectefaipendineee ILH S0.408 115762
Dizeiplinery Proceedinos costs Jdi 314,110 122,230
7091473 6,401 592
Surplvs belnre tax 306, 1 i [,.15,624
Tax expeiise 24 [48,616] (G4, K0
Eyrplus for the finanmal pear s L2 62d
Balancs aroughl [erward.
- as reportad 18,756,050 18735371
- etfect of adoption of new acucunting siandard 15 _ Bed0s -
- ag Teslated 19.843,401 13,735 372
Balance saried forarard 20,190,971 EREE R

EL



Tae Law Bocisty of Sgapors and its aubsidiang

14 Creocral Fund (cvnt*d)

2019 ik
£ )
[Mofe 144]
Anglysls of subscxiptians fram members
Subseriptions from Mon Practitioners 48,996 55,365
Subwrriplicns fioim Praclitieners 5 436,00 5,197,200
S 485206 S2AG 290

INatc 14b]
Amnalysis of interest imeome on fixed deposlts
Intcrest received on fGxed deposils 196557 127542
[Mote 14¢]
Analysis of surplus/(deficit) firopy self-financing projects
Annual Dinner
Income 83,247 129 482
Expenditure * (61,716 [L36,149%
Surplusfdeficit) 1,531 (E.8E87Y
Coprimnng Prfessionel Development Progranunes’ Advonacy
Incoms LS97.03T 1,690,257
Exoenditire * (B1a,2%%) {805,197
Surplus TR BES,L60
Canference
Ineome 1L S50 d62
Expendiore * (3956824} [354,54d]]
Surplus 315,300 ¥18.401
Tolel suzplus 1097 602 1,153 054
Mnie 1dd]
Aualysis of sundry income
Advertising - onlinc dircctory LR 109 G
Advertising « Oaline Taw Gazell: 19,985 -
Classilied advertising 144,529 123,633
Grant from 1le Ministry of Law
{Lepal flusty Meeds Stuchy) 03,351 113041
Ddther inceme - Shared scrvises charged 1o Pro Bono Services 25,7a0 152,000
{ther incom.e 6,125 THA39
Penalty for nat volng 53,501} - -

S18, 130 Y

* Belates ro dircet expeedinore only and does not 2elude seczetariat staff or admin wvarheads



Thie Law Saciety af Sngapedre asul i subsiciary

14 1eneral Fond [(cont’d)

2018 s
) 5
[Noke 14¢]
Analysis of admEnistrative cxpenscs
Advertisitg 855 27778
Amontizatior of intangible assets (Mote 3y 16,025 16023
Auditor's remunemtian 19,000 19,000
Bark charpes 1,439 1,250
Delivery caurges 2,154 a0z
Neprecistion of properly, plant and equipancnt (X oic 2) 444,550 KLU
Fair valus loss weth respact 1o finoneial assets pf FY 1L £7,M17 -
Mizcellanenus 4,123 1473
Mewspapess, povindicels and binding secvives 1,076 1,034
Iinpairncnt 1055 on gvailable-for-sale Goancial assets (M AFS™)
are dy - 104,304
Insurand: JL 666 11,5874
Patury supplies 5,292 44081
Photecopier metesed charges and paper oosts 17171 13028
Photoeopier rental locs 19,656 568,320
Prstape and couriet charges 14,974 17,100
Pontioy and staticnety L5,152 13,573
Prolessional Toes =] L2024
Rerntel § 500 -
Brepuirs wnl maimtenance
- High Courl bar ruorm 4,332 4.7Ta5
- Premises gt 39 Bouth Brdge Road E3.515 gy o4T
- Premises a0 37 Souh Bridge Road 24,4673 -
- hecrelanat squipment wud wrebsile 16320 30,954
- Btate Cousts bar rasoy 282 23,522
Staff rezources 2402 59
Biprage charges 23,104 24,720
Telepheoe, facsimle and smit] kroaceas! charges 13,462 16,8%7
230,126 3a0,540
[Note 141]
Analysis of personnel expeoses®
Centrzl Provicent Faod and Skills Develupmend Levy &R5,046 527,201
Temporary saft a0d cnployment agency foes 118,136 [21,6d7
Snlaries (including remporary flaff), bomuses amd related
EXPRILSES 4,020, THE 3 750 246
Staff shlonsances 6,555 A
Staff frinme benefils 18,605 18,224
Siaff medical fees and proup bozpilal inswanss 5,952 353,248
Siafi iraining foes 20,9466 32012
4.K16,739 4,458,782
* Prrsonne! eapenses 4,873 648 4 558,203
leas: allncabinn of sommaz costs
- Compensation Fund {56,040 3,021

4,916,739 4 488 TA2

41



The Law Sociery of Sinpapore and i15 sabsidiary

14 Ceperal Fund {eout’d}

2019 2018
$ L
[Mote 1dg]
Analysis of Donationst(rraots'Cootributions 1o Singapare
[nstimte of Legal EducationFre Booe Servioes
Book prizes =100 2,100
Coxirbulions 1o the Bizpepare hatiute of Legal Fducatios S, 340 S44. 110
Codtrbutions 1o the Pro Eano Serces
(Tuxt Jubilea Preject’ Annwal Contribution) 30,000 i3, 50
Gik]. 440 A3.,710
| Xote 14h]
Analysis of meelings, eventd and other Coancil expenscs
Annue] Ceneral Meeting 2,09 8,358
¥lembership foes for inlemational bar asspciztions 3,000 4,503
[Committee meetings 17,677 (7,010
Congacik and conumities work'actiaiies 196, 352 LR &6
Leopal mizsicnitours 47,347 11,264
Eoreign travel'oonferences £1,4402 43.921
48654 1B2,30%
|Mote 140
Anilysia of Conucil budgets for special
projecis’expenditure
Anti-Money Laundering Inspcetions 28,387 7,
Legs Ministry of Law Contribatinns {8E, 387 [$7,725)
Law Soeisty S0% Annivcrsary - Fiat Justitia Coffee
Tableaook - 280012
Less: Docation aud salcs prosesds {1,900 {220, 80%)
Law Geurelle 0,257 2277
Law Sociely Achileation Schete a1 (843
Law Saciely Medialiun Schene (2,250 {841]
Larar Saciety S0 Anniversary - &3, Aok
Leyal TechiTech Starl!Smarl Law Assist 37,439 13,653
{inline legal research dulubase al 37 Sl Bridge Road 17,136
R0, 409 115762
[Note 14jj
Analysis of Disciplinary Procecdings eosts™*
Expenses 343 987 1T, 606G
Add: exnpenses telating to inguiny panel 0,783 G211
Lesss: penallies collested {13,000) [28,201)
Li=sa: costs recovered {11,560) (26,758
Tesr: Inquiry panel costs voeared - [B4.239)
314,110 122,200

*t Polales to direet expendirzre only and doss oot include secestaizal staff, adrin overhzads and
wilnolesr lawyers' costs
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Tloe Lo Boaciety of Stngepore aied ies anbsidisry

15 Compeosation Fund

A Fand established o make prants foo the tpose of relisving or milivaling lo2s for any person
that hes sustainzd loss in consequence ¢f dizshonesiy ot she part of any sehotor or any clerk or
servant of a solicitor 1n canmachon with that 2olicitor's praclice in Singapure.

P Y 01k
5 L
INCOME
Contnbutions received a3, 0 37600
Interest ingome vn [ixed deposits 121,055 B 753
Investment ineome 2311 51,430
Fenalty under Ssction 30020 of (he Lapal Profession At 17,0} 20,300
TInclaimed moneys trunsfermed under he Legal
Professional Act First Schedule Part T Seclion L1033}
{Mote 23) 10917 311352
N5, 063 1,253,845
LESS EXPENDIIT.RE
Ban charges 48 -
Espenses relating o establishment, mainienance,
arlministation and appleation of funds 56,949 6a,021
Fair value loss with reepest to financwel acuews al FYTPL 57307 -
Cupainngt .o52 o Aveilahle-for-sale fBnarciul assels
ute 4] L = 131,303
114,304 L3 24
Surplus [ur =g Guancial year BT, 759 1,156,021
Transfer of fund w Compenzation Fund - Laprary (354,146 L L346,353%
Surplus for the linancial year __ Bl6.61Y 700,628
Halance brought locwand:
- a8 Teporied 13,067 576 13,257,948
- effect of adopiion of e eccosating standard (Mate 102)} 100,673 -
- g restated T4, 68,249 13,257 943
Balanes carried Forward 14 584 862 3,967,576

Compensarion Fund - Dibrary

A fund estehlished fior the purposes of purchasing or maintaning a library for tae wec o the
members sod armounts ol 354,145 (2018: $744593) have been wasfered from the
Corapensztion Fund to the Compensetioo Fund - Libraty fbr insse norpnsss.

2019 2016
5 ¥
NCOME
Intecz=st income oo Axed deposis 10,949 KRS
Dalanee hrought torweard GEN TS 130353
Traosfer fron Corapanzation Fund 354,144 Jag 203
Bzlance carmied frmarard 1,045,770 BEEATS




The Law Sty of Sinuzpore il 12s scbeidiary

16 Pro Bano Scrvices

Taw Society Pro Bono Services (“Pro Booe Services”) was ineorporated on 4 January 2017 o
1ake over the nperatinas of Pro Booo, Learning and Supaort Soiviess, a divisior of The Law
Bociety of Singapore (the "Ujvision™) ac & going cedieam,

Om 1 Agril 2017, oy virlug of the Tranafer of Chantable Undedaking Agresment, i oporat-ona,
aetivities, azsets and labkilities of the Ivision wes taken over a5 0 eoing consen by Pro Bano
Services.

The fair values of ideatifiakle cssetz and lisailitics of the [Mwvison at the date of transfer wera as
followrs:

2018
E

Property, plant and cquipment J24.001
Intangible assels 413,447
Receivables 17,040
Cash and cazh equivalerss 4,027,543
Defetred capital prao {349,751)
Amuurd dug to Tl Law Bocicty of Smgapnre {260,344
Payables ___GL3420R5)
[dentifiable net assers wansfemed represerding imjection of fimds

The Taw Snoiecy of Singapo-e 3215963
Comoprizes:
Greneral PRS0 5328711
CLas (2,153,275}
Law Awarsness Fuml 2, I 0
AMSE 42,413

2,219,962

Fro Bono Services is o somoany Lbicnited oy puarsiiee and has 2 sole member who is the Sociedy,
The liahility of the Society in the even: of Pro Bene 3ervizes heing waonnd wp will nol excesd
110, Az such, the immediale and ulbmete parent of 1he Pro Bonn orvicos 15 the Sociery
(the “parens’).

Pre Bune Services i 1ogistered under the Sinpepers Cherities Act aud bas been sonforred the
glatus of an approved Institation of 8 Public Character. [t is exemnpisd from incoma 1ax =od its
duners are granicd thx dedusiions for the donatinns made to the company.

Pro Bono Serdces coardinales axd admipisters all pro bonn initialives ol te Suciety, cluding
the Creneral Pra Bana Services Office (“Gencral PBSO™), Crminal Tegal Ald Schems (MCLAE™],
Law Awarencss Fund and Bar Memaorial Scholaeship Fund ("BMSE"), The parpess of the P
Bone Services is o mmp.cment the Soviety's wizion and initiniives as 10 iie provizion of pro bono
lepal services in &ngapore.
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The Law Sacoetw of Singrpece and s sabeidiaty

16 FPro Bono Services (cont’d)

Law
General Aomrenecs
FOSC cLas Fund BMEF 2019 201k
3 g 5 3 5 )

NCOBIE
Arnartization of defecred capital

Zrani 203,524 21,0660 - 115,450 1577120
Corasibution from The Law

Szl of

Smpepors (Just Jubiles

]"rujl:l;l.".ﬁ.:lum.al

Cootributiont - - - - - £95,500
Cootribwlion foamn Le Miusery

of L
- Qperaling cusls 300,000 - - - S0 004 00,000
- CLAS cages - 1,362,08 - - L3GHO00  2411,000
- CLAS Advocaioy - 231 572 - . 1157 11268
Concmhuoticn from ETNG A

Acoption - - - - - 3,437
Coptrthotians'dene tions

received from orthers 1,3c0,174 01, 0ER - - 1,3%%112 041G
CLAS Fallowship - 475 000 . - d75 {eH 482,000
Diatalion frot WYPC - - - - 7447
Intersst income oo fGxed

disnadie 41,663 - 223 4] 355 LK1
Cither inzome 27451 1,356,303 1H 1,0, DY 156,837
Crrt feeptice 14 723 - - - 14,7%1

N N A L T T3 5335017 4,750,144

LESS EXFENLDITUHYE
Ad iz Poo Bono Referral

Stheme - £ 293 - 5,195 4,572
Hdvoeales for he Arts - - 41 Oug - 11 0%% -
Arncrtisation of intangible

Fisats (M 1) 137150 B313 - - 144,764 147 215
Ardizar's remaneration T 5920 . - - TA20 & 6al
MCCLUniing eapesmees s - - 3,572 £,213
Bank charges A 1,271 | 35 2540 4,703
Har Me=mremal Fil:h:‘:llm.‘:l'l:ip - - - 15,00 15100 2,500
Ceobal Peavidast fud and

Bki.ls Dewelopmen: Levy 122319 101,520 - LR 21 13z 458
CLAS Criminal Law Training

P rogranumes - - - - - x|
CLAS Fellows Fvpanses - 18,095 - - 18,095 18.5CH
Communicy Jegal clinice 1,7iN: - - 1.Toh 4.
Conierencas/Biudy Tops 5,142 3,028 - 5178 10,578
Crrpowane Secrelariai S{penses 724 - - - T.adL 3330
Dhelivery Charmes Ln - - - 1o 187
Deprecistivn ol prapealy, planl

and equipmsor (Mot 46,270 42,510 - - lp1,732 k245
Duisbaresmeni charged by

assignad Tawyors - 41474 - 141,678 214,158
Dizrarszmend Specialist rzpor - b0z 558 - - 102958 133,133
EBaanze camicd forward 132656 LB A X000 L5055 G H77 B93 Eih
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The Law Swaety of Smzpoce and lre subsidiery

16 Pra Bonn Services [coot’d)

Law
Gr2reral Aoaarenees
FEED CLAE - Tupd BMEF 01T 2014
5 8 g 3 5 3

Balance trought femaard 311,658 535 0R7 21,99% 15,033 o0g,&TT Lt R
Guhanced CLAS {Heneranums) C 1 E 087 - —  IA4SPST 1,000,009
Fund raising expensss 117,725 - - - 117,216 174,725
HE Servicas 7052 ik - - 13,115 e 30
Tzl awdit 5,350 - - 350
Itdsmiguble assers written off - - - - - 115
Inlerpretasinniranalacon oo - 3,134 - - 3198 4,147
IT Services E R E 852121 - 115074 132,345
Law Anerenan: Progests - - aam - X |y 5,233
hacketing commumicatinns 1,07 - 449 - 1,539 19 067
Mesing sapenses 1,675 47D - 1,145 1,256
Mizozilaneous - - - - - GO0
hiovingTelocation Ciosl - - - - 3,.44=
{ilic= insurance Q%23 43 - 10134 13T
{ffice cerial R Roa - - = S, K02 €3,671
Panery supplics 1,Mm1% 1.7% - 1.3 2 660
Photecopler maiersd charpes

and paper oosrs 1,271 2,830 - - 5114 i35
Printing, s‘ationsry and posages 1852 1,943 - - 3,595 4,028
Progarry, plant ans eguipnusm

wrillen off - Lk - - 3Ta (Beli 1
Project scluools - 2325 - 3,315 45,501
Puklication 407 - - - 407 ]
Bettal of cquipment 5136 T - - 11,349 12,75
Ropedr and nyaintenencs 10,311 6,213 - - 16,524 13,466
Besauroe libeary 5H5 56 - - & 860 2E5
Sabacles and bonwses g10, 768 B0 656 - - 1713424 395240
Bewrily - o7l - - 1Tl 3452
Siait allowansa and raaspert 1353 1.14% - 2500 4573
#all mecical faes and groop

heepital iosurance 325D 12311 - 31.19] L4008
Staff 01 Sesondment CLAS - 42¢,167 - 426,167 BB 357
Staif “rining T hti3 3,050 - - T 15,601
Etaff welfare %097 3,730 - 8313 401
Storacc L 555 62 - - 1,920 A4d
Trelephone and Fax chezpgss ek f, 224 - - 11 483 19,120
Trrilities 3,552 g.172 - - 14,024 140334
Vinlieteer ergagement’

recogniteantaining 6572 i.21B 24 - 1414 £41

£,552,1%4 é",, ] ;_fd 17 R 15035 4500879 & G261

Surphuei{deticit} for the

finanzial vear 554, 4% 208 G05 (5917)  (14B1T7 73908 158,240
Trmeler af fonds (5345,.21) AL 5L [aael) I, 000 - -
Ealaoce bz ought foowscd 4 kg 0T e R TR 29,748 a1 IA7A343 521D 9al
Balaove carmied fucwsid 3,987,717 45,465 17,37% e £ 11T MG 52TEESD

G



The Law Sosciety of Sagepore and g aubeid ary

16 Pro Brnoo Scovices {cvod *d)

Balance Sheet as 51 31 Warch 20190

law
Greneral HAomremess
PHE( CLAS Fund BMEF e 2018
Wite 3 8 ! ;3 L £
ASSETS
Nou-eorrent asicts
Properry, plant acd equipment p. 111,769 LI M - - 123,805 204 753
Tutangihle assars 3 137,706 25855 - - 155,562 313,131
Defemed capancitues il — - ] - — S 1440
a9 874 AR - - 9371 8523
Currenl ssseis
Recervablas o 118,777 2ad 523 - 2 384 A0z B4 054
Freed deposits, hae andd .
cash balarcms 16 5,0e% 575 132371 1& 7 6,217 4191177 4421012
Defarrad sxpanditice I 14,240 - L - 7, REK 71,99%
Conlrac] asseds 2 — 197,020 - — 180 —
4,118,503 a3, .0 20 442 26319 4,BD048T 5041005
Tatel asscts 4,169,057 E15,020 il T 26317 5,ML3S% 5003429
LIABILITIES
Mow-current lizhillty
Erefrrmes] capilal yrasod 1 138 - .- 130 =4 BeC
Current liabilities
Fayeolzs 13 55T LRT.haG 3057 - 655320 1,090,756
Amiound due to The Lawr
Society of Singapore E 6l Las - - 1,527 G032
Thefereed capizal grants 11 3 L6003 - - - 316, 05 15,000
30L,220 58E_ 555 ERILE - g7ZA52 1,799, Tip
Totl bebilltbex 3EL,550 534,505 367 - Q72082 2514586
Tet assets A Ra4nt 17,275 26,319 4 117876 33iTH243
Eepresented by;
Accurilated Funds 3,987 RE 465 17375 26,314 4 1ITETAE 0 LATRERD

Ti 25 thie ohjmesive of the Pro Bono Soevices 1o achizie a ceseone that would b ehle 1 soslan: operatians for
i Nhrey weurs period e Ut eveald of & deeling e dovarioes.,

While this iv the ohjective, the cumene bilanes Braogll foreard will cover clighrly mere tham hall vear of
operalions.
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The 2w Bociety of Amgupare aod L8 subad-ary

14 Pro Ronn Scrvices {cond *d}
Graneral Pro Bans Services Office

An Qfice 10 coordinate and manegs 2l pre bono mitatives of the Society (incmding the Criminal
Legal aid Scheme, Law Awareness initiative, Project Law Help and the cocurunity legal clinics).

i) b 2018
X B

INCOME
Anonisasion of deferred cup:tal grant 203,524 152,723
Conttibidion from The Taw Socisy of Siogapore

Izl Jubilee Proicot Anmual Connbution) - B3390
Contribution from the WMinistry of Law:
« Opecaling oosis 300,000 G IEREN]
Cootribution Dom SINGA Adopticn . 3,337
Centeibutions/donations raqeived from others 1,349,134 GIE, 548
BPuanation froon BVTL - T84T
Interest income on fixed deposits 41,663 eal7
Conferenss 14,733 -
Crther imawme 17,488 33,634

2,136,542 1,333 RUG

1ES: EXPENDITURE
Amodisetion of inlungible cssels 137,154 137,556
Auditor’s remuneration TH20 0,061
Arcooranling espenses 3573 6,311
Hank chargzs 1,272 Ll
Ceotral Provident Fund and Skill Teveiopimeant Lavy 112,310 148 300
Community legal clines 1,70l 65
Londerences Study Trps 5,144 0,195
{nrporate accrotEnst CXpenses 7,242 33,320
Nelivers Charges 110 12
Drepresiaion of prepedy, plant aoc squipmest 46,722 15 583
Fupd reising expensey 117,124 174,720
HE Services 7.2 42 M6,
Imbangilde assets weitton off - 10,3
IT Bervices _ 3,553 0020
Intenal audir 3,350 -
Macketing comsoucicilions 1,070 12426
Mertingr stpemises Le75 06
MovineTelocanon Cost - 1,345
(Mfize mnaurar.ce 95594 71T
Mo mental 1) B 1 3 671
Oher activities 1.035 -
FPaoory 2upplics - [i24
Ba.anee camed formasd 59T 3N TS TS
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15 I'vo Booo Services (cont'd)

Geweral Pro Bore Services QffTee feant'd)

01y 2018
¥ 5

Balonce cavied forweard 507,334 TRS5, 7465
Phedoeopier reatal, metered charges and paper costs TALT 104
Prinling iod stalicnery and postage 1552 2,370
Praperty, plen: and equipmedst writder off - G, 204
Fub!ication 407 -
Repair and mainlenance 15,142 15,167
Fosouroe Libracy 585 200
Salaries and bonos=s 910,768 70,029
Btafi allowance and Tansporl 1,355 3,091
Staty medica] fees and grows Lospital iosuranoe 14 B850 7,45
Siafl maining T e 0,354
S1atY weifare 5 93 5,095
Slapape 1,858 T4
Telephone and fax charges 0257 12,622
Valunteer engagement recagmibionainng . 6,572 1B

1.582,3%4 1,578,347
Eurplus{deficic) for the financial year 554, 148 (45,047
Baiance brogghi foreand 4,018,701 5,328,711
Trawster of funds _ 595,137) {1,056 963
Balance carried forward 3,997,717 028,11

Crimimal Lepal Aid Schemp

A scheme provvid ng legal representation 0 iMpERURIOUE peTs0ns on non-¢Apital criminal shaTges.

2019 2018
¥ L3

WCOME
Conteibutions from the Ministry of Law:
- Opetasing coste - 10C,0:0
= CLAD cases 1262000 2.411,9200
- CLAS Advocates 231,572 212,545
Contribation from athers 40,088 R, 208
CLAS Tellowship 475,000 432,000
C1AS Co-Pavment sellection 102,812
Criminal Lew 'Imaming Progmamome 11,640 15,314
Erlianced 7,45 collection - 117,73%
CHber e _B34,051 -

~ 377,163 3 423, 134
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16 FPro Bono Serviecs (cont’d)

Crimimed Legal AiF Sohepe foomt 'd)

2019 2018
b 3

LESS EXPENDITLRE
Ad boc Pro Bono Fefemal Scheme 5105 4972
Arnarlisanion of intangible asscts 0,619 R
Bank charpes 1,271 1.247
Central Providaonl Fund and 8kills Dewelopment Lewvy 101,528 TS
CLAS Crmioal Law Trabime Frogramme - T
CL.AS Pellows Eapeosas IR,095 B ERE
Conferenes Study Trips 3028 ,483
Delivery Charg=s - 175
Ngpreciation of property, plant and equipanent 55,510 54,462
Dighwezement charged by assigned Janoees 241,678 214,358
Dishurgement Specialisi report 102,055 133,135
Enhanced CLAS (Honoranums) L5 15T 1,004,009
HE. Services =133 36,182
Luterpretationttranslation fee 3,199 4. 189
IT Setvices B5.221 62,325
Mearketing comamdnicaticns - 4,64
Maoting expenges 470 240
bliscellansous - a0n
Office Znsuranme T3 -
Pantey suppliss 1,678 1,536
Photocopier retal, mesered charges end pzper costs 10,543 L0441
Printitg ond atationery and postages 1,841 1,925
Propecty, plant and equipmet written off aTs -
Reapair and maintesance 15387 I5EI
Besourcs library 5,184 1861
Salures and bonuses 802,656 6TR.E11
Secunty o7l -
Siaft elluwranc:s anl trenspe:t 1,145 1.257
Staff medical fees and group hosoilal nusuraes 13,311 6,218
%taftf ou secondment CLAS 426,167 a0 537
Stats wrauning 3,050 8,747
StafT welfars 3750 33405
Storage 62 105
Te.ephone and fax charges 4,224 498
YVolontect chapagernenlTecognition/raining 1,215 453

2,971,554 2009227
surplus for the financia) year 205,608 453 303
Baianes brooght forsard (TI19,737 {2,151 X715}
Teansfar of fongds g 503 VTR A2
Ralancs carmied Forwarnd Eidas (710 73%%
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14 Pro Bodo Services (cont'd]
Lawr dwaremess Fuhd

A pablic aducation initistive aimed at raising wwesreness of the law by eondecting public
tdusytion seminure, [orutng and eghibitions, and publication of legal informatics

019 218
4 5
NCOME
Amortization of deferted capitel grant 21,7640 -
OfneT INcoms . B L -
21,984

1L.LESS FXPENDITURE
Bruk charges 1 1
Law Awareness Project - Advoraiss for (he A 21,994 -
Law Awareness Project - Project schooly 2525 45 &01
Law Awarcncss Project - (Hhers 3T 1931
hlarsaling communications 464 -
Maating expenzes - 140
SladF alicwance sid ransport - 15
Voluntear epgagetnent'ieeogmition/treining - 26 -

1896 40,65
Dielinl fur the Dnancial yeas (5.01L [EXEAIY]
Balance prowpll forwand I8 T48 2,104
Transfer of funds {6,451) Ll
Balance camricd forward 17375 20 748

Bar Memarfal Scholurship Fund

4 fimd estahlizhed 1o award ¢ any sandidate who has ohtamed wdmission or who 35 teking any
ful] sime coorse of study o any ineitwte of higher lcaming in Singapore. Other considerations
beimg cquel, prefarencs wiil be given to an undergradeate pursenyy a d=pres in L.

I LYy 2013
3 5

INCOME
Interest mecane on fxed depogits 223 208
LESS EXPENDITURE
Rar Memonal Scholucship 15.000 2,300
Bank ¢harges s -
Deficit for taa Gnatcial vear {14815 (2297}
Transfer of [umls 1,000 -
Ealance broupht forward 40,131 42423
Balanes carried fryard 26,315 411,131
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16 Pro Booo Services {coot’d)

L7

Amannt fue fromita) The Low Saciety of Singugore

ot 2019 - mEg ——
Amaouni Amaount Alnonnt Amount
due from [due ka) Tatal due £om fdue o} Tocal
5 % 5 5 5 g
{renaral PBSOH 638 658 oe 161 (214,709 (110,600
CLAS : 9 feh 24 241 Ti0 426 13,668
Tata, - 1,527 1,527 179343 314,627 693,970

Relate to teansactionsi-ansfers belwesen The Law Socicty of Singapars and Pro Bono Services,

Jas Curlo Fand

A fand established to meintain the aperution of Tus Cedo Shop, Jus Curio Shop offers an eclectic

ranee ol stecks fromn conpovate erchandiss 1o varows pubiications.

211 R MR
5 b
NCOME
Sale of Publicalinns TH0 ]
Sale of Gifts aatl Souvenirs 28,257 20,203
Sale of Consizumenl Detns 1,117 3 1did
23.124 23 836
LEXS COST OF SATES
{Ipening inventanes 55067 44,925
Purchases and related costs 12653 17114
Closing mmvenleres (Mote 5} {45.417) (52,50
17003 g 043
Fross sutphns 11,121 14,745
Interest income from fixed deposils ‘12H 653
11,548 15,436
LESS EXPENDITURE
Hunk cherues 342 m
B =peic and maintecance - 235
EF £47
Surplus for the financial year 11,307 14,788
Ba ance brgugl: torwerd LY LER 194 026
Balane carmied forward 1M 352 213 845
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153 Pastarad Care Fund

19

A fund eslablished Lo promole pastoral care programa for practitioners.

Fractice Consuli [ee expenses
Balance brought forwand
Balaace carried forward

Spocty Mect Fund

3019 2014
b B
(4,320} -
{11,550 [L1,550)
{15 8703 (11,350)

A fund established 1 pramote good relalions apd social interenurse among members am batweet
merokers, professional bedics of the legal profession 2o other countnes acd oler persens, by

means of sporling events.

INCOME

Inter-profezsional Giarnes refund
Cther Golf Compelition [ees tacoversd
SingapoccMalaysia Law Grimnes &

LESS EXPENEITURE

Bank chargas

WMisccllanonas

Infer-Professional Oomes

Cther games

SingaporeMalayzia Law Saines &

Daficic for the financial wear

Balance brouglht forerard
Balance carned forward

SINGAPOREMALAYSIA LAW CAMES &

Incom _ _
Conirbutians'sponsurships received
Dinoe: atd dabce sosis recnwered

Less expenditure

{zames' Day Bxpenues
DHnner end dance
F.efteelunents and recepdiang
Bpuvenirs and plagaza
Transpard atd trave.ling
Training

Hreizl arcommodatisn

Delicid

2014 2018
5 ]
2A4TE -
- 1,650
39,89 H9.170
41,566 0,520
121 210
514 o
4,743 4,040
%174 5680
51,790 112,305
62,343 124,739
(10,77T) {51,919
{147,367} {05,445
(167, 144) (147,367
34,600 25100
1,29 16070
39,590 60,170
546 7,287
7,008 43,379
- 16,416
7,388 5881
T53 9.Eid
19,715 28 G
15,253 -
51,790 112305 _
{11,900} {43,135}
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20 VWefare Fund

A2

A Fand cstablishen to afford peconiacy and ofher asziztacs f mempers or former membere and 10
the wives, widows, childrem and other depeodants, whether of memhers, foormer members or
deceagad mermbers who are in need of any such sssistance.

pa ) L 218
5 ¥
Mizcellancous expensss (16.660) (15,200]
Halance hrought farerand S8.a01 73,801
Balunue varmed foiward 41,041 34,601

Library Fond

The find wis set wp for the establizhonent of 2 hbrery and (ke acquisition or rentsl of aftices 1w
hause the Library

014 20,4
5 L
Interest ncome from fsed deposits 393 a5
Halanee bruushl focward S0, SRT 49 954
Balance <arfied foresrd 51,185 k1587

Pracfice Kesilicnee Fuod

A furd sstablisted ta wssisc menbers, who are propricters of thew own legal practice and faciog
temmparacy Aneneial dilficelly in redaricn 1o sheir practics, o meet short-wemm needs tha will 2elp
them tr s1ay in practice.

019 o] B
3 3
Daonationg received 1,400 -
Monies held in LTrust
mie G138
5 8
Pursuaci 1o sectich 74 of 1ha Tegal Professional Acl
{“Secdon T4 waney'} 3TAM &R,547
Educetion Fund wnder compulsery professicnal mdemunity
scherac 1,085 224 0a5,10%
1,142,718 1,053,400
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23 Mooice beld in Trust (cont’d)

24

Hection 14 momey comprises Lhe following accounts:

A ar Experdin:reS ot Ax at
14201k Additivms Transier change F3.2019
% b ) i 5
8 Thbuman Ghan & Co * 0,177 - 177 {5,177} -
Deavid Eagif & Pariners 20,303 - - - 28,33
Chida Penn & Co 4750 - (4,750 {4,750} -
Chnstopher Yap & Co ! - - - 111
H A Jali]l & Associales 5.95] - {1260 (124} SB25
% (junascclan & Marners * 22,235 - . — 11,155
0OF 54T — (11,053 (11,053 57,4594
Expendifncrestransfor comprise:
2019 Z01R
i 8
Transfer o catmpensation tand (Now 13} 10,917 311,352
Bk chirpas 136 1,356
11,053 312204
¥ Intervention of soliciter's sroctice ugon ceath of sole practiticner,
Tax cxpoosc
2019 2018
5 ¥
Currenl lncnme tax 4R.616 A 000

The income lix experse v the 1esulis of the nancial year vanes fonm the amoont of iniome Lax
determined by applyine the Sinpapore statutory rce of intome tax 10 surplus mefore tax dus e e

following Factors:

1Y 0%
5 5

Surphus before tax 1,788,678 2,282,187
Tax al statutory 1ax cate of L T4 338,245 TER, 06T
L2ompcnzetion fund taxed at loweer contéds noory mis (7,668 (8.188)
Experscs not deductile for tax purposes 64,794 R3 452
Enhanced tax allowsnce (29,750 {12,527
Income wot sugesl 1o 1ax (314120 (2372041
Sinpepors statulory siepped Iheome exemption and tax rebae {0,521} (33,025}
Utilsation of agpoowed dovaricns 1o 11ie Division {76540y (2,052}
Change 1 defermed Lax asaels ned mecogmized in prict vears - (BL2RE)
Ctacrs 9,585 123

4R 616 S (0]

as



The: Law Secieny of Siepapaes and ice sebeidinmy

2% General Information

20

The Sociely was esablished in 1967 and ook on the vame of The Law Sociely of Sirgapors n
1970, The Saciety is menaged by a sody of persons zalled the Couaedl of the Society which
conaists of 15 elegied members, a3 well 82 3 members nominaed to serve by the Minister for
Law The Cownci! may also nominate 3 furdler members to serve, if it an decides o (e cowrse of
the vear. Elections 4o the Counci are held every year and all lawyer: whe hold prsetising
cerfilicates vote at the elections. The membpers of the Council cleet fiom amnngst themselves &
President, o Vice Presidents ard the Treazuter of the Sogicty, The purpotss of the Sociely and
the powers of the Couneil are dereribed in the Legul Profession Aot (Chapter 1817

The privcipal place of activities is at 23 Mazwell Road, #0103 Maxwell Chambers Suites,
Sinpapore Q68 120,

Financial instruments

{1} Categories of fmancial instruments

The following table zeis out the Anancial inslrumerl: o thel canying amount a8 the balatce
shee, date:

an19 2003
5 3

Finaneiad asests
Lomas aml receivahles - 2p,026,711
At anocised cost 2%, 014,555 :
Avalabie for sale nancial gascts - 12,830 4249
Financial assets at FYTPL 2,015,852 -
Finencial assels at FVOCT 10,061,866 -

40,092,373 34,866,140
Fumancia! Ngbilites
Al amortise:d cusl 2325240 2,225 251

(b} Finanelal visk manapement

The Group’s activities expase it to mirvmal Ananciel ozk due 1o the natire of its activities aad
‘he qverall Ask management is delenwined and saried ont by the Couneil.

Foreign exchange risk

Ax the Group's tonsections are all cardsd ot o éingapme dollsr, it is not exposed 0 any
“oteipn exchange risk.

Tateres! rode Plak

The Group's income and operating cash flows are subzianlially indepepdent of changes =
-aveet interest rates altbough it has significast intercst-besring deposits with financiol
imstiptigns as the interest cies of these ceposits are fixed. The Group bas 1o interestbearing
LiabiliLies.

Cradit rick

Credit rizk refers o the sk that a countecpaty will dafazht on its contmclual waligaions
resuliing i financial tess 1o he Groag,

The Group does noi have any signilicant soncentrations of credil nsk esposure. Tae
mamimum expesate 1o cradit risk i3 represemed by Lhe carrying values of each class of
finasicial asgets rezopnized in the balance sheet and sowprised mainly of deposits placed with
financicl inatinuions.
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iIf Finpgcial insiroments (cont’d)
(b} Finenocial ylsk management (cont’d)
Crelr risk fivom 'a)
Recenvables from third parfivs

The: Sociefy asseszed lhe lalest perfonnance avd financial pesition of the counterparties and
cencluded that thers has bees no sipnificanl inceease in (he oredit isk munes the inigsl
=eengnition of the linancial sssels. Accordingly, the Sociely measured the impairment loss
g lorarance using 12-momk FCL and delermined thal the TOCL 15 midign flcant

Firannal arsets at amariived enst

Financial assets at amortised cost includs other financial assels at emetlised cost, receivables,
fixed deposils, bank and cash helances.

Credit osk exposurs i relation to finaccial 2560t ab amorbzed costs as a1 31 March 2009 is
musimifcant, atd daecardingly wo credit loss allowence is recognised es al 31 Blarwh 2015,

Provious acoounting peflop for impalnnenl of finanolad greers
Financial czyers thul are nedther posé due aor impidr gl

Feceivabley that ame peither past due wor impaired are creditwnrthy debéors with good
payment tecord wilh the Group. Fised depusils and bank balacees that are neither pest duz
nor mpaied are placed with reputable Bnancial instiutions which are regulated =nd have
aond credit standing.

Fingmoial agsers shai are either pas! due andor impalrd

Taere are no financial assets thatl are either past doe andfot impaired 21 the balanse sheet date
exeept 53 distlozed in Nowe 4.

Market price risk

Bkt risk i3 tae risk that the Jair valoe or foteee cash fows of e Gooup's Tivancial
imstrammenls will fluctdste beeause of chamges :n market prices (othér than intsrest of
sxeange rares). The Group is exposed 1o changes in equity price anuing [rom s mveshiet
in oueled eyuily nslcoments. These equity instoments ae qeoded oo 3G3-5T 1 Singapore
end are classified as evailable-Tur-sale [loansial asses,

A5 at 31 darch 2019, the Graup's [inancial assels al far valoe rough other somprehensive
eome pnocnied to FULORLEAS. A 10% increasedecrease m the widerlying equity prices st
(ze palance shect date would inerase/decrease equity by 51,006,187,

As ar 31 March 2019, (e Growp's financial asscts at fair value theoogh profd or loss
amounted to $2,005B52. A 1% erese’decrease in the voderlving equry pnces at the
halanes shest date woold increassdecreaes supplus by $201,585,

At 31 March 2018, the (GGroup’s investment in zqoity instruments and fiads placed witt fund
managers are I 509,836 and £2,388,856 respectively. IF ooezs of the Group's myveschénts
increwsesdecrsase by 10% widl al: ather variables held constant, the Group's eqoity would
have ne=n 3230984 and $238 SEG higher/lowe: respective.y,
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25 Financlal instruments [cont"d)

(1) Finaucial vlsk management (cont'd)
Liguidity and cosh [Tow risk

The Council exercises prudent Equidity and asl flowr risk; manapemert polite: and ains ot
maintaning an edeguets level of liguidicy and cazh flows at all times.

The Bmangal kabilides of the Groop as presented 1 the balanse sheet are due within twelwe
otths feom the balanee sheet date and epproxirmete the cansracin] undizcouneed paymenly.

(€} Fair valnes

The Geovp classifies fair valwe mcasurement csing @ feic value hiranchy that etlests the
sienifivunce of the ioputs wsed iy mabkdng L measurcment.

The (air value hicrarchy Las the following levels:
Level 1 - quoted prices fupad usied) fn active markets for identizel assels or Habailies,

Lovel 2 - inpuis othar than quoted prices incuded within Lewe] | that ere obeervable for the
agses or liabiliy, either direstly (s prices) of indiverily {i.c. derved from pricss).

lewcl 3 - inpuls for the assed or lability that are nor kazed oo obseraahle market date.

The Girap’s availab e-for-sale fioancial assels are tmaded in &b active marked and are based on
quated macket prices at the balance sheet dale. These inveshimenis are ingloded in the Lovel !
nigtarchy.

The catrying amownts of the other finanzial assels and finaneial labilitics recorded 1o the
fitoncial SLAemeels appsosimans teir reapective fair values due to the relatively shom-term
man ity of these fhanzial incoumens.

27T Fuuds/reserves manageiuent policy

28

[he Group's okjectives wisn mienaging ils fundes ase to sadeymard and w0 mamlain ad2quae
worxing caplial Lo comtinue 5 poing concsrn andg to devalop its principal activilies over the longed
term.

¥ao changes ase made in the ohicolives, polisies oo processes during the financial vears ended
3 March 201% and 31 Manch 24 E.

Leas commiiuenis

The Group has operating lease committieids in respect of its office copier and office premise.

Comenitments in rala’ion bo the non-cance jable cperting leazes contracted foy but net recognized
as .dakilities arc pavable 22 thllows:

2019 Z0LE
¥ 3
Mot later tran nne Bnancial year 13,210 113378
Larer 1an ove finanzial vear bat not Jater than
fove fibaneia| years 146,124 271 840
458 340 385228
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19 Remuneration prid to Key management personnel

30

The Yociaty

Mo rapneration is paid 1o any member of the Couneil.

Pro Bono Serweas
2019 PR
g 3
Salanes, bunus acd beoelils ERE 35T 668,312
CFF e 1) 72,266
Long service pward ) - 1,00
754,753 742,178

Reminaracion bands for 3 hiphest paid Pro Bane Serdees siaff who ere alse key managamen?
arsorAal,

The 3 highest paid saff whnse ;emoneration exczeded 3100000 in Lhe paited were a9 follows:

i) Ly ImA
5 5
Mumbeer of $12fT in bands;
100000 e 3100 D00 2z Z
S200,000 o §209 000 1 :

Ma directors of P Bano Serdces have meeived reouoecalion for ctheir services as hoard
mernbers and no directors are smaff of the Campany.

Interfund - amount due from{io)
-— 1010 = & M|y —
Amount Amount Amirant Stnoun;
due from due ko Total due [rom Jdue 10 Tatal
5 3 5 5 1 b
(reneral Yund 169370 (418,664  (249,294) [ 24, 740 {47 815, 52,175
{her Funds - (102370 (165,370} — (129 700 {129 700
169,370 (568,034} (413,060} LE0 YO0 (177405 (aT015]
Compensating Fund 418,664 - 413,664 476.5 - 47 615
Tatal 588,034 [EA%,M34) — 177,405 {177 .40%) -

Belare Lo transaciions'bansiors bevween the di forent funds nf the Socicty.

5%
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32

EX

Relationship with Insolvency Practitioners Association of Singapore Limited (“IPAS™

]]‘-‘-"LS i3 mearporated in Singapors ond it pnnmpal. agivities wre as (ollows;
Provision of a corporat2 identicy and organigation for insolvency practitioasrs
- Ascociale, Fellow aad Siudeol cepisizalion
- Support and sdvancemeént of the statis and injerest of ngolvweney pracllenere
= Provisinn of recognized qualifications for persens enpaged in the praczice of insalvency
*  Promofien of the techmeal competénce of insolvency practitioncrs
= Provizion of updaws on developments in insolvency Jegislatinn and proposals end lutest
ibgolvency judpements lry Singapore Courts and other jurisdictions
IFAS ix a cotpany litoited by puasantes wherehy every member of IPAS undertakes & contm>ute
tn mest the debes and Liskilities of IFAS in the eveat of ila hqusdatien e an amcunt nat exceeding
G160 [or each nemnber, The memhbers of TPAS are lastituts of Singapere Charered Acconntarts
and the Socdery.

The Saciety has 50% representaien on tae Board of TPAS. Howrsver the Seciely's relabicenship
with TPAS is only o the extenl of a locse afliliation and i the cvent thet [FAS 32 wound up or
dizsoived and of there arz any remaiding aszets in IPAS after the satisfacuon of all [PAS S dabis
and liakilities, the Soci=ty's shane of such eetianine assets of TPAS as detemmined by the Boand of
A3 will net he received by the Sociely bul will be distributed to such nstitihen or estibolions
having cojects sionlar to the ohyects of [PAS.

Consequettly, 1IFAS is nat as en associate, & joind veatice oF an investuent o the Sooiety and a2
such, it 15 not cecognised in the financial stalements of the Socisy

Suhsequent cvents

Subsequent tn the balance sheet dare, the Sociely:

(a} has enlered into loase agroements b Jeass out ils premises at 39 and 4. Sexth Bridge Road,
cotntnencing § July 201Y4; and

by has sipned a leasz apresment (o lzase ZH Maxwell Road, #0003 w #01-13 gnd #0208,
Sotmmencing 1 Awguat 2019
Authorisaton of Noancial slolem ents

The consclidated financizl statements of ‘he Grovp Zor e financial year ended 21 March 2019
wata awlhoriged for issue by the Counisil on 23 Bepleriber 2018,

a0
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